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Financial Highlights

M EE

Revenue of the Group increased by 18.1% or RMB146.3 million
to RMB953.0 million for the Reporting Period (2017: RMB806.7
million), among which revenue from sales of Human Albumin
Solution increased by approximately RMB141.1 million, mainly
benefited from the increase in sales volume.

Gross profit of the Group increased by RMB127.5 million to
RMB221.0 million for the Reporting Period (2017: RMB93.5 million),
while gross profit margin increased from 11.6% in 2017 to 23.2%
for the Reporting Period. The increase was mainly generated by the
increase in selling price of antibiotics.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded net loss of
RMB280.6 million (2017: RMB185.9 million), mainly because
the increase in the Group’s selling and distribution expenses was
greater than the increase in gross profit, and the loss on disposal of
inventories of approximately RMB117.9 million.

During the Reporting Period, loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to RMB280.6 million (2017: RMB185.9 million),
representing an increase in such loss by RMB94.7 million.

Basic and diluted loss per share amounted to RMB0.166 for the
Reporting Period (2017: RMB0.115).

The Board resolved not to declare any final dividend for the
Reporting Period (2017: Nil).
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2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
20144 20154 20164F 20174 20184
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBFIT AREBFT ARBTT ARETT AR%TR
Operating results rexE
Revenue Yoz 950,079 1,096,071 858,894 806,723 952,957
Gross profit EH 129,770 152,507 104,568 93,533 221,025
Profit/(loss) before tax BREERF (E18) 93,812 86,638 25,566  (194,868)  (272,015)
Profit/(loss) for the year REZRF, (FE) 80,129 69,441 18,337  (185,897)  (280,615)
Profit/(loss) attributable to KARHEE AEN
owners of the Company wHL (EE) 69,367 69,614 19,367  (185,896)  (280,614)
Profitability 7|
Gross margin FEH=E 13.7% 13.9% 12.2% 11.6% 23.2%
Net profit/(loss) margin wrl, (EiE) X 8.4% 6.3% 2.1% (23.0%) (29.4%)
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Revenue Profit/(loss) Attributable to
Wz Owners of the Company
KA BHEE NEMEFR,(FE)
1,200,000 - 1,096,071 122;222 _69,367 69,614 .
1,000,000 950,079 . 952,957 0 . . : . .
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200,000 -250,000 F
o , , , , -300,000 = (280,614)
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
20144 20154 20164 20174 20184
RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT AR%®TR
Financial position B AR
Total assets MEE 441214 465,010 787,727 819,219 611,762
Total equity MRS 123,485 193,554 457,275 272,730 22,723
Total liabilities waE 317,729 270,662 330,452 546,489 589,039
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ANARIHEA A
the Company FEIEER 105,214 193,428 458,179 273,635 23,629
Cash and cash equivalents* Re KRS EEY 70,216 60,206 154,079 75,651 80,343
*  As stated in the statement of cash flows * RS RERRAE
Total Assets Equity Attributable to
wmEE Owners of the Company
RAREE ABGRER
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT 77797 819.219 AR¥ETT
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(;hairman’s Statement
FERSE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to the
Shareholders for their attention and support to the Company, and present
the report of the Group for the Reporting Period.

The year of 2018 saw the pharmaceutical industry heavily influenced by
another round of new policies. China is overhauling its healthcare system
by asking eleven cities to pilot a “bulk procurement” of 33 medicines,
which firstly took place in Shanghai. As such, this bulk procurement
scheme would presumably acquire large amount of drugs at lower costs,
resulting in significant price cut for these drugs, profit plunges for the
pharmaceutical industry and decrease of overall health spending. Even
though the new procurement scheme is not expected to be adopted
nationwide in 2019, it is certain that both generic drugs and brand-name
drugs will bear the brunt of price cuts in the long run.

Among the segmented markets immune to the impact of the bulk
procurement scheme, the blood plasma market takes advantage of
a high degree of certainty because of the difficulty of applying for
plasma collection centers and stringent industry regulations. This sector
is primarily driven by the rapid growth of demand; increase in revenue
and robust growth can be expected when sales channels reshaped and
terminal demand met.

During the Reporting Period, with the continuing roll-out of the “Two-
Invoice System” the Group went on to execute its business strategy for
the previous year whereby a substantial amount of financial and human
resources has been channeled into the development of a new sales and
marketing network. All these efforts are aimed at striving to accommodate
the requirements of new policies during the great transition period of
China’s pharmaceutical industry. Our gradually remodeled sales network
enables the Group’s sales management and network channels to reach
the end market, extending the coverage from major hospitals in large
urban centers to those in prefecture-level cities and tier 2 and tier 3 cities.
The Group is determined to keep deepening our market penetration, and
thus establishing a precise management system that allows our promoters
to access each and every one of these hospitals.

EHHEARR :

RAEBRREFGUBURREA QR NEDEER
RAROEH - WHU ERAEENRER 2 HE -

2018 F B EITEMNBRARTHTRKES| - SFAEN
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ERBAE2019F T ECEIME - ERINRE RIEHR
B R BRI —ETER -

@ SERBRRNASEHD  MRRMITEH
REFULRBHEARN - B - BEEBBRE T HITRRE
EMEGR - BEAMRNRITENERIEZHFT NS
BRNRN B - REBHUBROEZ WL R RL R FIIE
RICES - AIATERIEUREE N SRR -

WEBR - [ME JEEEELE RSB NG miE
# o AREEET L —FENKLERE  BERAK
ENFAMANRARBROE HAMER - IRE
Rl ST RN B Z R NEIRE R BRI EK - B
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TEIRMH2ER  NEIETESRBRIGEHE
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Chairman’s Statement E[EHE

Throughout the Reporting Period, the total number of Human Albumin
supplied to the Chinese market has reached 48.15 million vials,
representing a 14.5% rise from 2017. Following plasma fractionators and
sub-distributors’ inventory pile-up and their subsequent effort to reduce
inventory level in 2016 and 2017; Human Albumin supply recorded an
obvious recovery in 2018 implying the completion of de-stocking and the
start of inventory replenishment. We have reason to believe the overall
inventory of the industry will continue to drop sharply in 2019, and, with
the completion of “Two-Invoice System” reform, Human Albumin market
will usher in a new era of recovery.

Revenue of Human Albumin products during the Reporting Period stood
at RMB548.4 million, representing an increase of approximately 34.6% or
RMB141.1 million as compared to 2017. Antibiotic products contributed
revenue of RMB396.4 million, with an increase of approximately 21.6%.
The Group's gross profit during the Reporting Period was RMB221.0
million, recording a rise of RMB127.5 million from 2017’s gross profit
of RMB93.5 million. Such dramatic growth is attributable to the rapid
increase in the retail price of antibiotic products caused by the Group’s
new sales model in response to the “Two-Invoice System”.

Owing to the supplier’s successful production scale-up and the Group's
efforts to reduce inventory since the beginning of 2018, the Group
has distributed about 1.95 million vials of Human Albumin during the
Reporting Period, representing a substantial increase of 44.8% year-on-
year. At the same time, in the process of sales model transformation and
the seizure of the terminal market, product selling price has been lowered,
which brought down the product gross profit of Human Albumin as
compared to 2017, although the sales was rebounded. In 2019, the
Group will further take advantage of the stability of sales channels and
the recovery of sales to restore or increase the sales price of Human
Albumin in order to enhance its profitability.

In addition, in order to further enhance our competitiveness and market
presence in the plasma product (Human Albumin) and antibiotic market,
ever since 2017, the Group has taken steps to terminate or suspend
business of some non-major products, such as Taurolite and Esafosfina.
During the Reporting Period, such business restructuring resulted in a
decrease of approximately RMB65.1 million in the sales revenue of such
non-major products as compared with that in 2017, and the loss on
disposal of relevant inventories during the Reporting Period amounted to
approximately RMB117.9 million.

2018 ¥ EIMABEEERAR AR

HREHAN - FRAMBEATISARMES B48.15
BEMR  BR2017FEF145%MABIER - EEFET
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Chairman’s Statement E[EHRE

Based on the comprehensive analysis above, the Group recorded a net loss
of RMB280.6 million during the Reporting Period, representing a further
loss of RMB94.7 million as compared with the net loss of RMB185.9
million in last year.

Although a huge loss was recorded during the Reporting Period, the
Group firmly advanced the established business model transformation
plan, and gradually completed the localization of its marketing network
and the establishment of the terminal network. With the completion
of the business restructuring, the Group is able to cope with the
challenges posed by the “Two-Invoice System” reform in 2019, while
continuing to expand its presence of the major products in various market
segments, relying on the new terminal sales network. After the intensive
implementation of medical policies, there has been a flattening of the
distribution channels, while the ultimate demand remained unchanged.
As the blood plasma industry led by Human Albumin gradually recovers,
the Group will cooperate more closely with manufacturers and sub-
distributors to enhance academic marketing with more financial funding,
to expand brand awareness and strive to achieve rapid recovery of
distribution business. Based on the good cooperation between the Group
and the supplier — Octapharma, at the end of 2018, we have reached an
exclusive distribution cooperation arrangement within Mainland China
for the exclusive distribution of Human Albumin products manufactured
in Octapharma’s Austria and Germany plants starting from 2019.
Such cooperation is believed to lay a solid foundation for the Group’s
business in 2019. In addition, the Group will actively seek upstream and
downstream industry opportunities in the pharmaceutical industry in
accordance with the development plan, and strive to expand its business
in the fields of drug research and development and pharmaceutical cold
chain logistics, in order to enhance the Group’s core competitiveness and
profitability stability.

Apart from the business of the Group as described above, the Group
believes that outstanding staff and quality management talents are crucial
to successful promotion of its strategic development. Therefore, we also
recruit new employees for key positions such as system establishment and
management, marketing, human resources and hospital management and
continuously strengthening management ability and providing internal
training to staff. While continuing to develop its system of internal control
and risk management, the Group also paid significant attention to its
corporate social responsibilities and practised them during the Group's
governance.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our
Shareholders, customers and partners for their trust and support during
the Group's difficult time, and all the employees of the Group for their
hard work and contribution. The Group will seize the market opportunities
brought by the upgrade and transformation of the pharmaceutical
industry and continuously improve its competitiveness, in an effort to
maximise value for the Shareholders, customers and other stakeholders.

Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

29 March 2019

HER ERERESTT - ANEBEERSHRESEHRFE
BARK2806BET  HEEFHNEEFEARE
185.9B & LI MARKIL 7THETT °

HAREHANRE T ARER  BRE-FELAKE
BEHE TSR R BERH TS
AR T M B T2 - BEE X TEBMN T
X+ ARSEERESNFE20195 B AN B[ MR |2k
ERrRROPREL - BB IERT AR I 31 B AN R R
AT EEMESEMDO TSN o Al BEHEN
SHEEE  RRFRALAELR - HERBEINRF
b - BBEUAMBER SRRNMAERBITEZRHE
# 0 AEEE2019F 4 BRI HAE NZ YA
ﬁ BRI ABBINASRIHERE - ZRE 5 mENT
87 NFEETRN—FEERBEEEBNRERE
# o ERAEBEREERREFEBNRESE 1
2018 R A S [BI B BLER o F ARG = A — TRE Z L I Y
BIEZHE - B2019F RS BIAE BRI IHE R
MIBMEETREENAMABER @ BEFNAE

B RAEE2019FNEBETFREMNER o 1)
AEETEREERRE  BHRSREETENLT

MEXKE - BHAREENNELBESHBYAE
RILHZETS - USIERE B0 S N MBFRE
14 o

B DB AN R B R FAAS - AEREREESH

BT MEZEREIEATT 5T HE 8 AN 5 B 1 B g 3%
REMEE  AUHENEEZERNER - MIZEH

Aﬂéﬁ& Eﬁﬁ% EMEZ2ME FRIEHAR
TEr&LE B N B TAEE - REITSEER

MW%%%&HA” PRAER  RERICEMS
A YEKEERTRITEXNMERT -

RiR AABRKREFEHRUBR - EFPREEE
HEASBEEERNHERGETOTDERNIIT - UK
AEEZBREREMBNBIMBERBBUAR DN
AEBESILERETRARBNOTIZRE - TR
THEEEFN  BER  FRPASEBSALERAE
S

R
T

201943 HA29H

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018



Management

Discussion
and Analysis

B

ERESED

‘ectaphama

3

v - AmaES  [PEEETE
; . 10g (20%, 50ml)/H 0g (20%.5

20%.,50ml)/#{




10

Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE W& D

BUSINESS REVIEW

With extensive experience in the distribution of pharmaceutical imports,
the Group provides comprehensive MPCM services for small and
medium-sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers. Meanwhile, the
Group is the only MPCM services provider for imported blood products in
the PRC, leveraging our quality product portfolio that focuses on blood
products and nationwide marketing and promotion network. The Group’s
existing product portfolio encompasses many quality products produced
by small and medium-sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers,
covering multiple therapeutic areas such as anti-infective drugs, and blood
products. Included in such products are blood products (which are in short
supply in the Chinese market) and prescription drugs which can meet the
high demand for high-quality drugs with excellent clinical results among
medical institutions and patients.

1. Core Products

Human Albumin Solution

Dating back to the early of 1940s, blood products have undergone
decades of fast development. Such products have grown from
Human Albumin at the very beginning to the current 20-plus
categories in three series, encompassing such sub-categories as
Human Albumin, immune globulin and blood coagulation factors.
Given the approval granted to new indications and an improved rate
of diagnosis, the Plasma Protein Therapeutics Association predicts
that the market demand for blood products will retain a high-speed
growth around the globe. In these two years, as many new plasma
collection stations have been put into service, the amount of plasma
collection increases every year and production capacity of domestic
manufacturers also increased rapidly. As the largest sales category
in the market of blood products in the PRC, Human Albumin is the
only kind of blood product allowed to be imported at the present,
and the lot release of its imported and domestic categories maintains
a rapid growth every year. In 2018, the annual lot release amounted
to 48.15 million vials (2017: 41.22 million vials), among which the
percentages of imported and domestic categories were 59.9%
and 40.1% respectively. Manufactured by Octapharma, a global
leading manufacturer of blood products, and included as a Category
B product in the National Reimbursement Drug List (“NRDL"), the
Human Albumin Solution operated by the Group is used to remedy
the shock caused by hypovolemia, remove edema and poisonous
substances, and treat neonatal hyper-bilirubinemia. Based on the
lot release of the Human Albumin Solution in the PRC in 2018, the
market share of the Human Albumin Solution manufactured by
Octapharma was approximately 8.7%.
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Axetine (Cefuroxime Sodium for injection)

Manufactured by Medochemie Ltd. from Cyprus, the Axetine
operated by the Group is classified as the second generation of
cephalosporin antibiotics. It is used to remedy bacterial infections
caused by sensitive bacteria, including respiratory infection, urinary
tract infection, and skin and soft tissue infections. The product has
been included in the National Catalogue of Essential Pharmaceuticals
and the Category A products of NRDL.

Medocef (Cefoperazone Sodium for injection)

Also manufactured by Medochemie Ltd. and operated by the Group,
Medocef is classified as the third generation of cephalosporin
antibiotics. The product is used to remedy bacterial infections caused
by sensitive lactamase, including respiratory infection, urinary tract
infection, biliary tract infection, abdominal infection, skin and soft
tissue infections, pelvic infection and septicemia. The product is also
effective in treating the brain infections caused by influenza and
mMeningococcus.

Marketing Network Development

The Group provides its marketing service through its internal teams
and their cooperation with third-party promoters. Hence, one of
the Group’s key development strategies is to continuously expand
the marketing network and enhance distributor and promotor
management. During the Reporting Period, the Group took “Flexible,
Professional and Efficient” as its objectives, and strove to develop
its marketing team in respect of the ability to quickly responding
to market environment changes and to execute operational plans
with high efficiency. Furthermore, the Group sorted out its human
resources in each division. The marketing team had its structure
streamlined and its performance management further refined,
with optimised allocation of sales resources that are invested in
each product and higher efficiency of business operation. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had an internal marketing team of 55
members.

At the same time, the implementation of “Two-Invoice System” took
place at a faster pace in each province. To positively respond to such
implementation, the existing structure of distributor network was
comprehensively sorted out. Based on sufficient communication with
its distributors, the Group has further extended its sales through the
collaboration between its internal sales team and local distributors.
Originally, promoters were allocated by region. Now, the promoters
are matched with each hospital of the regions concerned, which
enables the Company’s sales network to reach the end market.
Besides, the coverage of the network has also been extended from
larger top Class-lll hospitals to provincial, municipal and county-level
hospitals, to keep improving market penetration, thereby establishing
a precision management system that each hospital will have its
respective promoters.
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In addition, the Group has further improved the direct participation
of its internal marketing team in product marketing activities.
In this regard, approaches include regularly training third-party
promoters on product knowledge, hosting or taking part in medical
or pharmaceutical conferences, symposiums and product seminars
to directly partake in the academic promotion activities of products,
and extend the opinion leadership network for the main therapeutic
areas of products. All the approaches serve to ensure accurate and
timely delivery of product information to doctors. In addition to
product promotion, the Group has taken the initiative to invite third-
party promoters from across the country to discuss and interpret
the major impacts of national policies, to increase the added value
and attraction of the Group’s training. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had over 500 distributors and promoters in 31 provinces,
municipalities and autonomous regions in the PRC, covering
approximately 1,200 Class-lll hospitals, 1,500 Class-Il hospitals,
and over 1,200 Class-I hospitals, pharmacies and other medical
institutions.

The Cold Chain Storage Facility

Considering the future demand for business expansion and the
significant demand for pharmaceutical cold chains in the storage
and delivery of blood products and bio-products, the Group has
constructed a cold chain storage facility in Shuangliu District,
Chengdu, Sichuan Province. The Group has completed the first
phase of its cold chain storage facility (15,000 square meters), which
can satisfy the Group's storage demand and provide a better control
for the quality and safety of the blood products in our product
portfolio. Additionally, we will be able to provide third parties
with high quality pharmaceutical cold-chain storage services upon
completing the second-phase construction (which includes 25,000
square meters of cold chain storage and 47,000 square meters of
research and development base), which will be a new business unit
of the Group. Currently, the Group is working on the application to
Shuangliu District Government for land transfer.

Except as mentioned above, the Group does not hold any significant
investments and did not have any major acquisitions or disposal
by subsidiaries, affiliates and joint venture companies during the
Reporting Period.

Research and Development

The Group has entered into a collaboration agreement with the
China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences to develop “Sinco
I”, a new realgar-based chemical medicine for treating acute
promyelocytic leukemia. The collaboration aims for the upstream
extension of the Group’s business and the future provision of a
new medicine for patients in the therapeutic area. The Group is
currently making efforts in designing and building a pilot plant for
pilot experiments. During the Reporting Period, the Group incurred
RMB2.1 million as the research and development expenses in
developing Sinco |.
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OUTLOOK

In 2018, the domestic and global macro-economic environment still
remains in uncertainty. Under the top-level strategy for a “Healthy China”,
the Chinese pharmaceutical and healthcare reform will enter into a crucial
year that features full implementation of multiple medical-reform policies,
optimization of industrial structures, upgrade of technologies and facilities,
and more support for international development. Meanwhile, there will
be a greater disparity in corporate and product landscape, together with
faster industrial integration, presenting both opportunities and challenges.
Factors, such as aging population, greater health awareness, changes
to disease spectrum and application of new technologies, will generate
long-term strong demand to support the development of the Chinese
pharmaceutical industry. As an important sector in the PRC relating to
people’s livelihood, the pharmaceutical and healthcare industry still enjoy
a strong growth momentum and huge demand.

After the pile-up of channel inventory in 2017 and the gradual inventory
reduction in 2018, we expect the year of 2019 will witness a turning point
for the blood products industry, with Human Albumin as the leading
product to usher in a year of recovery. It is mainly because the demand
after the Two-Invoice System'’s implementation has not disappeared while
the channel access has changed, with sales channels becoming more flat,
manufacturers and end customers cooperating more closely, and more
investment being made in academic marketing and brand promotion.
Manufacturers’ business concept is gradually shifting from price-oriented
to brand-oriented. The Group will continue with its corporate development
strategies in optimizing the marketing network and the product portfolio,
and maintaining the business of blood products and antibiotics as a core
therapeutic area. By concentrating its advantageous resources, the Group
spares no effort in reaching a speedy completion of the adjustment on
sales pattern under the new policies for stabilizing its business. In respect
of expanding its marketing network, the Group will strengthen the
control over its sales team, improve its incentive mechanism, continuously
promote presence in the downstream of marketing network channels,
and extend it to the end market by establishing multi-mode cooperation
with hospitals and pharmacies, all in a bid to contribute higher profit
to the Group, develop core marketing capabilities and build a quality
terminal promotion network to accommodate more products.

Apart from the above, the Group will continue to enhance the
development of its internal control system and risk management, pay
much attention to and fulfill its corporate social responsibilities throughout
the Group's governance. The Group will offer its staff a great platform for
career development, and keep working to create a greater value for the
Shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue
The Group recorded revenue of RMB953.0 million for the Reporting

Period, representing an increase of RMB146.3 million, or 18.1% as

compared to RMB806.7 million in 2017, which could be further analysed as

follows:
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Wz
REBERFEPASFSR=EARKIS3.0EET - &
2017 FMARKS06.7TEB T MARK 146358
TC 0 HEIE18.1% @ AlE—FH DT ¢

2018 2017
2018%F 20174
RMB million % of revenue RMB million % of revenue
AREEET Wkt AREBET Wbt
Human Albumin Solution AMBEBEFIR 1) 548.4 57.5 407.3 50.5
Antibiotics nEER 2) 396.4 41.6 326.1 40.4
Other products HinER 3) 8.2 0.9 73.3 9.1
Total A5t 953.0 100.0 806.7 100.0
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Benefited from the performance of the Group’s marketing work, revenue
from sales of Human Albumin Solution increased by RMB141.1 million,
or by approximately 34.6% for the Reporting Period as compared with
2017, among which sales volume increased by approximately 44.8%.
2017 is the first year to implement the “Two-Invoice System” policy across
the pharmaceutical circulation industry, and the Group had adjusted its
market channels in responding to the policy, which led to a certain extent
of decline in sales volume in 2017. After more than a year’s improvement
and promotion, the Group’s market channels of Human Albumin Solution
has been recovered effectively, so sales volume during the Reporting Period
increased significantly as compared with prior year. However, due to the
growth in the overall supply of Human Albumin in the Chinese market since
2017, its market price falls, and the Group's average selling price of Human
Albumin Solution decreased by approximately 6.9% as compared with prior
year.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from sales of antibiotics increased
by RMB70.3 million as compared with 2017, representing an increase of
approximately 21.6%. The increase was mainly caused by the Group's active
adjustment to its marketing model and sales channels in responding to the
implementation of “Two-Invoice System” policy, which led to an increase in
average selling price of antibiotics.

As the Group has concentrated its resources on the business of its core
products such as Human Albumin Solution and antibiotics, revenue from sales
of other products decreased by approximately RMB65.1 million during the
Reporting Period as compared with 2017.
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Cost of sales

The Group recorded cost of sales of RMB731.9 million for the Reporting
Period, representing an increase of RMB18.7 million, or 2.6% as
compared with RMB713.2 million in 2017, among which (1) cost of sales
of Human Albumin Solution increased by RMB142.2 million, or 36.0%
as compared with 2017; and (2) cost of sales of antibiotics and other
products decreased by RMB65.6 million and RMB57.9 million, or 26.6%
and 81.3% respectively. The fluctuation of cost of sales was mainly
affected by sales volume.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded gross profit of
RMB221.0 million, representing an increase of RMB127.5 million as
compared with RMB93.5 million in 2017; while gross profit margin
increased from 11.6% to 23.2% for the Reporting Period as compared
with 2017. The increase mainly reflected the Group’s adjustment of its
sales model, which led to a rapid increase in selling price of antibiotics.
Meanwhile, benefiting from the deduction of purchase price and tariff,
unit the cost of sales of the Group’s products also declined.

Other income and gains

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other income and
gains of RMB12.1 million, representing an increase of RMB7.9 million
as compared with 2017, mainly attributed to the gain from a foreign
currency option contract of approximately RMB6.4 million; and foreign
exchange gain of RMB3.4 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses
amounted to approximately RMB268.6 million, representing an increase
of RMB172.7 million as compared with 2017, which was mainly caused
by the significant increase in marketing and promotion expenses during
the Reporting Period, as the Group expanded the marketing network
and strengthened the cooperation with third-party promotors. Selling
and distribution expenses incurred during the Reporting Period included:
(1) marketing and promotion expenditure related to sales of products of
approximately RMB186.0 million, representing an increase of RMB110.1
million as compared with 2017; (2) market exploration and product
promotion expenditure of approximately RMB74.6 million in key regions
cooperating with distributors, representing an increase of RMB63.7 million
as compared with 2017; (3) the total of staff costs and other expenditure
incurred by sales team of approximately RMB6.2 million, representing a
decrease of RMBO0.6 million as compared with 2017; and (4) freight of
RMB1.7 million, representing a decrease of RMBO0.5 million as compared
with 2017.
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Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded administrative expenses
of RMB55.5 million, which remained stable as compared with RMB57.3
million recorded in 2017.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets

During the Reporting Period, the Group estimated the expected credit
losses with reference to the historical records, current conditions and
forecast of future economic conditions, and recorded impairment loss
on trade receivables and financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets of RMB1.0 million and RMBO.5 million
respectively.

Impairment loss on goodwill

During the Reporting Period, the Group provided an impairment loss
of goodwill of RMB23.7 million (2017: RMB39.0 million), as a result of
the decline in the Group’s profitability led by the increase in selling and
distribution expenditure.

Other expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other expenses of
RMB121.1 million, representing an increase of RMB81.8 million as
compared with 2017, mainly affected by the following factors:

(1)  The Group has taken steps to terminate or suspend the business
of some non-major products, such as Taurolite, since 2017, and
concentrated resources on the marketing and promotion of the
Group’s core products. During the Reporting Period, the Group
incurred loss on disposal of non-major inventories of approximately
RMB117.9 million (2017: inventory impairment provision of
RMB25.2 million); and

In 2017, the Group recorded losses in relation to foreign currency
exchange of RMB10.1 million in aggregate, while during the
Reporting Period, no such losses incurred.
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Finance costs

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded finance costs of
RMB34.8 million, representing an increase of RMB1.1 million as compared
with 2017, including (1) interest expenses on bank and other loans of
RMB27.6 million, representing an increase of RMB9.3 million as compared
with 2017; (2) bond interest expenses of RMB6.2 million, representing
a decrease of RMB4.8 million as compared with 2017; and (3) interest
expenses on discounted bills receivable of RMB1.0 million, a drop of
RMB3.4 million as compared with 2017.

Income tax expense

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded income tax expense
of RMB8.6 million, mainly because certain marketing and promotion
expenditure, interest expenses on other borrowings and loss on disposal
of inventories that are not deductible for tax, and tax losses of certain
subsidiaries were not recognised.

Loss for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded net loss of RMB280.6
million, representing a further loss of RMB94.7 million as compared with
2017.

Inventories

Inventory balances amounted to RMB214.8 million as of 31 December
2018 (31 December 2017: RMB291.2 million), representing a decrease
of RMB76.4 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2017. The
main reason for the decrease was because the Group has enhanced the
marketing and promotion of the products during the Reporting Period,
which led to a drop in the inventory balance of Human Albumin Solution
of RMB61.7 million. Besides, inventory balance of antibiotics declined
by RMB7.8 million, and inventory balance of other products declined by
RMB6.9 million.

The Group made a one-off import of Human Albumin Solution of
approximately 720,000 vials in the fourth quarter of 2018, accounting
for approximately 1/3 of the Group’s annual sales volume, which led to
a decline in inventory turnover. During the Reporting Period, the Group's
average inventory turnover days was 126 days, increased by 16 days from
110 days in 2017.
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Trade and bills receivables

The balance of trade receivables amounted to RMB22.8 million as of 31
December 2018 (31 December 2017: RMB26.5 million), mainly in relation
to the sales of antibiotics. During the Reporting Period, the Group has
provided certain distributors and commercial pharmaceutical delivery
companies credit terms ranging from 45 days to one year based on the
sales conditions of the market.

The balance of bills receivable amounted to RMB3.4 million as of
31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: RMB10.6 million), mainly in
relation to the sales of Human Albumin Solution.

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

As of 31 December 2018, prepayments, other receivables and other
assets including in current assets were RMB64.8 million (31 December
2017: RMB146.7 million), representing a decrease of RMB81.9 million as
compared with the year-end balance of 2017, mainly due to: (1) prepaid
value-added tax decreased by RMB54.0 million, as the increase in revenue
led to the increase in value-added tax output; (2) amortisation of prepaid
marketing and promotion service fees of RMB74.6 million which has
been charged to profit or loss during the Reporting Period; (3) increase in
prepayment in relation to purchase of inventories and import value-added
tax of RMB39.7 million; and (4) increase in purchasing deposit of RMB14.3
million.

Trade payables

As of 31 December 2018, trade payables amounted to RMB106.9 million
(31 December 2017: RMB22.5 million), representing an increase of
RMB84.4 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2017, among
which payables for the purchase of Human Albumin Solution increased
by approximately RMB53.6 million, payables for the purchase of other
products increased by approximately RMB51.7 million, and payables for
purchase of antibiotics decreased by approximately RMB21.0 million.
Average trade payable turnover days increased from 17 days in 2017 to
32 days for the Reporting Period.

Other payables and accruals

As of 31 December 2018, other payables and accruals amounted to
RMB205.5 million (31 December 2017: RMB70.0 million), representing an
increase of RMB135.5 million as compared with the year-end balance of
2017. On the one hand, payables in relation to marketing, promotion and
consulting services decreased by RMB13.4 million, and deposits received
from distributors decreased by RMB16.3 million; on the other hand,
interest payable on other borrowings increased by RMB14.8 million; and
as of 31 December 2018, the Group has interest-bearing payables to an
independent third party of RMB144.2 million, which settled the payments
to the supplier of Human Albumin Solution on behalf of the Group.
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Borrowings

As of 31 December 2018, the Group has an aggregate borrowing
of RMB145.0 million and repayable within one year, with detailed

information as set out below:

fﬁ TA

MR2018F 12 A31H « AEBMEREFT AR 145.0
BET  WEAR—FREER  FBEHROT

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREFT

Interest-bearing bank loans FESEITER 5,000 157,713
Interest-bearing other borrowings Bse JM = 140,000 118,102
Bonds (EE2 - 133,856
Total &&t 145,000 409,671

Other borrowings of RMB140 million at the end of the Reporting Period

were borrowed from an independent third party, Mr. Gui Guoping
("Mr. Gui"), who is not a connected person of the Company, in April
2018 with an interest rate of 13.2% per annum for the repayment of
principal and interest of the company bonds due in the same month.

Gearing ratio

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group’s gearing ratio was

calculated as follows:

HEBRT EEMENAB2018F4AMBLE=FH
Gui GuopingZt A (LA GEARRIMBEEAL)

BRAREI140BE T FFE13.2%

FriSsIEE

RARMEERR AZMNARERAZ RFE -

= [ faezs

R|ERR - AEBENBELRFAEDT

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HESRITRAEMMER 145,000 275,815
Trade payables B S ENFIE 106,901 22,522
Other payables and accruals At fE T FRIE R AT RIE 205,525 70,029
Tax payables FERTRIR 1,943 2,546
Bonds B - 133,856
Less: Cash and cash equivalents A ReRESEEY (80,330) (22,710)
Less: Pledged bank balances A BRI (13) (52,941)
Net debt@ BEFEEe 379,026 429,117
Equity TEat 22,723 272,730
Equity and net debt® ek B EFREe 401,749 701,847
Gearing ratio@® B &K 94.3% 61.1%

2018 ¥ EIMABEEERAR AR
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Liquidity and capital resources
The following table sets out a condensed summary of the Group's
consolidated statement of cash flows during the Reporting Period:

MEE T RERKIR
TRAEAEENRBREHANGEH S RNERNEARE
=

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities ESEENFRTS (T )R & %58 1) 105,795 (358,654)
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities WEEEE(FTR)IRESEE 2) (1,630) 71,985
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities BB EENFRE,(FTA )RS F5E 3) (99,502) 209,498
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReMReEEY
equivalents #mCRd)FEE 4,663 (77,171)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SNEEREET L - JFHE 29 (1,257)
Cash and cash equivalents FUHRERESEED 4)
at beginning of the year 75,651 154,079
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FREEFIREEEY 4) 80,343 75,651

4)

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash inflow from operating
activities amounted to approximately RMB105.8 million (2017: net cash
outflow of RMB358.7 million), which was mainly due to the increase in cash
from sales during the Reporting Period, and the decrease in cash used in
payment for goods, import taxes and charges as compared with prior year.

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities

The Group did not incur significant capital expenditure during the Reporting
Period, and net cash outflow from investing activities amounted to RMB1.6
million (2017: net cash inflow of RMB72.0 million).

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group's net cash outflow from financing
activities amounted to approximately RMB99.5 million (2017: net cash inflow
of RMB209.5 million), including (i) repayment of bonds of RMB129.1 million;
and (i) payment of interests of RMB20.0 million. The cash outflow was
partially offset by (i) net proceeds from bank and other borrowings and other
payables and accruals of RMB13.2 million; and (ii) net proceeds from issuance
of convertible bonds of RMB30.6 million.

The following table sets out the Group's cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the Reporting Period:

KEEBTE (TR RE F8
REEREHALETHELERSFRANARE
105.8 A& C(20174F - W FRBARKEIBTEE
L) WY EZHRBEHABEESRNESRAL
e REZMNNEFTAREOREFAREEEFR
DRTER ©

BEEEE (AR TR
AAEERBEHRNBEREARY  REZDEE
REeFREARB1.6BEIT(2017F : BEFRAA
R¥720887T) °

BMEEBAE (TR REFE
AEBBEHNRETHEERSFRENOARE
99.5EE (20174 : WEFRMAARKE2095HE
7o)+ ERGVEEESFI B ARKEI12 188+ KR>)F|
BYHARKE2005ET - BE&RHBHHOETRE
s B R H e BB R R SRIBR TS RIBFEA
R¥13288T  R>VBITAIRBESEIIEFHE
AREE30.6 5 EITATIH ©

TRIFIAEERMERRNRE RIRSEEY

2018 2017

20185 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETT

Denominated in RMB AR E 25,849 79,897
Denominated in US$ PAZETTEME 53,490 3,303
Denominated in HK$ A TTEHE 937 1,451
Denominated in Singapore dollars LAFT B3 TR HE 67 -
80,343 75,651
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Foreign currency risk
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except
for certain items below:

Certain bank balances are denominated in US$, HK$ and Singapore
dollars;

Purchase of products from overseas suppliers and relevant trade
payables are denominated in US$; and

Certain bank loans and bonds are denominated in US$ and HK$.

SN R\
FEBABLEERABAARKE - TFIEA
BR5h -

BT IRITHIRIARTT - B RIINRITAHE

ASMEE R I B MR B S F0R AR
TTAHE AR

ETRITRERERNUET  BEE -

The Group manages the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies by  AEBEFZBEBINE RS LEIRINEEBE KD » I
foreign currency forward and option contracts, and does not enter into  £EE]SIF{AIEHR S o
any hedging transactions.
Capital expenditure EARRX
The following table sets out the Group's capital expenditure for the  TE#HI|AEBEBRMREAMNERHY ¢
periods indicated:
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFT
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWME - BELRE 1,412 29,802
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — AR BB A &) - 6,616
1,412 36,418
Indebtedness (£
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the LA T ARNEEEEE BN HREAREN G LRBH
Reporting Period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as  FIEIERIER, -
follows:
31 December 2018
2018%12H31H
Less than 3to 12
On demand 3 months months Total
REREKE PR=EA =ZE+=EA HEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%¥TR AR%¥®TR AR¥Tx
Interest-bearing bank FHESRITREMER
and other borrowings - 9,583 141,519 151,102
Trade payables JETE 5508 - 52,377 54,524 106,901
Other payables H b3R8 1,396 177,688 18,596 197,680
1,396 239,648 214,639 455,683

2018 ¥ EIMABEEERAR AR
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2017
20174
Less than 31012
On demand 3 months months Total
REXRE LPR=@A =&=+=f@A Ha%E

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETRE ARETT AREBTE

Interest-bearing bank and other ETEMRTT R EALER
borrowings - 209,696 71,512 281,208
Trade payables B 5 EFIA - 22,522 - 22,522
Other payables H b fE S 70E 1,262 32,395 34,931 68,588
Bonds BE5 - 138,569 - 138,569
1,262 403,182 106,443 510,887

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as of 31 December 2018.

Pledge of assets
As of 31 December 2018, the net carrying amounts of the Group'’s
pledged assets were set out as follows:

HAREE

TN

R2018F12A31H  XEEBEEAERNABE

BEEIKH
K2018%F 128310 » REEC KB EENREFE
YT -

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
20184 20174
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
For obtaining bank and other borrowings BRESRITREMBER
— Buildings —&F = 84,725
— Inventories —FE 147,516 125,739
- Bank balances —IRTTHE R - 30,000
For issuance of letters of credit and billings ARFAZERE AR ESR
— Bank balances —RITHE R 13 22,941
Dividend RE

The Directors resolved not to declare any final dividend for the Reporting
Period (2017: Nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 129 employees. For
the Reporting Period, the total staff costs of the Group were RMB13.2
million (2017: RMB15.1 million).

The Group’s employee remuneration policy is determined by taking into
account factors such as remuneration in respect of the local market, the
overall remuneration standard in the industry, the inflation level, corporate
operating efficiency and employee performance. The Group conducts
performance appraisals once every year for its employees, the results of

ExgrEdfen@mE NEREMRARS (2017
FE)

B E & FHME R

M2018512A318 - AEE LB 129%EE - RS
B AEEBEREIABI ARK13.28ET(2017
F:ARKISI1BET) °

AREREFHBERIZEBABMELTHOFHM - 17
ENBBHIMEE  BRKE - CRELRENESR
KAERERMETE - ARBEEFREEFRKRBAT
%o FEHFSRILEAFTEREEEEMISE
R - AEEREREE TERGRELAZEREEE
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which are applied in annual salary reviews and promotional assessments.
The Group's employees are considered for annual bonuses according
to certain performance criteria and appraisals results. Social insurance
contributions are made by the Group for its PRC employees in accordance
with the relevant PRC regulations.

The Group also provides continuous learning and training programs to its
employees to enhance their skills and knowledge, so as to maintain their
competitiveness and improve customer service quality. The Group did
not experience any major difficulties in recruitment, nor did it experience
any material loss in manpower or suffer from any material labor dispute
during the Reporting Period.

In addition, the Company adopted a Share Option Scheme to recognize
the contribution by certain employees of the Group, and to provide them
with incentives in order to retain them for their continuing support in the
operation and development of the Group. As at 31 December 2018, there
were 16,850,000 outstanding options granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The principal risks and uncertainties identified by the Company which may
have material and adverse impact on our performance or operation are
summarized below. There may be other principal risks and uncertainties in
addition to those set out below which are not known to the Company or
which may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

o Failure to maintain relationships with existing suppliers — The Group
currently sources all the products in portfolio from limited suppliers,
either directly or indirectly through their sales agents.

o Exchange rate fluctuation — The Group’s purchase of products from
the overseas suppliers is denominated in US$, and certain items of
bank balances, other receivables, bank borrowings and bonds are
denominated in US$ and HK$.

o Increase in cost and competition as well as decrease in sales price
caused a decrease in gross profits.

o Experience prolonged delays or significant disruptions to the supply
of the products.

The Company believes that risk management is essential to the Group's
efficient and effective operation. The Company’s management assists the
Board in evaluating material risk exposure existing in the Group’s business,
and participates in formulating appropriate risk management and internal
control measures, and to ensure such measures are properly implemented
in daily operational management.

2018 ¥ EIMABEEERAR AR

FREA - AEBERBAETBEIERSES RS ®
HtERE R -

AEETAREERFESERE RIFIIFE - LURTTH
SHRBEERAR - BUERRENRFNLRS TS
RBNEE - ARERBEHMAERB T ELEBE
EREARE - TELREAEEASRKKERMNE
RNEBEM -

IESN - RARRMERESNZIU S EAEESE TREE
NEE - REFESRESEE - URBESEERIKR
EEMNEERERE - P2018F12A318 » BIRAE:T
B T T BB #E%5 16,850,000 RITE ©

B EE

AT B AR R RIFT R H = 2R M ABRRE SR %
ER\ R AR R e g HRMIMRBRREEEK
BEATHEE - RTIXHAREIN  ATEEAEMKRRS
ARBARHMIRHAERERRRAZ/EANETE
[\ N2 T BABAA 2= o

o  REEEBAHGHERAER - AEERFRHE
BROMEBEZNEBHERERNERBME
Emia -

o EXRH-AKEMESIMEBBENERINE
TTRHE - BETRITAS - BEKFIR - R’iT
BENEFIABHUAETRAEITTAE °

o EAIEN  BEREERBEFNEIBHABEERT
B o

o ENHEEBRFNEERIEARE -

AREEE RREREAEENEERERME T
DER - ARFRNEREBHEFT S EAEE R
PRES R EXRRAR - W2 EHE S BN RREERA
BRIESEE  UREREAFEEEETZERNE
RAtEE ©
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Human resources is one of the most important assets of the Group. The
Group strives to motivate its employees by providing them with a clear
career path as well as comprehensive and professional training courses. In
addition, the Group also offers competitive remuneration packages to its
employees, including basic salary, certain benefits and other performance
based incentives.

The Group purchases imported pharmaceutical products from overseas
suppliers, either directly or indirectly through their sales agents, and
generates revenue by on-selling them to hospitals and pharmacies
through distributors and deliverers. Our suppliers or their sales agents
have granted us the exclusive operation rights to market, promote and
manage sales channels for their products in the PRC. The Group maintains
a stable and long-term relationship with its suppliers by providing them
access to the growing PRC market with steady sales growth.

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to distributors or deliverers,
who on-sell the products to hospitals and pharmacies either directly or
indirectly. The Group maintains stable and long-term relationship with
its distributors or deliverers by providing them guidance, training and
support to the distributors to carry out more targeted field marketing and
promotion activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is primarily engaged in MPCM for imported pharmaceutical
products, a line of business that does not have material impact on the
environment. The key environmental impact from the Group’s operation
is related to electricity, water and paper consumption. The Group is fully
aware of the importance of sustainable environmental development, and
has implemented the following measures to encourage environmental
protection and energy conservation:

o Promoting paperless office
o Encouraging low-carbon commuting
e Ensuring reasonable energy consumption

During the Reporting Period, we did not incur any material cost of
compliance with relevant environmental laws and regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s business and operations are subject to related laws and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC. During the Reporting Period, we have in all material respects
complied with applicable laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC, which would have a
significant impact on the Group.

¥ EFERAE VR R
ANEBRRAEENEREEELZ —  ARBERARA
BTV B R BRI R e E BRI IIRIZ AR E
8o fpih - AEBTREBRFAETSHRE NN
BirE - BREATHS B TR REMEREER -

AEEBIMIEREZR B RHEERIERZRBE
A% - ARBBEIHHAEXRHEBE TERNERE
EEWE -  HEFKEHERERTRMAETEE
i EEEMKREIRIHERENBICEERN - M
REEHAERRBERERE  REERAEATE
BENTETE  BRERERHEER

ARERERE TREHIEAE  BREERET
Bl MEE - AREELHASLAHERRERE
B - REHERMIES] - BN - WEBRE
ERREZEHIEELD

REBRRERR

AEBTENFENERZH HERREETE &
BEB-RIEEEFERR - AEELEENNE
EREFERE KEBRFBERERH - ARERAR
FRAIRHEERNERL - WEEMATER - LIED
BRIR S EBRE -

o HITEMALHA
o WREMEHKHTT
o  MERAENAER

RIEHA - BAEEFRETHEBRREERIERM
EEEFEATL -

BFIERER
AEBENEBRZERBETRENS  KBAERRE
5§ - BERTEMABEAEREAR - RREHA - 7
EMBEERTHETHAEBAEEAZENMSE
5 REBAERRES FARTEMAERZEENE
e
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Basis of Preparation

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide"”) as set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules of the HKSE and complies with the
reporting principle of ‘comply or explain’ and compilation in relation
to key performance indicators (‘KPIs’) in the environmental area
under ESG Guide.

The data and information cited in this report are referenced from
the archived questionnaires, records, statistics and research of the
Company. This report covers an information period that spans from
1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018, exactly the financial year
covered by the 2018 annual report of the Company.

This report encompasses the information of the Company and all its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the ‘Group’).

Contact
Should you have any query or feedback on this report, please
contact us via the following methods:

a. Address: E5-1805, Global Center, 1700 Tianfu Avenue North,
Hi-tech Industrial Development Zone, Chengdu City, Sichuan
Province, PRC

b.  Tel: +86 28 62912988

c.  Fax: +86 28 62912922

d.  Email: sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.com

e.  Official website: http://www.sinco-pharm.com

Overview

With extensive experience in the distribution of pharmaceutical
imports, the Group provides comprehensive MPCM services for
small and medium-sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers.
Meanwhile, the Group, leveraging its quality product portfolio that
focuses on blood products nationwide marketing and promotion
network, is the only MPCM service provider for imported blood
products in the PRC. Currently, the Group's product portfolio
includes blood products, antibiotics, and other pharmaceutical
imports that enjoy high-speed growth or a sizable market.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

W& AR BB KR

AR ERIEE BT LR A = AT
GBS HERERREESD(RS  HERE
S DRE - W EFATHTRBENRER
AIRIRHS - MR RERRERS P RNRARS
PR REIRM RS -

AIREFT S| AMEIE R ERRR AR R & EFE
1% « io8E - FRTAIAZE o ARNsRed AR FT RIS
SETHE A EM A20185E1 A 1HE20184F12 A
31H - EARF018FFREAENTIMEFE —

RREREARBREAEME R R (SR AR
=]

Lk YN
MEAREREANTEEARMARBER - &
JOBIBIA T R BRI

a.  Hbib : PEPD)I|E AT S TR R AT A
JEE% 170058 3R ER AR 20E5-1805

b. & +86 2862912988
c.  {HE :+86 2862912922
d.  EIBHLUE : sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.com

e. BJ7#8u4 ¢ http://www.sinco-pharm.com

B

REEBEFEENE OB ESHER AT
NEVEERRIR AR A 8 IEENRBEIERTE -
RIE - AEEEHEAMKRRA /R ONBEER
MEMBZ2TENTTHRERERG - TPEE
A MBS mME—RTTH - EENCREE IR
fER - AEEHIRBEMAS BRMERSR - 11
ERREMSFIERKERETIHRERME O 5

-
[u[a g

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018



Core Values

Constant in pursuing excellence of product quality and
pharmaceutical technology services, the Group aspires to become a
top partner for overseas pharmaceutical businesses who intends to
enter the Chinese pharmaceutical market. Sticking to its core values
‘Simplicity, Innovation, National, Collaboration, and Openness’,
the Group wishes to deliver good corporate governance and fulfill
its environmental and social responsibilities, to realize sustainable
development and safeguard the investors, staff, suppliers,
distributors, governments, communities, financial institutions and
other stakeholders.

Stakeholder Identification and Communications
The Group will continue to maintain close connections and
communications with the stakeholders, and receive valuable opinion
from them each year. In order to decide the content and direction
of the annual report for the Reporting Period, we referred to the
analysis results of significant subjects raised by the stakeholders last
year and the relevant response.

Significant Subjects for Stakeholders and Response

Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRiE « 2R ERRE

BOMEESE

55 B TNET R Sk GRS R A B8 R R AN BR B R

EEV BIZR SN AR BB IS e
BEERY - AEEFAFES ’K(Slmphoty)

B R Al ¥ (Innovation) + % 78 & (National)

E € & (Collaboration) } F i £ & (Openness) #

ZOEER  WERNLSEES - HIRBEME

EAMBITERAFHEER  HEpERES

BT - HER - LHEE - BN - RS REE

ZEENKE = A

fEm AR BISRERE
REEBBEERS RS AREEEABRIE
B SEEHEEREMNERNESR - HMEN
FEENESAEABIBEREENHITER
tERRRUBRE A FERENNEMSA

BEABRETREREDE

Type of Stakeholders  Focus
EEAER BEEH TEEERA

Means of Communication

Response and Feedback

RPER R R

Shareholders/Investors Continuous, stable investment
returns

Timely information disclosure

Corporate operation in

compliance with laws and

Annual reports, interim reports and
announcements

General meetings

Roadshows/telephone conferences/
meet-and-greets

Publishing AGM notices and
resolutions according to
requlations

Timely disclosing corporate
information

BR/REE

regulations

FEBTMIRELR
=

&H?E)‘JL%«D

ARNERES

Media communication mechanism
Press conferences
Opinion monitoring
Consultation via telephone/email/
website
Investor visits
FERE  PHRERAE
[FEV N
BE/EiEes/ REE
Syl bl
HEEhe
1&@&3@‘]
@%/*ﬁ/%ﬁmu
REERD

Publishing disclosure
announcements and regular
reports according to regulations

Respond to investor's email/
telephone inquiries

BRTRAERRAFASAN
ik

BERBERAREER

IR TR E QST
wE

SR EEB M BEAR
RERFREETISAM
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Type of Stakeholders  Focus Means of Communication Response and Feedback
s AER BEEH FTEEBEAFN R FEER B8
Staff Training and career Direct communication Providing a healthy and safety
development Performance appraisal working environment
Remuneration and benefits Medical checkups Establishing a fair mechanism
Health and safety Training programmes for promotion
Staff opinion surveys Organizing staff activities
Safety management
8T Bl ER BEAR REEER - RENTERE
FNEER BRER B ATFRETHEE
REEZE 27 HBBETES
HEAIERAE
BEIEREN
ZEER
Suppliers Standard supplier management  Execution of orders/contracts Performing contracts as agreed
and purchase process Direct communication Maintaining long-term
Timely performance of contracts ~ Supplier management system collaboration suppliers
Corporate reputation Supplier archives Timely payment
Ensuring pharmaceutical quality
and safety
Keeping complete supplier archives
e REMHEREER B8 /AR BROETER
REEnE BERER BESHERRERAAE
REBITERAE HEFERGE R
EEE HEBER BREDEERS
BRI EEER

Distributors/deliverers/
promoters

S [N
HEREE

A robust process of customer
service

A complete mechanism of
information communication

A stable and safe supply of
pharmaceutical products

Timely response to requests

e R P REE

TEMNE BRI

BT B2WEmEE

sk B B B o1

Daily communication
Aftersales service

Customer satisfaction surveys
Customer archives

Visits to distributors

AREBE
BRI
EPWEERE
EPER
X228,/ EHD

Enhancing quality management

Performing contracts as agreed

Providing pharmaceutical
knowledge training and
marketing support

Sufficient communication

Mg EER

RAOBTAR

TR R AR DA 2 S S
ROER
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Type of Stakeholders  Focus Means of Communication Response and Feedback
R AER BEEH FTEBBEAFN R FEER R £
Governments/ Corporate operation in Government visits Strict compliance with laws
Communities compliance with laws and Participation in government and regulations
regulations meetings and regular visits Enhancing safety management
Contributing to community Government projects Actively assuming social
development Community service responsibility
BT/ 48 ERNbEES BT 8isE BRI ARER
BEEHEBER SERFEE  THED MmEL2ER
BATIEE REEEHEEE
I AR
Financial Institutions Good corporate credit, Financial reports and Timely repayment of loans
and stable capability of announcements Maintaining good cooperative
loan repayment Visits relations
Stable corporate development Direct communication
iy 7 RUMBGEER  RENEER FBRSIASE RREEER
Vi 288 REFRFNEERE
REMNCEER HEER
6. Social e

To perform social responsibility, the Group always attaches great
importance to the details of staff, product management and
community benefit at work to provide a fair and equitable treatment
to the related stakeholders of the Group and deeply believes that
this management direction is a long-term investment for the Group.

a. Employment

The Group is aware of a number of laws and regulations on the
protection of the labor force established by the PRC and has
strictly complied with their requirements to carry out all of the
relevant laws and regulations when employing staff members.
The relevant laws and regulations include: PRC Labor Law,
Employment Promotion Law, Labor Contract Law, Tentative
Provisions on Salary Payment, Regulations on the Management
of Housing Provident Fund, Labor Dispute Mediation and
Arbitration Law, Regulation on Work-related Injury Insurances,
and local labor laws and regulations. The Group also ensures
the entitlement to all statutory social insurance and statutory
holidays of its staff members. Furthermore, to provide staff
members with better welfare, the Group has formulated a
Remuneration Management System, Staff Fund Management
System, and Staff Reward and Punishment Provisions, and
also provides staff members with allowances for transport and
lunch, staff activities and group tours, with an aim to achieve
fair treatment for all staff members of the Group. In addition to
the said welfare, the Group also attaches great importance to
raise intrinsic value of the staff. Therefore, the Group provides
staff members at all levels with targeted development and
incentive schemes, and clear and fair promotion opportunities
through performance appraisal according to the Group’s
Performance Management System.

2018 ¥ EIMABEEERAR AR

RETERMERE  ARE-RFFERTIE
EHET EMERENUREREN ML - 5K
HARKEABOES AL A FMRENHE -
WEREHERNHERAEBRENRE -

a. Ef®
AEBBEEEMAPEARANBERINZ
HRELHALER - WERKIZBER
ECRTHABABEARERET  HEN
ERBIE  REAREMBCEEE) - (B
HEREEX) (BHERE) (TEXHNE
ITIRE) (EERABRESEEKRN) - (&
FEARPEE)  CTHERBAEH)) R &
& H) B B AR R RD o NEE TMERA B
TREMBNETHERE AT RE -
AEEAETME TREETHEFNSFE -
EBHTT(FMERHE) (BEITHESER
FIE) - (B THIBAEHDEECR » TMEHR
BRTEME BTEBMERIKRES -
AKER A EHEGEAEBREET - BT
HERF I REBEJFERREAELN
NEBE - TAERSER T — (@it
MHHEIEE S RBEEI T TARARINE
T mBEREAEBECEREEGE)ET
BEWEZ - BETRMEN - AFEHNEH
e o

29



30

Environmental, Social and Governance Report &8 + &

KERHmE

Employment Indicators

EfEEE
Staff by Gender Staff by Age
BI MRS BIFHREDM
Number of Staff Number of Staff
BT A BT AH
m Male Female Above 50 __ 40 to 50 30 1o 40 20 to 30
5 soszsi - M 40.503% 30-40% M 20308
100 150 -
90 - 129
80 112
70— 60 100
60 56
50
40
L 46 42
30+ >0
10
0 | 0 9 A 10 |
2017 2018 2017 2018

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a staff outflow of 19, representing a turnover rate* of 12.8%.

RRERR - REEBEBABI19A  REAE*E12.8%

Departed Staff by Gender
BERLE THERID M

Number of Staff
ETAH
Female Male
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25
20 18
15
10

26

2017 2018

Departed Staff by Age
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* Turnover rate = Number of staff departed during the Reporting Period/(Headcount at the end of the Reporting Period+Number of staff departed

during the Reporting Period)
*ORARE = REHABBE TAB GRESRAB+ REHABREE TH)
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In addition to the existing staff policies, the Group's strict
recruitment system ensures that it could enjoy a comprehensive
human resources allocation. The Group has always been
recruiting talents externally and keeping in contact with
recruitment agencies, universities and colleges to attract
potential talents to join the Group. It has also set up a “Staff
Referral Award” to encourage its staff members to recommend
capable talents to join the Group.

Moreover, the Group ensures that all the job applicants and
staff enjoy equal opportunities for employment, with zero
tolerance of any discrimination over gender, age, ethnicity,
nationality and disability. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group had a staff of 129 in total (57% being male staff and
43% being female staff). During the Reporting Period, no
employment discrimination has occurred within the Group.

Health and Safety

Staff health and safety are also areas that the Group attached
great importance to. The Group, at all times, strictly complies
with all requirements of relevant regulations, including the
PRC Labor Law, Fire Prevention Law, Occupational Health and
Safety Management System, Special Regulation on the Labor
Protection of Female Staff, Measures for the Ascertainment
of Work-related Injuries, and the Regulation on Work-related
Injury Insurances.

The Group strives to offer its staff a safe work environment
and minimize all potential risks on health and safety. We
conduct ongoing risk assessment and inspection on work
environment with certain high-risk to mitigate the risks. During
the Reporting Period, the Group implemented a series of health
management measures, so that its staff members can work in
a safe environment free of occupational hazards:

e Staff medical examination

° Fire Drills

. Regular maintenance of electrical equipment

e Traffic safety study for drivers

During the Reporting Period, the Group incurred no work-

related fatalities among its staff; nor did any staff lose any
work days due to work-related injuries.
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Development and Training

Improving the quality and techniques of staff members is a
momentum for the Group’s development. To ensure effective
implementation of staff training schemes, the Group has
formulated Management Measures for Staff Training, which
expressly set out an integrated system and implementation
process that encompass induction, internal training and
external training:

I. Induction
New recruits are introduced to the general knowledge
of the Group, such as corporate culture, product
knowledge, basic internal control system and process, the
work process of the department concerned, and details
of the work position.

ii. — Internal Training

Based on the actual demands at work, the Group applies
its internal training resources to the communications on
professional knowledge and skills, to share experience.
Such training takes place in the following forms: self-
learning with shared training materials on the Group's
online work platform, and discussions at regular
departmental meetings, communication sessions for
business teams and inter-departmental sharing sessions.

iii. — External Training
The Group encourages its staff members to improve their
professional techniques through attending training and
policy seminars hosted by external institutions, subject to
efficient and reasonable work arrangement of the staff.

In order to share and inherit the Group’s knowledge and
experience with internal staff members, the Group has
formulated its Internal Lecturer Management Measures
to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of training. At
the beginning of each year, human resources department
formulates annual training scheme according to feedback
from the previous year, the Group’s strategic planning and
the actual demand of each department, and prepares training
curricular and course content on a quarterly basis.
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Training-related Indicators

IR E R

Staff Training Ratio by Gender Staff Average Training Hours by Gender
BMRIE D EX IS TG M RIED B TR IR 8
2017 - 2018 2017 - 2018
20174 20184 20174 2018%
83% 85% 84%
71%
64%
58% l
Male Female Total Male Female Total
3 z &&t 3 =
Staff Training Ratio by Category Staff Average Training Hours by Category
RERIE D BZ B I LI RIE D B TR FIR £
2017 - 2018 2017 - 2018
20174 2018%F 20174 2018%F
29
81% 88% 83% 84% 25 ”
70%
64%
18
53%
46% 14
13
I I i I |
Directors  Managers  Juniors Total Directors  Managers  Juniors Total
HEs FESL g &t HaEs KRR £E &t
d. Labor Standards d. ZBTI%A8|
The Group's policies on staff recruitment and treatment are in REBERES TAEFE THBERER
strict compliance with relevant national and local regulations, RIZBEKRMESEERERT  BIF
including the PRC Labor Law, Law on the Protection of Minors, hEE ARAFBKEENE) - CRECE ARE
and Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor. The FORCEILEREZEIRE) - AEEMKE
Staff Manual of the Group clearly states that child labor shall ITFMIFEBRIARSEFBEL - BH
not be allowed. Relevant departments also regularly monitor WRETeTHBREREREMREENREE
employment-related information and data, to ensure there is DRI REZ Tokoah 4 -

no child labor or forced labor.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not discover any use RWMEHA > AEBRBEAEFBE I
of child labor or forced labor. & IS E R IE R
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Supply Chain Management

The Group is well aware that effective management of
procurement is the most critical part in maintaining quality and
safety of product and service. To systemize the complicated
procurement process of pharmaceutical imports, the Group has
formulated procurement business standardized documents for
various pharmaceutical products. Such documents are based on
the Management Regulation on the Procurement of Imported
Products with reference to the regulations of special authorities
such as the PRC General Administration of Customs, Entry-Exit
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau, and China Food and Drug
Administration (CFDA). In addition to the internal management
system, the Group has established a good relationship with
our suppliers and kept liaison, exchanging news on the market
updates and sales data of products for coordinating and
adjusting procurement and sales plans accordingly.

Prior to establishing any cooperation arrangement with
suppliers or its sales agents, the following factors are
considered by the Group:

1. Product compliance

2. Brand influence

3. Strategic synergy with the Group's development
4. Prospects in the Chinese market

5. Other potential risks

The Group appraises its existing suppliers according to the
Appraisal Measures for Suppliers, to ensure that suppliers
cooperating with the Group can maintain quality. Currently,
the Group’s suppliers are mainly small and medium-sized
pharmaceutical manufacturers from overseas countries,
including Austria, Sweden and Cyprus.

To protect information privacy of the suppliers, the Group
continually enhances its information security, establishing
targeted security principals for the business network, office
network, servers, cyber computer room management and
controlled visits. The staff members are required to sign an
agreement to prevent the leak of the suppliers’ privacy.
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f.

Product Responsibility

As the Group is a member of the pharmaceutical industry
and the products are prescription drugs, the product quality
is crucial and potential risks must be properly controlled.
To ensure product quality and safety, the Group strictly
complies with all national laws and regulations on product
safety, including the PRC Pharmaceutical Administration Law
and its Implementation Regulations, Good Supply Practice
for Pharmaceutical Products and its Implementation Rules.
Besides, the Group has a systematic system for managing
pharmaceutical quality in place with active cooperation with
the regulators in their inspections. The Group proactively
provides internal training on the knowledge of safety and
quality and promotes the policies, systems and concepts of
quality management.

In respect of hardware, the Group has always been storing
pharmaceutical products with advanced technology and
facilities and operates a product mix composed of quality
pharmaceutical imports with an outstanding track record
of safety. The Group also has cooperated with creditworthy
collaborating parties of long-term partnership on the provision
of warehousing and logistics services. Apart from that, the
Group has built its cold chain storage facility with advanced
temperature-control technology and a precision system
of quality control in Shuangliu District, Chengdu, Sichuan
Province, which can ensure a more stable quality control for
the Group.

The Group has a comprehensive system for process of quality
inspection and product recall, establishes and strictly executes
the policies on the Management Regulation on Pharmaceutical
Product Procurement, the Management Regulation on
Pharmaceutical Product Reception, the Management
Regulation on Pharmaceutical Product Acceptance, and the
Management Regulation on Pharmaceutical Product Return,
ensuring that all product quality and safety operation program
has taken place in standard processes. In addition to this, we
have formulated relevant management document such as
Distributor Management Measures, Sales Management System
and the Code of Conduct on Customer Servicing to protect the
security and privacy of its customer information.
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The Group has no corresponding measures for advertising
and labeling, because all of its products are prescription drugs
which are prohibited from advertising according to national
regulations, and because CFDA issues the permit on product
packaging and specifications.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not recall any
product due to product quality issues, nor did it receive any
complaints about its products and services. All products are
examined by the Institute for Drug Control after their customs
clearance, with an examination report of pharmaceutical
imports issued.

Anti-corruption

The Group has been advocating honesty, integrity and
responsibility as its ethical concepts, opposes any form of
corrupt behavior, such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group has formulated its Anticorruption and
Anti-bribery Management Regulations and its Staff Code of
Conduct against Corruption and Bribery, according to national
regulations and the actual industrial condition. The Group
also requires its staff and partners to sign an Anti-corruption
and Anti-bribery Letter of Undertaking on a mutually agreed
basis, included anti-corruption into the staff induction system,
and set up a comprehensive reporting procedure for reporting
non-compliance behaviors and protecting whistleblowers. The
Group's internal audit department will also conduct audits to
sales executives who are departing.

During the Reporting Period, no case of corruption, extortion,
fraud and money laundering occurred within the Group,
with confirmation that it strictly complied with relevant
laws and regulations such as the PRC Criminal Law and its
Judicial Interpretation, Criminal Procedure Law and its Judicial
Interpretation, Interpretation on Several Issues Concerning the
Applicable Laws to Handling Criminal Cases of Embezzlement
and Bribery, and Anti-Money Laundering Law.

Community investment

Community charities and public welfare have always been one
of the considerations for business development of the Group.
The Group attaches great importance to each stakeholder who
is affected by its business scope. In order to maintain good
relationships, we keep a close liaison with them, which includes
participating in community activities to ensure the business
development of the Group has fully taken into account the
interests of the community.
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i. Establishing charity funds

In March 2017, the Group has established Sinco
Charitable Foundation (R} 2z & A 4) named after the
enterprise in Chengdu Charity Federation and continuing
operation in 2018. The fund aims at providing assistance
to the impoverished such that they can receive better
medical treatment; improving the unhealthy habits and
health conditions of low income patients; enhancing
publicity of health knowledge and changing the outdated
concept of getting medical treatment. Currently,
the ‘Taurolite charity assistance project’ under Sinco
Charitable Foundation has been launched to provide
economic subsidies for patients who purchase medicine.

ii. — Organizing staff activities

While respecting and safeguarding the rights and
interests of staff members, the Group is also attentive
to their physical and mental health, and committed to
creating a beneficial work environment and a harmonious
work atmosphere for them. To do that, the Group has
hosted diverse activities, such as annual gatherings,
birthday parties and sports activities, during which staff
members can relax and balance work with life. This also
makes the Group a more cohesive community.

7. Environmental

a.

Emissions

The Group operates all relevant business in strict compliance
with the PRC Environmental Protection Law, Law on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, Law on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, and Law on
the Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental
Noise, as well as other laws and requirements on environmental
protection to ensure that the Group did not cause any negative
impact to the environment.

However, as the Group is mainly engaged in the MPCM, it
will not cause significant impact to the environment. The
Group also consumes no direct combustion fuel other than
transportation, therefore it does not produce any hazardous
wastes. Instead, the emissions mainly comprise the exhaust
of all vehicles of the Group, the greenhouse gases indirectly
emitted during its operation, and such non-hazardous wastes as
scrap paper, plastics and house refuse.

During the Reporting Period, the Group adopted various
control measures to reduce emissions and the results were
more significant, whether on exhaust of automotive or
electricity consumption.
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The Group always encourages employees to travel in a quicker
and greener way, such as taking subway when the destination
is easily accessible or sharing bikes when destination is
close. In addition, benefitted from rapid development of the
transportation road network in the PRC, staff is more willing
to implement the energy conservation direction of the Group,
hence the exhaust of vehicles reduced by approximately 30%
during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group requires staff to
plan itineraries of business trips ahead to improve efficiency.
Meanwhile, by assigning sales staff based on the regions, sales
staff can basically visit clients within their assigned region by
bullet trains. The aforesaid measures successfully reduced over
40% of CO, emissions of the Group which arose from flight
travels.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly implemented
the administrative paper-saving policy, replaced the current
method with electronic files, and made full use of paper, which
reduced the paper consumption of the Group by more than
20%.

Major Emission Indicators

Increase/

Year (Decrease)

Emissions of Vehicle Exhaust Unit 2018 2017 %
NO, Emissions Kilogram 1024 1436 31
S0, Emissions Kilogram ~ 0.14 0.17 (16)
Particles Emissions Kilogram 9.3 138 (32)
Increase/

Year (Decrease)

C0, Emissions Unit 2018 2017 %
From Electricity Consumption Tonne  103.8 1069 2.9
From Flights Tonne 50.9 93.0 (45.3)
From Processing Scrap Paper Tonne 53 838 (39.8)
From Processing Sewage Tonne 0.61 0.59 (7.6)
Total Tonne  160.61 209.29 (233)
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BIRBERHN B 2018 2017 %

FENLHNOYEERE TR 1024 1486 (31)
“EHCoERE TR 014 017 (1
BHPMBEHE T 93 138 (3

£ (R)
ZEECO)ER Bfu 2018 2017 %

AEEE K 1038 1069 (29
FURBES B 509 930 (45.3)
REEMEE B 53 88 (398
RESKEE B 061 059 (76)
At Ki 160.61 209.29 (23.3)
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Resource Consumption

The paperless office and low-carbon travel activities promoted
by the Group during the Reporting Period received keen
support from the staff and were successful. Therefore, apart
from the activities previously held, the Group will also take
more measures to support environmental protection in the
future.

Energy and Water Consumption Indicators
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Increase/ ®/

Year (Decrease) Efp (R0

Energy consumption Unit 2018 2017 % RS Bfy 2018 2017 %
Total Electricity Consumption Kilowatt Per Hour ~ 107,392.40  110,563.30 3) BfEs TRE 10739240 110,563.30 3)
Total Gasoline Consumption Kilogram 9,688.59  11474.00 (16) EREES % 9,688.59  11,474.00 (16)
Total Water Consumption Cubic Meter 1,440.80 1,553.40 (7) ke VEE 1,440.80 1,553.40 (7)

The Environment and Natural Resources
The business of the Group does not cause any material impact
on the environment and natural resources.
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The guideline to the content &R & 5|

Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting
Guide Aspects and General

Disclosures
R HEREARREIESE Pages/Notes
ER—BEE Description it BHE B
A. Environmental
A RIR
Aspect A1: Emissions
JEEAT - HEY)
General Disclosures A1 (@) The policies; and ERBEEEERED N - MK 37-38
— i RAimeges - AEREEEE
(b) compliance with relevant laws and MRNELESH
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer (@ BX: &
relating to air and greenhouse gas by BITFEHBITABBEAZE
emissions, discharges into water and land, HAERE AR ARG
and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Ve iE 2 AR BEEUR 38
A SRS emissions data
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and AERBEHNERTE 38
intensity
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and MEABEREYEE NTE The Group did not
intensity produce hazardous
wastes
TEERBES
BERERY
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and FiE4BEEEYEE REE The Group did
intensity not produce
non-hazardous
wastes
TEERBES
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate FEURE BE P E B M N FTISRK 37-38
emissions and results achieved R
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- MEIREENEEREEYART  The Group did not

40

hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved

& RIRELEENEIE R PTISK
R

produce any waste
REBEREES
EIEEEY
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Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting
Guide Aspects and General

Disclosures
W HEREAREECE Pageslintes
HE—RIFE Description R BE B
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
JEEAZ - EFEH
General Disclosures A2 Policies on the efficient use of resources, B ERER(BIERLIR » K& 39
—MAREE including energy, water and other raw HAEM R RS
materials
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption IRFEMBEID I EEE &S E s 39
R iE T by type in total and intensity REEENEE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity ~ #& ﬁmg)&zj& 39
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Rl e IR (E AR T 8 R PTIS A 39
initiatives and results achieved 2
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue  #i it SKEUER AR FAIBE[IE The Group did not

in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished

products

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEIA3 - BRIERXAER

General Disclosure A3 Policies on minimising the issuer’s

—RIEE significant impact on the environment
and natural resources

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts

AR A IEE of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to

manage them
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Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting
Guide Aspects and General

Disclosures
REE - HEREARREIESIE Pages/Notes
HE—RIEE Description it BE BT
B. Social
B.ALE
Employment and Labour Practices
EREBIER
Aspect B1: Employment
[EEB] : EE
General Disclosure B1 (a) The policies; and BREH L ERE - BERE - 29-31
— M TIERFE - REA - TEHRE %
(b) compliance with relevant laws and it~ IR R E AR N AEF
regulations that have a significant =0
impact on the issuer
(@ BX: Rk
relating to compensation and dismissal,
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Director and Senior Management
EENSNEERE

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Z##) (“Mr. Huang”), aged 53, founder
of the Group, has been the Chairman and executive Director of our
Group since April 2011. He is also the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and is mainly responsible for overall strategic planning and
operation management. Mr. Huang has served as the director of Risun,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, and all the subsidiaries of
the Company except for Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical Technology
Co., Ltd., Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceutical Technology
Co., Ltd., Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology Co., Ltd., Qingdao Ruichi
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd. and Chengdu
Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang
was the director and chairman of Vast Surplus since November 2004 up
until now, mainly responsible for strategic planning and operation of Vast
Surplus. After Vast Surplus transferred its exclusive distribution rights to
service Taurolite, TAD and Esafosfina to Hong Kong Prosperous Group
Holding Limited in March 2015, it has no other business operations. Since
then, Mr. Huang has been devoting a majority of his time to the Group’s
business. In addition, Mr. Huang was also a founder, chief executive
officer and director of Chengdu Ruixin Biopharmaceutical Technology
Co., Ltd (“Ruixin”) from February 2004 to April 2011. The principal
business of Ruixin was consultation in the pharmaceuticals industry, which
included testing and sampling new pharmaceutical products, providing
marketing and promotion services as well as assisting in obtaining
regulatory approvals and registrations for pharmaceutical products.
However, the pharmaceutical products serviced by Ruixin were mainly
traditional Chinese medicine extracts, which are different from those
of the pharmaceutical products serviced by the Group. Ruixin was not
engaged in any business which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business. Furthermore, Ruixin was
jointly owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang and 50% by Mr. Chen Xiangui
(an independent third party who is not considered a connected person
or associate of a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules (“Independent Third Party”)) and was never a member of the Group
which was readily disposable for corporate reorganisation solely based
on Mr. Huang's decision. Eventually, as the management of Ruixin began
to focus on the business development of the Group since Mr. Huang
incorporated Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals in 2011, Ruixin did not have
any business or operations, which subsequently led to the passing of the
shareholders’ resolutions on 22 September 2015 to voluntarily dissolve
Ruixin.

Mr. Huang worked in the Drug Inspection Institute of Guangyuan (&7t
T8GR AEERFT) from July 1988 to July 2004 as a pharmacist in charge
of drug quality research as well as collection and delivery of drug safety
information.
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Mr. Huang had been a director of Beijing Guangtong Shidai Medical
Consulting Company Limited (b R BB R EZINEBERAR Q)
("Beijing Guangtong”), a limited liability company established in the PRC
in 2003, since its establishment up until 2004. Prior to the revocation
of its business license, Beijing Guangtong was owned as to 50%, 40%
and 10% by Mr. Huang, Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao respectively. Both
Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao are Independent Third Parties. Mr. Huang
confirmed that at the time of the revocation of the business license
of Beijing Guangtong, he was not involved in the daily operation of
Beijing Guangtong as he was focusing on the development of Ruixin’s
business. To the best of Mr. Huang's knowledge, Beijing Guangtong
had ceased attending annual inspection (#2) as it had no business
operation, resulting in its business license being revoked subsequently on
26 November 2004. Mr. Huang confirmed that there is no wrongful act
on his part leading to the revocation and he is not aware of any actual or
potential claim that has been or will be made against him as a result of
the revocation.

Mr. Huang obtained a master’s degree in EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University ( /%@ AE) in December 2008 and graduated from the
MBA programme of Renmin University (7B A £ AZ2) in August 2002.
He also obtained a bachelor’s degree in botanical resources (£F 418 ¥ & JR)
from Jilin Agriculture University (F &2 X&) in July 1988. Mr. Huang
has been studying in the Université Paris — Dauphine under the Executive
Doctorate in Business Administration (EDBA) program since December
2013.

Ms. Zhang Zhijie GRE£E) (“Ms. Zhang”), aged 50, joined the Group
in November 2013 and is an executive Director and vice president for
technics of our Company, mainly responsible for new pharmaceuticals
research and development. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Zhang
successively served as a postdoctoral fellow of the research center, an
associate chief physician (starting from July 2013) and a research fellow
(starting from December 2014) of the pharmacognosy study center of
the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences from July 2008 up until now,
and was responsible for the coordination and management of the daily
researches of the pharmaceutical research centre and was also involved in
the process of setting up the pharmaceuticals research centre. Although
Ms. Zhang is concurrently working at the Institute of Chinese Medical
Sciences, she is heavily involved in the Group's research and development
programme. Ms. Zhang is leading the Group's Sinco | programme as a
research fellow for the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences.
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The Directors are of the view that Ms. Zhang has been and will continue
to be able to allocate sufficient time to fulfill her duties and responsibilities
as an executive Director based on the following reasons: (i) as Ms. Zhang
is responsible for overseeing the Group’s new pharmaceuticals research
and development, her position as a researcher at the Institute of Chinese
Medical Sciences, in particular her involvement in the development of
Sinco |, is directly related to her role as an executive Director. By working as
a researcher at the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences, Ms. Zhang is, at
the same time, also fulfilling her responsibilities as an executive Director,
(ii) to enable Ms. Zhang to allocate sufficient time to carry out her duties
as an executive Director, the Group has assigned four personnel to
assist Ms. Zhang with the development of Sinco | with respect to clinical
trials, patent applications and manufacturing processes, including two
researchers each with over 15 years of experience in the production and
quality control of pharmaceuticals, a researcher with a master’s degree
in clinical pharmacology specialising in the design and implementation
of pharmaceutical testing and a researcher with a bachelor’s degree in
business administration focusing on pharmaceutical laws who is in charge
of drafting reports and registration-related matters; and (iii) Ms. Zhang has
been diligently attending the Board meetings held by the Company since
she was appointed as an executive Director. In the event that Ms. Zhang
is unable to attend a Board meeting in person, according to the Articles
of Association, she is able to participate in such Board meeting by way of
telephone conference.

Ms. Zhang served as the general manager of Zhaoye Bio-Technology
Co., Ltd JREAEWEHABERRAT), a subsidiary of Nanjing Xiaoying
Pharmaceuticals Group Co., Ltd (B R/NE B EFH R A F]), from July
2006 to October 2008, mainly responsible for new drug research and
development. She has also engaged in national research projects, which
involved contributing to the testing of mineral medicine and its quality
control. Ms. Zhang was the co-editor of two books and published several
research papers in national and international academic journals. Ms.
Zhang has also been awarded Second Prize for Science and Technology by
the China Association of Chinese Medicine in November 2005. Ms. Zhang
obtained her Ph.D degree in June 2006 from Nanjing University of Chinese
Medicine (Fg R 5% K £2). Ms. Zhang worked as a pharmacist in Henan
Provincial Pingdingshan City Chinese Medicine Hospital (Ji/fg& I8
FREEBT) from September 1990 to August 2003. She obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Chinese medicine from Henan University of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (A Fg AR 2 E4F%) in July 1990.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (21 £E5E4) (“Mr. Lau”), aged 45, is an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 8 November 2018. Mr. Lau is
currently an independent non-executive director of Kingdom Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 528), Xiezhong International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 3663), China Wood Optimization (Holding) Limited (Stock
Code: 1885) and United Strength Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2337). Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and holds a master’s degree in finance from the City
University of Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in financial and
accounting in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. Wang Qing (£#5) (“Mr. Wang"), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement
to the Board. Mr. Wang worked at Dalian University of Technology (K3
38 T K E2) from April 2003 up until now. Mr. Wang served as an associate
professor when he first joined Dalian University of Technology and was
later promoted to professor in November 2010 and he was responsible
for research and development and teaching. From July 1986 to September
1997, Mr. Wang worked as a pharmacist supervisor at Liaoning Provincial
Medical Company Limited (%4 i GRE AR, where he was
responsible for drugs inspection and evaluation and participated in
research and technical renovation.

Mr. Wang obtained his Ph.D. in treatment therapy system at Kyushu
Institute of Technology (JLMN T X&) in Japan in March 2003 and
a master’s degree in treatment therapy system at Kyushu Institute of
Technology in March 2000. Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree
in medicinal plants at Jilin Agricultural University (F#EZEKE) in July
1986.
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Mr. Liu Wenfang (2/327%), aged 81, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016, mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement to the
Board. Prior to joining the Group, from February 2011 to present, he
serves as an independent director of China Biologic Products, Inc. (Z=34
MEGEEPR A F]), a company listed on NASDAQ (stock code: CBPO). From
2007 to 2011, Mr. Liu Wenfang worked as a chief consultant at Sichuan
Yuanda Shuyang Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd (P0)I3& KX B3 E 2/ H AR
‘A a]) where he was responsible for research and promoting new theories
and applications in the medical field. From 2000 to 2007, he served as
the chief engineer and director of Hualan Biological Engineering Inc. (%
B A TRAD AR A F)) where he was responsible for supervising the
manufacturing process and quality management. From May 1998 to May
1999, Mr. Liu Wenfang served as the chief engineer of Guiyang Qianfeng
Bio Manufacture Company (Ef5%EAYEMBREF A7) where he
was responsible for research and developing new products. From 1978
to 1988, Mr. Liu Wenfang worked in the Institute of Blood Transfusion,
Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences (1 %8 E2 R £2pz &5 M A 75 ) and
was engaged in the segregation and purification of blood and protein and
research, development and quality analysis of blood products.

Mr. Liu Wenfang obtained a bachelor’s degree majoring in biochemistry
from the Shenyang Institute of Applied Ecology, Chinese Academy of
Sciences (Fp BRI 2073 RS fE A RERTFEFT) (formerly known as the
Institute of Forestry and Soil Sciences) in August 1963.

Senior Management

Mr. Li Yifan (Z=2—11) (“Mr. Li"”), aged 39, joined the Group in February
2015 and was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company in
June 2015, mainly responsible for the overall financial strategic planning,
internal control system management, and investment and financing
management of the Group. Mr. Li is also the director of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Li worked for China Polymetallic Mining Limited, a company listed on
the HKSE (stock code: 2133), from March 2011 to January 2015, and
last served as the deputy chief financial officer responsible for financial
accounting and management. From February 2005 to February 2011,
Mr. Li successively served as an auditor of the Shenzhen branch and a
senior auditor of the Chengdu branch of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP.
Mr. Li obtained a Master of Science in Finance degree from the University
of Stirlling in January 2005 and graduated from Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics (FAFIEAAR A ER) in July 2002 with a bachelor’s
degree in management. Mr. Li has been a Chinese Certified Public
Accounting since January 2012.
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Mr. Lei Shifeng (F &) (“Mr. Lei”), aged 52, joined the Group in
July 2016 as the general manager of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical
Technology Co. Ltd. and was appointed as the general manager of
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. in October 2016, mainly
responsible for its overall business operation and management. Mr. Lei
is also the director of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical Technology Co.,
Ltd., Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., Chengdu Hengsheng
Ziguang Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. and Sichuan Sinco Biological
Technology Co., Ltd.. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lei worked for
Sichuan Derentang Traditional Chinese Medicine Technology Co., Ltd. (74
|18 2 R AR B IR A7), mainly responsible for procurement,
manufacturing and quality. From May 2001 to May 2007, he worked
as the vice general manager of Chengdu Zhongxin Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd (A #RFR FTZEZ A R A 8]), mainly responsible for the overall business
operation and management. From July 1988 to April 2001, he was a
manager at Chengdu Traditional Chinese Medicine Company (fX & H 244
Zxa]), mainly responsible for the procurement and business operation and
management of its branches. Mr. Lei earned his bachelor’s degree from
Jilin Agricultural University (F /823 KE2) in July 1988 and the Certified
Pharmacist qualification in January 2000.

Mr. Peng Fei (27) ("Mr. Peng"”), aged 45, joined the Group in April
2011 and was appointed as the Financial Controller of our Company in
June 2015, mainly responsible for overall finance management of the
Group. Mr. Peng is also the director of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
Co., Ltd. and Qingdao Ruichi Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., and the general
manager of Xizang Linzhi Ziguang Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Peng served as the finance manager of Ruixin from
September 2004 to March 2011, responsible for finance management.
Mr. Peng also served as the finance staff of the Third Construction Section
of the Factory Construction Engineering Bureau, the Ministry of Railway
and China Railway Construction Engineering Group North Project Co.,
Ltd. (MBHMEBIERFEF=T2K  HPHEIEEILIIRERERA
al]) from September 1991 to August 2004, mainly responsible for the
company'’s finance management. Mr. Peng obtained a bachelor’s degree
in accounting from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics
(FAR B 48 K E2) in December 2006, He also obtained the qualification
of Registered Tax Agent issued by Sichuan Provincial Human Resources
Department (P9)11%4 AZEEE) in April 2009, and obtained the license as a
senior accountant from Chengdu Reform Leading Group of Professional
Titles in April 2013. He has been a Chinese Certified Public Accountant
since December 2016.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

The Board hereby presents its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive marketing,
promotion and channel management service for imported pharmaceutical
products and medical devices in China. The analysis of the revenue of the
principal activities of the Group during the Reporting Period is set out in
the note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review and Results

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period is
provided in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 24. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Reporting Period using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights
on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income on page 97 of this annual report.

Final Dividends
The Directors do not recommend a final dividend for the Reporting Period.

Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
21 May 2019 to Friday, 24 May 2019, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend
the forthcoming AGM to be held on Friday, 24 May 2019. To be eligible
for attending and voting at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 20 May 2019.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities for the last five
financial years are set out on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s products purchased from the
largest supplier, accounted for 67.5% (2017: 75.0%) of total products
purchased, and products purchased from five largest suppliers accounted
for 100.0% (2017: 96.5%) of our total products purchased.

For the Reporting Period, the Group's sales to largest customer accounted
for 12.6% (2017: 11.4%) of our total revenue, and sales to the five
largest customers accounted for 35.1% (2017: 25.2%) of our total
revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Subsidiaries
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31 December 2018
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out on page 100 in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Cayman
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association,
amounted to approximately RMB5.0 million (as at 31 December 2017:
RMB255.0 million).

Bank and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2018 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders, the Company had
adopted the Share Option Scheme which became effective on 10 March
2016 (the “Listing Date").

1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive
or reward for Eligible Participants (defined below) for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries.

2. Eligible participants

The Board may subject to and in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, at its discretion
grant options to any full-time or part-time employees, including
executives, senior management or officers (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, its subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds
any equity interest, and to any company wholly owned by one or
more persons belonging to any of the above classes of participants
who, in the absolute discretion of the Board has contributed or will
contribute to the Group (collectively, the “Eligible Participants”).
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Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years from 1 February 2016, after which time no further option
will be granted.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not, in aggregate, exceed 160,000,000, representing 9.46% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by Shareholders, the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted to any participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the total Shares in issue.

Offer period and amount payable for options

An option may be accepted by an Eligible Participant within 15
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the grant
of option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

The period during which an option must be held before it can be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
shall be one year after the date on which the option is granted. The
Board may in its absolute discretion impose further restrictions on
the exercise of the option.

Period within which the Share must be taken up
Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions
on the exercise of the option, any option may be exercised one year
after the date on which the options is granted and shall expire on
the earlier of the last day of (i) a six year period from the date of
such grant and (ii) the expiration of the Share Option Scheme.
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Basis of determining the subscription price

The price per Share at which a Grantee may subscribe for Shares
upon exercise of an option (the “Exercise Price”) shall be a price
determined by the Board but in any event shall be at least the
highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's daily

guotations sheets on the date on which the option is granted,;
(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of that option; and

the nominal value of the Shares.

(iii)

The summary of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme that
were still outstanding as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

EERBENEE

FECER TS ARCHERSS P B SRR AR 10 (S AR AR 1 (B
HTHEEDDRESEET - KREARBRT
THER THI=EHR0RHE -

(i) ORI HBRERBREE S AR
KA UTE

BORERROBRERMAIAEEEA
HEE BT MRAEOFHWRTE
K

(ii)

(i) MHEIE -

AR5 B AR AT 13 I i 72 20184F 12 A 31 BN i R AT
EREREST

Number of Options
BREHE
On On
1 January 31 December
2018 2018 Exercise
Grantee's name 120185 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 20185 Price™ Date of grant Exercise period?
ARALE 1R18 b il B P 12A31A B RLAH fTiERHe
Employees in aggregate 17,850,000 - - - 1,000,0008 16,850,000 HK$0.568 21 September 2016 21 September 2017-
EEAR 056877 2016%9A21H 20 September 2022
0175972182
2022F9A208

Notes: st -

(1) The exercise price represents not less than the highest of (i) the closing price (1) TEEBTERUT=EFHHEEE ()P 201659 A
of HK$0.540 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotation sheets on 21 21 B (BNE IR L A ) BB AT B W AT m
September 2016, being the date of such grant; (i) the average closing price METRO0.540/% T : (MROHKEEFMARL BN R
of HK$0.568 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotation sheets for AEEAEEBMIMARRAENTHUTESR
five business days immediately preceding the date of such grant; and (iii) the 0.568% 7T ¢ K (i) ) E{E&AX0.0001ETT °
nominal value of the Share at HK$0.0001 per Share.

(2)  40% of the options granted shall be vested and can be exercised upon one  (2) #EHEBENI0% 1S EBEBE T B LT —F (8
year commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2017) and a 2017%9A21B) BREXRE—FEAI THEBERITE -
continuous employment of one year. Another 30% of the options granted, RN S5M30% 1% B B R L B B M4 (B
shall be vested and can be exercised upon two years commencing the date 201859 A21H) AREX EMFEA THERITHE
of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2018) and a continuous employment of two FHBRIENSRT30% 8B BT L B ERET =F (B
years. The remaining 30% of the options granted, shall be vested and can 20195 9A21H) ERFEXE=5F1&7] THERITEE -
be exercised upon three years commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21
September 2019) and a continuous employment of three years.

(3) 1,000,000 share options granted to several employees lapsed two months ~ (3) & T & T{EE 1,000,000/ BRERFELIETEY

after their cessation of employment.
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Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the
Reporting Period:

Directors
The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhang Zhijie

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Ying Kit (appointed with effect from 8 November 2018)
Mr. Wang Qing
Mr. Liu Wenfang
Mr. Chow Siu Lui (resigned with effect from 8 November 2018)
Mr. Chen David Yu (appointed with effect from
19 January 2018 and retired on 25 May 2018)
Mr. Philip Wong Yee Teng (appointed with effect from
19 January 2018 and retired on 25 May 2018)

Mr. Chow Siu Lui resigned as independent non-executive Director with
effect from 8 November 2018 as he wished to devote more time on his
other personal development.

In accordance with article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Lau Ying
Kit shall hold office only until the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible,
have offered himself for re- election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Huang
Xiangbin and Mr. Liu Wenfang will retire and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming AGM are set
out in the circular to the Shareholders.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 45 to 50 of this annual report.

Confirmation of Independence of

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be independent in
accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letter of
Appointments

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from the date
of service agreement, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the date of the letter of appointment, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either party to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest subsisted during or at the end of the Reporting Period.

2018 3 EIRIAREBEEERER AT

EEREAREEERE
AEBEERARERENEEFERNRFRES
Z50H °

BAUFHTEENBEUMRRE

ARBCEESBIIFNTESRIE LTRANF3.13
BEENBYEERE ARARR  ZFEZHR
RIE ERAIESAGRAVELAL ©

EERBESOREER

ERTERRARB I LIRG HE - FHARSE HE
RHEFAB=F AlEA—STRS—HTELTD
R=fAAEEBMT AL

BEUIEMTEFEARRILERE R - VI EHA
RN R AR=F  ThREF SRS %
HAPR=(EAEEBMT AL -

BESNKRTHORRBFRE LEREENES
RIVAEBEA AR —FARNEECEEBERIN M
RIEHBRIEA#)

EEREARS - ZHREHHER

BREAMBREAMEAARENZEIHI - N
SRR - AR B HEEAINER R BERT L
FEEEXBMEBEN  BERSEEFHFNER
REPEERNEXRBEEEARANEARS - KX

BH -

57



Report of the Directors EEE 3R &

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in
or had any interest in any business which competes or may compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the
Reporting Period.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Employees and Emolument Policy

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had an aggregate of 129 full-
time employees. The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.

Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals with
Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Changes to Information in Respect of Directors
Up to the date of this report, there were no changes to information which
are required to be disclosed and had been disclosed by Directors pursuant
to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, no rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
were granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised by them. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate during the
Reporting Period.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

and Short Position in Shares, Underlying Shares

and Debentures

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (ii) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the
register maintained by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Model Code as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

EEREBETHRAERKRSG - HEKRHO R
EEPNERERKXE

R2018%F12A31H  EFERARAETEZTHAER
AARKEAMAEEB(ERRFESRARKLIE
XVE) &I (D - AR RESF - HE)REES
N IEHISEXVERSE 7 R 8D SABME AN 7 BB
ZE R ROA B (BIEIRIEF H RS &N B B %
X BEWEENRERAEENTMNERRAR)
(R IEE FH K E & HI E 35216 BRR 8RN AR RITF
EMECMANERE AR - IR LR B &
TAE EMBETAESETIELR LS RITESTAIZAN
EARNRREBHAERABAT

(i) Interestin Shares or Underlying Shares of the (i) RAATRMD BB HFERS
Company
Number of Approximate
Shares or percentage of
Name of Director and underlying shareholding
chief executive Nature of Interest Shares™ interest®
RAD K IR HE
EERFTETHABKSE ERME HERGHEO BRBEILe
Mr. Huang®@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000 (L) 62.06%
LD REVDEE R S
Notes: B

Q)

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.
(2)  Mr. Huang was the settlor of a trust in which Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited was the trustee and held the entire interest in
Fullwealth Holdings Limited, which in turn held the entire beneficial
interest in Risun. Mr. Huang was deemed to be interested in the
1,050,000,000 Shares beneficially held by Risun.

(3)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,691,890,585 Shares

in issue as at 31 December 2018.

2018 ¥ EIMABEEERAR AR
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(ii) Interest in associated corporation

(i) REEEEAER

Approximate

Name of Amount of percentage of
associated registered shareholding
Name of Director corporation Nature of Interest share capital interest
EEnL HEZEER EREE EEMREEE - RESQMEIH
Ms. Zhang Zhijie Sichuan Sinco Biological Interest in controlled corporation® RMB300,000 30%
Technology Co., Ltd.
REHRLLE M| ERAEYRRERAR KRR EEOERD AE#300,0007T
Note: Biat -

(1) Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology Co., Ltd. was owned as to 30%
by Beijing Kang Tai Yun Dao Technology Co., Ltd., which was in turn
owned as to 60% by Ms. Zhang Zhijie.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was
required to be recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model Code.

(1) ENEMEENRHBRAR AL REREER
RABRABEA30%EE - ML REREBRK
BRARHAREELLHEHC0%ER °
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short

Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares RE

As at 31 December 2018, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons/entities (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in

the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 % & :

of the SFO:

(i) Interestin the Company

(i) RAERATER

FTERRRBROREEROPIERK

R2018F 128318 * REBMFA - RIBAQRIE
BESFMAEGRAIE3B6IEETFENELMAFAR
i WAL ER(EESARREBITHRAS
B o) IARR 1 S AERARR (0 P B IRIEE F R HE 1601
EXVEPE2 K3 BHUESCAR AN B FER S

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name Nature of Interest Shares™® interest®
IREBA
=L EEME RBEE® BOE®
Risun@ Beneficial owner 1,050,000,000 (L) 62.06%
Risun®@ BEmEA A
Fullwealth Holdings Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000 (L) 62.06%
Fullwealth Holdings Limited® R EE R R
Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited® Trustee 1,050,000,000 (L) 62.06%
Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited?  Z#EA
Wisen Group Holding Limited (“Wisen"”)®  Beneficial owner 90,000,000 (L) 5.32%
Wisen Group Holding Limited([Wisen1)®  EzZ#H A
Mr. Liu Sichuan® Interest in controlled corporation 90,000,000 (L) 5.32%
2B ES R EE RS
Mr. Gui® Person having a security 1,049,990,000 (L) 62.06%
E e interest in shares
RGO BEEEFER AL
Interest in controlled corporation 44,500,000 (L) 2.63%
REEAE R R
Total: 1,094,490,000 (L) 64.69%
R

2018 ¥ EIMABEEERAR AR
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Notes:
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Mr. Huang is the settlor of a trust in which Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited is the trustee and holds the entire interest in
Fullwealth Holdings Limited, which in turn holds the entire beneficial
interest in Risun. Fullwealth Holdings Limited, Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited and Mr. Huang are deemed to be interested in the
1,050,000,000 Shares beneficially held by Risun.

(3)  Wisen is owned as to 100% by Mr. Liu Sichuan. Therefore, Mr. Liu
Sichuan is deemed to be interested in the 90,000,000 Shares held by
Wisen.

(4)  As confirmed with Mr. Gui, Innovative Advertising Company Limited, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Gui, held 44,500,000 Shares. Therefore,
Mr. Gui was deemed to be interested in such Shares. Mr. Gui also had
a security interest in 1,049,990,000 Shares held by Risun.

(5)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,691,890,585 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors
were not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed under Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting
Period.

Connected Transaction

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules, the guarantee provided by Mr. Huang
as disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements is a
connected transaction exempted from announcement, reporting, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above connected transaction.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Cayman Companies Law where the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

Non-Competition Undertaking

On 1 February 2016, Mr. Huang and Risun, our controlling shareholders
entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of our Company (for
itself and on behalf of all members of the Group), pursuant to which they
have undertaken, subject to and except as mentioned in the Prospectus,
that they, would not, and would procure that none of their associates
(other than any member of our Group) will directly or indirectly, engage in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly,
with our Group’s business as described in the Prospectus in the PRC or
any other places in which our Group carries on business.

The Company has received confirmations from the controlling
shareholders confirming their compliance with the deed of non-
competition during the Reporting Period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision
As at the date of this report, all Directors of the Company were covered
under the liability insurance purchased by the Company for its Directors.

Charitable Donations
During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable donations of nil
(2017: RMB100,000).

Disclosure Under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules regarding
the provision of advance by the Company to an entity.
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Continuing Disclosure Requirements Pursuant to
Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules

On 27 June 2017, the Company issued unlisted bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 (equivalent to RMB104,150,000)
(the “June 2017 Bonds"”). The maturity date of the June 2017 Bonds falls
24 months after the date of issue. The interest rate is 10% per annum
and the interest should be payable quarterly. With effect from 12 October
2017, the interest rate was amended to 15% per annum with interest
payable quarterly and the maturity date was amended to 27 March 2018.
On 27 March 2018, the maturity date of the June 2017 Bonds has been
further amended to 30 April 2018.

On 30 June 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 (equivalent to RMB34,717,000).
The maturity date of the convertible bonds falls 24 months after the date
of issue. The interest rate is 8% per annum and the interest should be
payable quarterly. With effect from 18 December 2017, all rights and
obligations of the holder of the convertible bonds and the Company in
relation to the conversion rights were deleted. Meanwhile, the maturity
date was amended to 30 March 2018 and the interest rate was amended
to 15% per annum with interest payable quarterly. Those bonds are
referred to as the “December 2017 Bonds”. On 27 March 2018, the
maturity date of the December 2017 Bonds has been further amended to
30 April 2018.

The Company’s obligations under the above bonds are unconditionally
guaranteed by Mr. Huang, a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and secured by (i) 1,049,990,000 Shares held by Risun, a controlling
shareholder of the Company; and (ii) the entire issued share capital of
Risun held by Fullwealth Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 25 June 2017,
27 June 2017, 30 June 2017, 13 October 2017 and 17 January 2018 for
further details.

Risun has charged 1,049,990,000 Shares (representing approximately
62.06% of the total issued share capital of the Company) in favour of Mr.
Gui (the “Sinco Share Charge”).

The loan in the sum of RMB140,000,000 with an interest rate of 13.2%
per annum and maturity date of 30 April 2019 advanced by Mr. Gui to
the Company is secured by the Sinco Share Charge and guaranteed by
the personal guarantee from Mr. Huang, the controlling shareholder of
the Company, for all payment obligations under the agreement for the
said loan. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 23
April 2018 for further details.
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POST REPORTING PERIOD EVENTS

Termination of the Placing Agreement

On 4 February 2019, the Company entered into the placing agreement
with South China Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”) in relation to
the conditional placing (the “Placing”) of (i) up to 338,378,117 placing
shares to not less than six placees at the placing price of not less than
HK$0.443 per placing share; and (ii) the convertible bonds of up to an
aggregate principal amount of HK$170.0 million to not less than six
places (the “Placing Agreement”). Details of the Placing Agreement were
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 4 February 2019.

On 13 March 2019 (after trading hours), the Company and the Placing
Agent entered into a termination agreement to terminate the Placing
Agreement. Each of the Company and the Placing Agent confirmed that it
does not have any claim against the other party for any liability under the
Placing Agreement and further agreed to waive all the rights that it may
have against the other party of whatever nature in relation to the Placing
Agreement. Details of the termination agreement were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 13 March 2019.

The Board intended to use the proceeds from the Placing for (i)
refinancing the existing indebtedness of the Company; (ii) settling (whether
fully and partly) the consideration for the proposed acquisition of a
company wholly-owned by PIEL Capital Company Limited (the “Proposed
Acquisition”); and (iii) general working capital. In view of the termination
of the Placing Agreement, the Board will use its best effort to conduct
alternative fund-raising activities to refinance the existing indebtedness of
the Company and settle the consideration for the Proposed Acquisition.
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Termination of Memorandum of Understanding in
Respect of a Possible Acquisition

On 15 December 2018, the Company, as purchaser, entered into a non-
legally binding memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") with two
third parties (the “Vendors”) in relation to a possible acquisition of (the
“Possible Acquisition”) of majority stake in a company (or the holding
company or a subsidiary of the Target Company) (the “Target Company”).
The Target Company is an investment holding company. The Target
Company and its subsidiaries (jointly the “Target Group”) are principally
engaged in maternal and child care and its related services operated under
the brand name of “& X (Cherish)”.

The Possible Acquisition is subject to, among others, further negotiations
and entering into of a formal sale and purchase agreement (the “Formal
Agreement”). Pursuant to the terms of the MOU, the MOU will be
terminated if the Formal Agreement has not been signed among the
parties to the MOU during the period of 90 days from the date of the
MOU or such longer period as the parties may agree (the “Exclusive
Period”). Details of the Possible Acquisition were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 December 2018.

On 15 March 2019, since the Formal Agreement has not been signed
among the parties to the MOU and the parties to the MOU did not agree
to extend the Exclusive Period. Given the non-binding nature of the MOU,
save for provisions relating to confidentiality, exclusivity and governing
law in the MOU, the Company would have no obligation to proceed
with the Possible Acquisition upon termination of the MOU. Accordingly,
the Possible Acquisition will not proceed. The Board considers that
the termination of the MOU has no material adverse impact on the
existing business operation and financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Details of the termination of MOU were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 March 2019.
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Supplemental Agreement To The Loan Agreement

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 23 April
2018, 27 March 2019 and 9 April 2019 (the “Loan Announcements”)
in relation to, among other things, the loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) entered into on 23 April 2018 among the Company as the
borrower, Mr. Gui as the lender, Risun as the chargor and Mr. Huang
as the guarantor for the loan in the amount of RMB140,000,000 (the
“Loan”). On 27 March 2019 (after trading hours), the Company, Mr.
Gui, Risun, Mr. Huang, Guangsha Overseas Holdings Limited (“Guangsha
Overseas”) and Mr. Ye Songshao (“Mr. Ye", collectively with Guangsha
Overseas, the “New Lenders”) entered into the supplemental agreement
(the “Supplemental Agreement”) to extend the repayment date of the
Loan for an additional year from 30 April 2019 to 30 April 2020, subject
to certain conditions precedent, one of which relates to the transfer of
certain Shares for partial settlement of the Loan in an aggregate principal
amount of RMB78,955,849.10 and the related accrued interests pursuant
to the share charge under the Loan Agreement by Risun (the “Transfers”).

Under the Supplemental Agreement, the maturity date of the Loan would
be extended from 30 April 2019 to 30 April 2020, subject to certain
conditions precedent, one of which relates to the Transfers by Risun to the
New Lenders for partial settlement of the Loan (the “Transfers Condition
Precedent”). Subsequent to the signing of the Supplemental Agreement,
the Transfers Condition Precedent was waived by Mr. Gui and the New
Lenders, and hence, the Transfers were not executed and will not take
place pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement. On 29 March 2019, as all
conditions precedent to the Supplemental Agreement were either waived
or fulfilled (including the waiver of the Transfers Condition Precedent),
the Supplemental Agreement was completed and the maturity date of the
Loan was extended from 30 April 2019 to 30 April 2020. Please refer to
the Loan Announcements for information.
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Code of Conduct Regarding Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
with the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with
such code of conduct throughout the Reporting Period.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 69 to 90 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued
share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved
by the HKSE and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public
at all times as of the date of this report.

Audit Committee

The principal duties of the audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) include the review and supervision of the Group’s financial
reporting system, the preparation of financial statements and internal
control procedures. It also acts as an important link between the Board
and the external auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit.

The annual results for the Reporting Period of the Company have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Auditor
Ernst & Young has acted as auditor of the Company for the Reporting
Period.

Ernst & Young shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

Sichuan, the PRC, 29 March 2019
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Company has complied with all applicable
code provisions under the CG Code except for the deviation from code
provision A.2.1 as mentioned in the paragraph headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” of this report. The key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are outlined later in this
report. The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees
the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and performance.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management
of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs,
the Board has established four Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the nomination committee
(the "Nomination Committee”) and the internal control and corporate
governance committee (the “ICCG Committee”) (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of

legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be reviewed
on an annual basis.
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Board Composition
As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises two executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin
Ms. Zhang Zhijie

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (appointed with effect from 8 November 2018)

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

Mr. Chow Siu Lui (resigned with effect from 8 November 2018)

Mr. Chen David Yu (appointed with effect from 19 January 2018 and
retired on 25 May 2018)

Mr. Philip Wong Yee Teng (appointed with effect from 19 January 2018
and retired on 25 May 2018)

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has been in compliance with
the requirements under rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has also complied with rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s performance.
Therefore, the Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) to ensure that the Company will, when determining the
composition of the Board, consider Board diversity in terms of, among
other things, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the
approach towards achieving diversity on the Board. Pursuant to the Board
Diversity Policy, all Board appointments will be based on merits, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board.

70

EEEAK
RAFHRAY EFGRUTHERTESR=4B
U IHITE R

HITES -
EEWEL
RSt

B EHITES -

RIS (B20184E 11 A8 HEEZ(T)

AR EAE

BNkt

BB (B20184 11 A8 HAEEHTE)

BRFICE(H2018F 1 H19FEFEZ (T - WHR20184F
55258 R (TE)

WM (B20184F 1 G190 #HEZ (T - IH20184F
5H25HRTF)

ZEEENEEEN AT RIEERSREEE ] —

B e

RIEHRA - ARF—BHET LETRAE31001)EE
3N0MGRHIRE - AR EREREEL = RBLIFTT
B AEHPEL B IFNTESARFEEDN
BERERR SRR B EEER

ARFIET ETHRAEIN0AGORTE - AREH
REMBUFATESTARETEREAREL =
Z—

-

)

ARBREEFEXNEZ T RAAARNRT &
BRZ%Z - Elt  AABCHRMNERS S TBR(E
FEZUEEEK])  BRADREEETEE AR
ENZTEEREFEZ L - HRBEFR - XL
EBEES  BELH RENLA®E - EZEZL
BREINEREESZITNTTE - REEZEEZ T
EBE  EFEMBLZEHIUBARA RRE - BE
AEEEEREBREIREIBENESESZTENG
B o

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018



Corporate Governance Report ¥ E /RS

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties.

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any other
Director and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as the identity and the time
involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments
and any subsequent change to the Company in a timely manner.

Dividend Policy
The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on 21
December 2018. A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

The Dividend Policy is to consider the payment of dividends, to allow

Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits whilst retaining
adequate reserves for the Group's future growth.
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The Board shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends:

the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

- retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

—  the Group’s liquidity position;

—  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and

- other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association.
The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from time to time
and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company'’s operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company also
arranges regular seminars to provide Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated and
provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a Director.

EEgNERIBFFHRNREAMBEZETIEE

— ARANERRBMPFHBRR

— ARARAEEZHBARNRE RN EAIHY
ki

- AEENRBESARN

—  —REERR  ARBEEBOEBERREMLE
E3Z ZUNCIES U b Z LN LM A3
FEIES T

- EFERAMEBMEMERE -

BEMRNTEZFASFHSARAGRIABERARIN
ETRY - EEGHIFETRABBBOR - T
ORAE 1S BT BEE AR S (AT TE 2R HIRLE. ©

ABRGEERERE

BNRTESORREHMBOABIEIIRER - AR
R FFDBEAR BN EEREBARBEFRIER
BED xR - RRNNERAENEE - ARRTR
RESLHEHRE - RRAR LHARRREAM AR
HENZEREERENRTERREENRINE
B BENEEHERMEMARRRE MR KA
RHRHEN  UEREFSERIREETETHER

5o

ARFSREFSEFETERER - WEEREHA
BN ERRE e RRRMRRIME TR B MIRHERME
ENAE  BREMBENEEEIMNE -

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018



Corporate Governance Report ¥ E /RS

According to the information provided by the Directors, a summary RBIEZEREHNELR  EFHRE22018F 12 A31
of training received by the Directors throughout the year ended 31  HBIFEEEZHEIIBMEMT :
December 2018 is as follows:

Nature of Continuous
Professional
Development Programmes

Name of Director EEME RBESERRTENNTE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Huang Xiangbin |EW A A, C&DA - CKD
Ms. Zhang Zhijie sREGE 2+ A,B,C&DA-B-CKD
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIFHITEE
Mr. Lau Ying Kit (appointed with effect from 2IEiESEE (B 2018411 A8H R
8 November 2018) EZT) A, C&DACKED
Mr. Wang Qing RS E A,B,C&DAB-CKD
Mr. Liu Wenfang RIS s AC&DA - CkD
Mr. Chow Siu Lui (resigned with effect from B (B2018511 AgHE
8 November 2018) BHE) A, C&DA - CKD
Mr. Chen David Yu (appointed with effect from BRFEAE(B2018F1 A198 4
19 January 2018 and retired on 25 May 2018) FERT - WH2018F5A258ET) A&DAKD
Mr. Philip Wong Yee Teng (appointed with effect from &E %4 (H20184F1 190 #2
19 January 2018 and retired on 25 May 2018) LT - WHK2018F5A258RE) A&DAKD
Notes: Mzt
A:  Attending seminars and/or meetings and/or forums and/or briefings A HEEER/SEER SRR ERE
B:  Giving talks in the seminars and/or meetings and/or forums B: RBER S&#HK HwmE RS

C:  Attending training relevant to the Company’s business conducted by lawyers C: H/EBEMEBHERD R EBAERENEI

D:  Reading materials relevant to corporate governance, director’s duties and D BIBEARMEER  EFBERBE - EHRAIKLE
responsibilities, listing rules and other relevant ordinances b AR BRI BIEI R

2018 ¥ EIMABEEERAR AR
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

Under the organization structure of the Company, Mr. Huang was the
Chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company
("CEQ"). With Mr. Huang's extensive experience in the pharmaceutical
industry, the Board considered that vesting the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer in the same person is beneficial to the business prospects
and management of the Group. The check and balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operation of the senior management and
the Board, which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals.
Accordingly, the Board believes that this arrangement will not impact
on the balance of power and authorizations between the Board and the
management of the Company.

Mr. Wu Qing Jiang (“Mr. Wu"), who was appointed as the co-chief
executive officer of the Company (“Co-CEQ"”) on 5 May 2017, resigned
as the Co-CEO on 8 November 2018 due to his personal career planning
and has been appointed as the Company’s Research and Development
Administration Supervisor on the same date. Following the resignation of
Mr. Wu, Mr. Huang, being the CEO, is responsible for the Group’s overall
business development, operation and management.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from their respective date
of appointment subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from their respective date of appointment.

The appointments of executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles of Association and the applicable Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-appointment
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at every AGM and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or
as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
Shareholders at the next general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company intends to hold Board meetings regularly, at least four times
a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and are adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint company secretary
with copies circulated to all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient details about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.
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ooy

During the Reporting Period, six Board meeting and one general meeting RIMEHR @ HETANXEESEZ R —AREK
were held and the attendance record of each Director is set out in the & - KREZMHELEEEIWOT -
table below:

Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to attend Eligible to attend
the Board meeting(s) the general meeting(s)
BHE/WHE BHEFHE
Directors = EZgeRRE RRKRERE
Mr. Huang Xiangbin BRI EE 6/6 1
Ms. Zhang Zhijie REGEZ T 6/6 1”1
Mr. Lau Ying Kit (appointed with effect B A (B2018F 11 A8H#E
from 8 November 2018) BEMT) 11 0/0
Mr. Wang Qing TR 6/6 11
Mr. Liu Wenfang £y e Pt 6/6 171
Mr. Chow Siu Lui (resigned with effect )\ E(B2018F 11 A8HAE
from 8 November 2018) BHT) 5/5 11
Mr. Chen David Yu (appointed with BRFEA(B201851 B19E 2
effect from 19 January 2018 and EZAT - WH2018F5H25H
retired on 25 May 2018) RfE) 11 01
Mr. Philip Wong Yee Teng (appointed with BOMEEE(BE2018F1B19E
effect from 19 January 2018 and EZRT - WH201845H25H
retired on 25 May 2018) B 1”1 0N
Model Code for Securities Transactions BHER S WIZESFA

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions AN B EERA_E AR RIS+ PRk E 1T AES#
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix T‘Im%'w&% RSP A (RESP R DIER B E ST
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ A2 RSP SRR] o

dealings in the Company'’s securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors &AM ER(FHARBERE  EERRBRENRE
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code for the — BAR—EE<FIRAESFA]
Reporting Period.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors could have resources to
seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the management.

Corporate Governance Function and Internal Control and
Corporate Governance Committee

The ICCG Committee currently comprises three members, namely Mr. Lau
Ying Kit (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Wang Qing, all of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of the Directors and delegated the corporate governance
duties to the ICCG Committee which includes, without limitation:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company;
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to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure

in the corporate governance report of the Company (the “CG

Report”); and

(f)  to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control

systems on an ongoing basis and ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries has been conducted at least
annually and report to Shareholders that it has done so in its
Corporate Governance Report. The review shall cover all material

controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The written terms of reference of the ICCG Committee are available on

the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, one ICCG Committee meeting was held and SHIR  ABITRAIIEF N ECEEREZED
the attendance records are set out below: T HEREENNT
Attendance/
Number of meeting
Directors Bz ERE, &G@RE
Mr. Lau Ying Kit (appointed with effect 2L (B2018F 11 ASHREERT)
from 8 November 2018) 0/0

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

Mr. Chow Siu Lui (resigned with effect
from 8 November 2018)
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely Mr. Lau
Ying Kit (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Wang Qing, all of them are

independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include but not limited to the

following:

(a

reappointment and removal of the Auditor;

any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the Auditor before submission to the Board;

and

() to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial  (c)
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures, including the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes

to review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the work
performed by the Auditor, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,

to review the financial statements and reports and consider
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and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting

function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on BZEEeNEREBESEDHNEHH

the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, two Audit Committee
meetings were held and the attendance records of the Audit Committee

Meeting are set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

Directors BEx HERE EERE
Mr. Lau Ying Kit (appointed with effect from BT (82018511 AHEESR(E)

8 November 2018) 0/0
Mr. Wang Qing pasli=pitas 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35t 2/2
Mr. Chow Siu Lui (resigned with effect from EoE (8201811 ASHERT)

8 November 2018) 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Wang
Qing (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang and one executive Director namely Ms.
Zhang Zhijie.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include but not
limited to the following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

2. toreview and approve performance-based remuneration with
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board;

3. to determine the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. These include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

5.  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, three Remuneration Committee meetings
were held and the attendance records are set out below:

RIERR - KBTI =ZAFHNZES S - HELER
HHT ¢

Attendance/

Number of meeting

Directors = HEREEERRE
Mr. Wang Qing padipivtaa 3/3
Ms. Zhang Zhijie sREHEZ T 3/3
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35 3/3

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members, including
one executive Director namely Mr. Huang Xiangbin (chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr.
Lau Ying Kit.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. toassess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and the succession planning for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer; and

5. toreview the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. The
written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, three Nomination Committee meeting was ~ RIREHIR - BRI MR EEees - HiERit
held and the attendance records are set out below: HHmT -
Attendance/
Number of meeting
Directors Ex HERY,EERE
Mr. Huang Xiangbin EEWEE 3/3
Mr. Lau Ying Kit (appointed with effect from 2lsfthE (8201811 A8
8 November 2018) BET) 0/0
Mr. Liu Wenfang B3 E 3/3
Mr. Chow Siu Lui (resigned with effect from PNEEE (B2018F 11 A8H
8 November 2018) AREFE) 3/3
Nomination Policy RAKK
1. Objective 1. A#

1.1

1.2

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates
to the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Director at general meetings or
appoint him/her to fill casual vacancies.

The nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination
Policy”) helps the Nomination Committee and the Board to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Group’s business.

Selection Criteria

2.1

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate.

(1) Reputation for integrity;

)

Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest; and
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Diversity of the Board in all its aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and are not meant to be

exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the

discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

3. Nomination Procedures
3.1 Appointment of Directors

(1

)

®3)

The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s)
suitably qualified to become Board members, having due
regard to the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy, and assesses the independence of the proposed
independent non-executive Director(s) as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.

The Board considers the individual(s) recommended by
the Nomination Committee, having due regard to the
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board confirms the appointment of the individual(s)
as Director(s) or recommends the individual(s) to stand for
election at a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed by
the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board will be subject to re-election by Shareholders
at the next following general meeting, in accordance with
the Articles of Association.

The Shareholders approve the election of individual(s),
who stand(s) for election at general meeting, as
Director(s).

3.2 Re-appointment of Directors

)

)

The Nomination Committee considers each retiring
Director, having due regard to the Nomination Policy and
the Board Diversity Policy, and assesses the independence
of each retiring independent non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.
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The Board considers each retiring Director recommended
by the Nomination Committee, having due regard to the
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board recommends the retiring Directors to stand for
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles of Association.

The Shareholders approve the re-election of Directors at
the annual general meeting.

3.3 The Board shall have the ultimate responsibility for all matters
relating to the selection and appointment of Directors.

4. Review of the Nomination Policy

4.1 The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination
Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to

the Board for consideration and approval.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The remuneration
of senior management, whose biographies are set out on pages 45 to 50
of this annual report, for the Reporting Period are set out below:
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
Respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group'’s
results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates on Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

EEHPHHRRNMBRRET

EEHARSHEETRREZ2018F12A31HIEF
BB RE WEBERQAFRBAQT RAERA
ARRA R R B EEHEIBERE ©

EREECREFSRHEVENFHALER  UEES
SRR 2 EFT R ENA R RN BRI ETH
BHFHE - ARRBARNESE2RNBRHERA
RARE - KRR ATREORITER

ESW T ABRZHIARAEBOEFMEATHAR
o UEATRES A RBOS AL E R N BRENER

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018



Corporate Governance Report T3 E GRS

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 91 to 96 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard Shareholders’ investments and Company assets and reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal
audit department are reviewing the financial condition and internal
control of the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all
branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
the risk management and internal control system to be effective and
adequate.

Main Characteristics of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Group’s risk management framework is structured in the following
“Three Lines of Defence” model as a guide:
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The Board acknowledges its responsibility of overseeing the Group's
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually through ICCG Committee and the Audit
Committee. Such review encompasses all major control aspects, including
finance, operation and compliance. Such risk management and internal
control systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Board has completed its annual review of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018, with all the above major control aspects covered. The Board has
considered the operation of risk management and internal control systems
to be generally adequate and effective, with no significant areas brought
to its attention during the year.

The ICCG Committee and the Audit Committee assist the Board to fulfill
its responsibilities of risk management and internal control, ensuring
adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience, staff training
courses and related budgets for the Group in executing its accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions. The committees also
considers the important investigation results concerning the matters of
risk management and internal control, reports to and raise suggestions to
the Board.

1st Line of Defence

By preparing a risk list with risk control responsibility allocated to
departments, the Group is able to deliver risk management across all
the business departments. These departments continuously review and
assess the risks that may have a potential impact on corporate operation,
and effectively execute the process control for business according to the
respective functions and departmental regulations, all in a bid to raise the
efficiency in risk management.

2nd Line of Defence

Composed of nominated department managers and senior management,
the Risk Management and Internal Control Team (the “Team"”) organizes
business departments to identify, assess and manage the risks that
may have a potential impact on corporate operation, and ensures the
implementation of proper measures and internal control regulations to
address major risks. In the meantime, the Team monitors risks and takes
measures to reduce the risks in daily operation, provides timely response
to and follow up of the investigation results of internal control from
the Internal Audit Department (the “IA Department”), and confirms to
the Board as to the effectiveness of such risk management and internal
control systems.
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3rd Line of Defence

The IA Department executes the actual review procedure, to collect
the evidence on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, and report the review results
to the ICCG Committee. In addition, the IA Department raises suggestions
to the Board and the management, to address major institutional
inadequacies or any control loopholes spotted.

External auditors further complement the third line of defence in respect
of the major risk and control issues on financial reporting procedures that
are spotted during the review process.

Procedures Applied to Identifying, Assessing and

Managing Major Risks

—  Determining the scope: preparing uniform risk terms and risk
assessment standards for the Group

- Risk identification: identifying the risks that may have a potential
impact on corporate operation

—  Risk assessment: considering risks in respect of the degree of
importance of their impact on business and their occurrence, and
assessing the risks identified

—  Risk management: establishing risk management policies and
internal control procedures, to avert or reduce risks

- Risk monitoring and reporting: continuously monitoring relevant
risks, ensuring proper procedures of internal control, and regularly
reporting to the management and the Board on the results of risk
monitoring

Function of Internal Audit

The Group’s IA Department plays a major role in monitoring the internal
governance of the Company. The IA Department’s main responsibilities
are to review the financial conditions and internal control of the Company
and all its subsidiaries, communicate with department managers and
senior management on the identified problems, non-compliance issues
and inadequacies, and jointly prepare rectification and improvement
solutions. The IA Department also follows such rectification results, and
reports to the ICCG Committee and the Audit Committee.

2018 ¥ EIMABEEERAR AR

B

NEPEZ A FTR BATERNENRER - MKEAS
ERRELEAREG RS RARARHER
YAABEHREXERZEGERENER - It
SN MEPEZAPINESE REEEFLERS - UK
EHENERNE BRI PT IR A EIEERK o

SN B R B EEZ BT ERNYERERFT
EHEARRR MEHIRE - - THTE =B -

RRER -~ FHEREEERREBRNERF
—  WURE AREEHES— SRR AERER
S

—  ERER B AR REERRBETEN
2

—  [ERFHE - EERREEBZENERRE RE
ERAIRENE - W AHEE BB R R

— RARERE: mIRRERRENAEGIERF
VAR LE S PEAE R e

— REREBEER HEEEAMER - ERR
RENREENRERF  YAEEEREESTH
EREAREBNER

M EREAX I RE

AEENAREZBIEERARAABE AT HE
EEEAG  NHERIPINIERELENARA
KA KB A BB AR R AERES] R AR
B ERFRA TR EESHIICERERERE
B KA RIERTET R - REBEZARFIIRR
EBHNER - MAREHREREERRZBEUARERX

= @%i& °

éz\ai#

87



88

Corporate Governance Report T3 E G

Information Disclosure System

The Group has formulated its information disclosure system, to ensure the
identification and confidentiality of potential inside information until it is
disclosed according to the Listing Rules in a consistent and timely manner.
The procedures for publishing and processing inside information include:

o Business department managers as the people in charge of
information reporting;

o Senior management as the people in charge of the information
confidentiality of their respective business segments;

e The Board as the party in charge of information disclosure; and

e  The Investor Relations Department and the Board Secretary as
the parties responsible for managing information disclosure, the
reporting, audit and disclosure of information which needs public
announcement, and archiving and keeping such information
disclosure documents and announcements.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration for the audit services provided by the Auditor to the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
RMB2,700,000. There is no remuneration paid to the Auditor in respect of
non-audit services.

Company Secretary

During the Reporting Period, Ms. Ko Wing Yu (“Ms. Ko"), one of our joint
company secretaries of the Company, is responsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the Board policies
and procedures, as well as the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company
also engages Ms. Leung Suet Lun (“Ms. Leung”), senior manager of TMF
Hong Kong Limited (a global corporate service provider), as another joint
company secretary to assist Ms. Ko to discharge her duties as company
secretary of the Company during the Reporting Period. The primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Ko, one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Ms. Ko and Ms. Leung have
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Subsequent
to the Reporting Period, Ms. Leung resigned as a joint company secretary
of the Company with effect from 29 March 2019. Following the
resignation of Ms. Leung, Ms. Ko will remain in office as the sole company
secretary of the Company.
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Communication with Shareholders and Investor Relations
The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies. The
Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions.

The AGM provides opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees will attend the AGM to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend the AGM to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the independent auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a shareholders’
communication policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship
and communication between the Company and the Shareholders and
maintains a website of the Company at www.sinco-pharm.com, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are available for public access.

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution will
be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the HKSE in a timely manner after each
general meeting.
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Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company according to the Articles of Association. Any one
or more members holding as at date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures
are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the headquarters
of the Company at E5-1805, Global Centre, No. 1700, North section of
Tianfu Avenue, High-Tech Zone, Chengdu, Sichuan, PRC. (email address:
sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.com).

Change in Constitutional Documents

The amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association have
been adopted on 1 February 2016 and with effect from the Listing Date.
And there were no significant changes in the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B A2 B E

To the shareholders of Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 97 to 201, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter.
For the matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

92

BRETEH
MRETFRIREESNERNE  RRYESE
AEHRAVMBERRRAEENER - ZFFEIRN
EERBRGAVBRRARESHEEHERRE
TRIE  MESTeRZSEFTREHREBNER - 5t
ZFEME - BERMEHRBBEESREAHOMAE
HERIRA AL -

BEEERITABRERUI AT A& EHRK RAE
WEE—SHMANEE(BRAEZEEENEDT) -
it - BEENETEERRITE ERERAVBTREE
AR AR ENRERF - EEHNEHEFE
(BEMEEA T ERMNTORT) RE SR
BMBEHMRELETERREER -

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018



Independent Auditor’s Report ¥& 37 1% 21 & £k &

Key audit matter (Continued)

BRETEE(E)

Key audit matter
BRETER
Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB T

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

TEETEINNTEERESENSEH

In accordance with IFRSs, the Group is required to annually
test the amount of goodwill for impairment. This annual
impairment test was significant to our audit because the
carrying amount of goodwill of RMB23,701,000 as of 31
December 2018 which was material to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, management’s impairment
assessment process is complex and highly judgemental and
is based on assumptions, specially budgeted gross margins,
growth rates and the discount rate, which are affected by
expected future market or economic conditions. Management
performed the impairment assessment based on the discounted
cash flow model on the related cash-generating units (“CGUs").
A total impairment loss on goodwill of RMB23,701,000 was
recognised during the year.

The Group’s disclosures about impairment assessment of
goodwill are included in note 3 headed “SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES” and note 15 headed “GOODWILL"
to the financial statements.

BEBEBRYEREER - ESEEETHHERESHEET
B - FEREINARTENETIMEBEE - RRAEZ
2018F 12 A3 1 HMEEREE AR 23,701,000 T 484 B
BERERMSBEK ° L4 - EEENRET G BREHESS
e EHE T ERRRE  CHEIRBEERR  BREKAR
K ZEHRRBHAN S REERRNZE - EEEBIREAR
BEREER - BEBRSEABM([IRESELSM|)ETR
Bl - FABRANREREREEEAARE23,701,000

JT °©

EEEAERERENENRBERNMERRMEINEES
st I RMEE15[ & -

Our audit procedures included:

e  obtaining an understanding of the goodwill impairment
assessment process to identify the risks of material
misstatement affecting the goodwill;

e  testing the impairment model selected for CGUs, by
understanding the model methodology, comparing that
to our understanding of the CGUs and checking the
mathematical accuracy;

e  assessing the cash flow projection by comparing key
market-derived estimates, including selling prices of
pharmaceutical products and the discount rate, against
external data;

° assessing the cash flow projection by comparing sales
volume and other key items to historical results, current
market conditions and management’s business strategy;
holding discussions with senior management; and
reviewing documentation such as new contracts and the
historical order book; and

e with the assistance of the valuation specialist, evaluating
the key valuation parameters such as the discount rate,
terminal growth rate applied and the valuation model used
in the impairment assessment models, which are based
on complex assumptions used in the estimation.

o HMEBRENGBIE AT ERBNEAHERR
AR

o EBEMIRNINE RESHRSELBMAERET
th - WREEAEERN - AIRARR S EEEMN
EARBERR

o BBKTMSHERNERGH (EREREERMAX)E
SNERBURETTH L AR AR SRETR -

o BBNHENEMEARERRBERE  REHSNRN
REBEBNEBREETHL NGRS RERA - &
FEHESREEBETNR  BRUHEORBERE
REEREXM - R

o EFHERRGHFMEMMIRE - AAKNRKEEEER
BERGEEAAABBEEAE - FFEERMGFBEE
FHERERRRR
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Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

S| E thE
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SRR E B EASRERAL -
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOS5 AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2 |:|\/

) HittZE W=

Year ended 31 December 2018 #,E2018% 12 A31HIEE

2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BfaE AR¥TT ARBFT
REVENUE U & 4 952,957 806,723
Cost of sales S E BN (731,932) (713,190)
Gross profit EF 221,025 93,533
Other income and gains HABYA R 7 5 12,115 4,211
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HERAY (268,576) (95,919)
Administrative expenses TR (55,497) (57,256)
Impairment loss on intangible assets mEEAEREERE 13 - (27,531)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREEER 15 (23,701) (38,961)
Impairment losses on trade receivables B S EWGIEREER 19 (951) =
Impairment losses on financial FTATENFIE - HMpE
assets included in prepayments, WERIE R H M & E A
other receivables and other assets EREERMEERE 16 (526)
Other expenses Hpx (121,086) (39,244)
Finance costs B RS RKZR 6 (34,818) (33,701)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BBATER 7 (272,015) (194,868)
Income tax credit/(expense) Fiissise, (Ax) 9 (8,600) 8,971
LOSS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FRABEREZMHE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ikt (280,615) (185,897)
Attributable to: AT A RELE
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZFZ=N (280,614) (185,896)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A (1) (1
(280,615) (185,897)
Loss per share attributable to ordinary (SYNGIE-S &l eSS PN/
equity holders of the parent: BREE
Basic BN
— For loss for the year (RMB) —FREBEB(ARET) 11 (0.166) (0.115)
Diluted ey
— For loss for the year (RMB) —FREBEB(ARET) 11 (0.166) (0.115)

2018 3 EIRIARBEEZERER AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PBIR R

31 December 2018 2018412A31H

2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bzt AR®T T AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KRB 12 181,809 191,767
Intangible assets B EE 13 113 223
Payments in advance TEf IR 14 39,455 40,736
Goodwill mE 15 - 23,701
Deposit Ee 16 3,000 3,000
Deferred tax assets RIS E 17 1,300 9,159
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 225,677 268,586
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories =8 18 214,806 291,193
Trade and bills receivables B S EWEIE R EWERE 19 26,177 37,106
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTRIE « HAthEHGRIE R
other assets Hi&EE 16 64,759 146,683
Pledged bank balances EEAIRITE 20 13 52,941
Cash and cash equivalents Re REEEEY 20 80,330 22,710
Total current assets REBEEHE 386,085 550,633
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables B S ERFIE 21 106,901 22,522
Advances from customers ZEE - 41,503
Contract liabilities AHAaE 22 129,670
Other payables and accruals H b AT FRIE R FERT R 23 205,525 70,029
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings aﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ{%%’( 24 145,000 275,815
Tax payable FERHLIR 1,943 2,546
Financial liability at fair value through DHEAERFREEER AT ERA
profit or loss classified as held for trading BRENEmAasE 25 - 218
Bonds &5 26 - 133,856
Total current liabilities REEEALE 589,039 546,489
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE (AE)FHE (202,954) 4,144
Total assets less current liabilities wEERABASE 22,723 272,730
Net assets EEFE 22,723 272,730
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4238 B AR R 3R

31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s ARBFT AR¥ETT
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of BATEEA
the parent bR
Issued capital BEITRA 27 136 130
Reserves e 29 23,493 273,505
23,629 273,635
Non-controlling interests R RS (906) (905)
Total equity fERBE 22,723 272,730
Huang Xiangbin Liu Wenfang
EHREW 8355
Director Director
EF EF
2018 3R R BEIERBRAA

99



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Il‘/j—\ *ﬂh) ( %E,% Ej] %

Year ended 31 December 2018 #,E2018%12 A31H ILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARRAAEE
Changes  Retained
Share Share innon-  earnings/ Non-
Issued  premium Contributed  Statutory option  controlling  (accumulated controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve  interests losses) Total interests equity

R REER/
BRTRA RORER EHRH  iERG BRERE #5929  (ZRER) @ FEREE  EREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTE ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETz ARETR ARETR
(note 27)  (note 29(@)  (note 29(b))  (note 29(c)  (note 29(a))
(W2r)  (W#29e)  (BE9k)  (BE290) (h#294)

At 1 January 2017 R2017%1818 130 258,887+ 4,250 14,505 995* 4014 175398 458,179 (904) 457275
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year ERERR2 AFEEE - - - - - - (1858%)  (185,:89%) (1) (185897)
Transfer from retained eamings EEREET - - - 24 - - (24) = = =
Equity-settled share option amangements  WERE ERERER
(note 28) (Hi28) - - - - 1,352 - - 1,352 - 1,352
At31 December 2017 0178128318 130 258 887* 4,250* 14,529* 2,347* 4,014* (10522 273,635 (905) 272,730
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1 A 130 258,887+ 4,250 14,529* 2347 4,014 (10522)¢ 273,635 (905) 272,730
Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 (note 2.2) %@IWW?&&-‘E@‘J% R
Hi22) - - - - - - (164) (164) - (164)
At 1January 2018 (restated) R2018£1A18 (£5E5)) 130 258,887* 4,250* 14,529* 2,347* 4,014* (10,686)* 273471 (905) 272,566
Transfer of convertible bonds EZARES 6 30,226 - - - - - 30,232 - 30,232
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year £NEER 2 EEEEE - - - - - - (280614)  (280,614) (1) (280615
Equity-settled share option amangements  WIRERERERET
(note 28) (W328) - - - - 540 - - 540 - 540
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12A331R 136 289,113* 4,250* 14,529* 2,887% 4,014%  (291,300)* 23,629 (906) 2,13

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB23,493,000 * EREEAIESAMEMRNIEANGSBEARK
(2017: RMB273,505,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 23,493,0007T (20174 = AFR¥273,505,0007T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

an\ Iﬁl%/ﬂb%%

Year ended 31 December 2018 #,Z2018512A31HILFE

2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BiE AR¥TR ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & EBIfSRENE
Loss before tax BrEiRIE R (272,015) (194,868)
Adjustments for: FEUTEIE :
Depreciation e 12 10,363 10,660
Amortisation of intangible assets A 13 110 4,700
Amortisation of decoration cost A A E i 7 169 -
Unrealised foreign exchange gain AEIRE H S (29) (221)
Gains on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BEREEEE
plant and equipment e 5 - (128)
Equity-settled share option expense VARG R 45 B ) BB AR A =2 28 540 1,352
Interest income on an available-for-sale investment 3¢ 5 7] {f H & &% & 9 K B4 A 5 - (2,024)
Fair value losses on financial assets DEABEEERATE
at fair value through profit or loss FSTABERNERMERE
classified as held for trading NYEEE 25 - 218
Finance costs TR AR 6 34,818 33,701
Foreign exchange gains, net, BEH RIRITE A INE
on bonds and bank loans W as 558 (4,534) =
Consulting fees in relation to financing activities ~ RA & EBIEREAAE 1,346 -
Bank interest income RITH B A 5 (627) (1,155)
Write-off of inventories FEMH 7 117,875 -
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 77 & iU = ] &8 )% B 7 - 25,213
Impairment of trade receivables B S WS IERE 7 951 -
Impairment of financial assets included in SFAFERFE - EfbER
prepayments, other receivables and HIBREMEER
other assets CREERME 7 526 -
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 13 - 27,531
Impairment of goodwill EERE 15 23,701 38,961
(86,806) (56,060)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables 2 5 FE UL 2k TE & fE N Z 1%
WA/ (38 n) 9,814 (17,238)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FERIE - EtEREIER
other receivables and other assets HiEEmRD, () 75,182 (71,444)
Increase in inventories FEEN (41,488) (178,804)
Decrease/(increase) in payments in advance TR SRIER L (38h0) 762 (8,581)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B S ZEE i, Ond) 84,379 (23,310)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals - th i 1< T8 K fE 513508
#40,GRid) (23,498) 10,167
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEILIN 129,670 -
Decrease in advances from customers BERIIF D (41,503) (4,162)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations LEmE/(FrR)ES 106,512 (349,432)
Interest received BHFILE 627 641
Tax paid BRI (1,344) (9,863)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities &8 & EBIFT1S, (FrA)
REme F8 105,795 (358,654)

2018 3 EIRIARBEEZERER AR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows # SR ERER
Year ended 31 December 2018 &iZ2018%F12831HILFE

2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BisE ARBTR ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ REZEHFEHELHE
Purchase of items of property, HBEME  BE K&

plant and equipment HiEIEE (1,154) (4,425)
Purchase of intangible assets T EEE - (60)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME -« BREKEHEEE

plant and equipment FT1S50I8 - 322
Increase in payments in advance TEftE Iﬁi“ﬂﬂ (258) (25,317)
Acquisition of subsidiaries IR A - (6,616)
Settlement of financial liability at fair value DERFEE

through profit or loss classified as held for ?ﬁ’&$@‘+)\?§*

trading E’Jimﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ (218) =
Redemption of an available-for-sale investment &R —IAR[{tHERE - 108,081
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities & EBIFFES,(FrA)

WREMEFE (1,630) 71,985
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ B&EEFBfIBRSHFE
Interest paid 2RFLE (20,021) (33,607)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, other TEfTFRIE © H A FERGRIE K&

receivables and other assets HhEERD(35m) 5,889 (7,048)
Increase in payments in advance SELNE - (1,346)
Net proceeds from issue of convertible BT MRES RES

bonds and bonds FR{S kI8 F 58 30,559 139,881
Repayment of bonds EEES (129,145) =
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREMERFEHIE 334,149 632,537
Repayment of bank and other borrowings ERIRTTREMER (465,141) (520,919)
Increase in other payables and accruals H i E A~ 3078 N FE T FIEE AN 144,208 -
Net cash flows/(used in) from financing activities @& ;&S (FrA)

W mE 58 (99,502) 209,498
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRBLEEYEM (FHD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS REE 4,663 (77,171)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net HNETE R F T B ER 29 (1,257)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ F¥IH & RIEELE ﬁ% 75,651 154,079
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERXRRELRES

END OF YEAR ZEY 80,343 75,651
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERBREEEYN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERDH
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the WEARRERPAYIR © &

statement of financial position fﬁ/ﬁgﬁ ) 20 80,330 22,710
Time deposits with original maturity of less than SRR E T BB

three months when acquired, pledged as :1.)5! REERZE

security for letters of credit I E B FR 20 13 22,941
Time deposits with maturity date within three FER BB =18 A AE

months, pledged as security for a bank loan RITEFEFNTHFR 20 - 30,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the ReamsaXRkmiEe &

statement of cash flows ReEEY 80,343 75,651
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e ER

31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

Corporate and Group Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 16 March 2015. The registered office address of
the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands. The Company'’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong is Unit 3105, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour
Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong with effect from 29 January 2019.

During the Reporting Period, the Group were principally engaged
in marketing, promotion and channel management services for
improved human plasma-based pharmaceuticals, antibiotics
and other pharmaceuticals focused on therapeutic areas and
complementary to human plasma-based products and other fast-
growing categories in Mainland China. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
Reporting Period.

In the opinion of the Directors, Risun Investments Limited (“Risun”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is the
parent and the ultimate holding company of the Company.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

REAREEER

RARAR2015F3 16 AEFH S S MK
SHBERATR o AR AR M EE UL RP.O.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands ° NAR] BB EBE Eit
HRBEREFBEBIRERESIAKE305
= B20196 1 A29A B4R »

BEHMA - AEEEERPEAMBEELREAR
MARER - RAERRFIR AN A BT
S R EREE R A E BRI TS
i EEIRBEERE - AEBT2EBH
HENRERAL BB ARES -

EE7 A 0 Risun Investments Limited ([ Risun )
(ERBHBRRHE ([ RBERRAHE MK
WA ONEIDY=Y: /NCI [ FSENCIPNE = #4824 /NI

FiE 1~ =&
AARMBARMOFEMT :
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIET

31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

DA REEER(

MELRER(E)

i
E)

Place and date

of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered  equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company  Principal activities
ML S BRITLE/ KAREL
i REHMEEEHY AR BEED TEER
Direct  Indirect
= it
% %
Starwell Group Holding Limited 26 November 2013 Us$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Az EEERER AR BVI 50,000% 7T REER
2013F11H26H
EBERRES
Bright Ritzy Limited 5 August 2016 Us$1 100 - Investment holding
REERAF BVI (B RERR
201658 A5H
EBEBRES
Hong Kong Prosperous Group 20 December 2013 HK$100 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical
Holding Limited Hong Kong 100757T products
EREEEERERERAR 2013%12A208 HEEm
BE
Glorious Empire Limited 26 August 2016 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
BHE AR AR Hong Kong 18T REER
20168 H26H
&
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.0 1 April 2011 RMB50,000,000 = 100 Sale of pharmaceutical
("Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals”) PRC/Mainland China AR #50,000,0007C products
M BN RS EREEARD 201144/1H HEEm
(TP ERAZE ) A,
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

AAREEER(E)
MBARER (&)

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place and date

of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered  equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company  Principal activities
ML S BRTEE/ KAREL
% REHMEEEY R BEAD TEER
Direct  Indirect
HE Gk
% %
Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology Co., Ltd.® 25 November 2013 RMB1,000,000 - 70  Research and development on
o) BRI A YRR A R A A0 PRC/Mainland China AR#1,000,0007T pharmaceutical products
2013511A258 Emia
FE R
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical 26 February 2014 RMB22,000,000 - 100 Providing warehouse facilities
Technology Co., Ltd.® PRC/Mainland China AR#22,000,0007T for pharmaceutical products
HHERARERMAREE R 2014%2A26R RtERRERE
FEIAH
Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang 4 March 2015 RMB100,000 - 100 Consultation on medical and
Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China AR #100,0007T biological technology
("Chengdu Hengsheng") 201593748 BEREMEMNHE
A ER LR ERMEREERA FE A
(TBEER |)o
Xizang Linzhi Ziguang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 17 November 2014 RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical
("Linzhi Ziguang")® PRC/Mainland China AR #10,000,0007T products
ERNE N EEBREERA 2014118178 HEEm
(IHEEK O B
Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd.0 25 August 2016 RMB5,000,000 - 100 Trading and consultation
("Sinco Shanghai”) PRC/Mainland China AR#5,000,0007T B 5 KikH
ENR(LB)EHERAR0 201658A25R
([ERE L)) RE A
Qingdao Yusheng Hengying Trading Co., Ltd.% 15 November 2016 RMB30,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
("Qingdao Yunsheng") PRC/Mainland China AE#30,000,0007C REER
BEEREREFERAFD 20165114158
([E588%]) RE R

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

1.

Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

DA REEER(

MELRER(E)

i
E)

Place and date

of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered  equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company  Principal activities
TR M2 BRTEE/ ANTIELL
8 RASEEENY MR BEEDL TEER
Direct  Indirect
HE Gk
% %
Qingdao Ruichi Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.® 15 May 2007 RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical
("Qingdao Ruichi”) PRC/Mainland China AE#10,000,0007T products
HEEMBEEERAA0 2007548158 HEEmM
([EBMmE]) BRI
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.® 17 February 2011 RMB68,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical
("Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals”) PRC/Mainland China AR#68,000,0007T products
HHERAREBRARY 20115278178 HEEm
([RABERIAEE ) B
(i)  Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, Sinco Shanghai and Qingdao Yusheng () POl EREREEE - EmEER ERE SEERESR
are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under laws of the BLEEZMARINGBEERE -
PRC.
(i) These subsidiaries are registered as domestic enterprises under laws of (i)  ZEWNBLARRBEFBEZEREAMARNEDRE -
the PRC.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 753k R HizE
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.1 REEE

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
comprise standards and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Standing Interpretations
Committee Interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Committee that remain in effect. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention. These financial

“IASB"), and International

statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Going concern basis

During the Reporting Period, the Group incurred a consolidated loss
of RMB280,615,000 (2017: RMB185,897,000). As at 31 December
2018, the Group had net current liabilities of RMB202,954,000
(2017: net current assets of RMB4,144,000).

In view of these circumstances, the Directors have given
consideration to the future liquidity and performance of the Group
and its available sources of finance in assessing whether the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. In order to improve the Group'’s liquidity and cash flows to
sustain the Group as a going concern, the Group implemented or is
in the process of implementing the following measures:

(@ Asat 31 December 2018, the Group had unused bank facilities
in aggregate of RMB55.0 million;

(b) The Group has budgeted and laid out its business plan for the
next twelve months, and seeks to attain profits and generate
net cash inflows from the operating activities during the next
twelve months with the efforts of actively further improving its
sales model under the new policies for stabilising its business
development. The Group will continuously promote presence
in the downstream of marketing network channels and extend
it to the end market by establishing multi-mode cooperation
with hospitals and pharmacies; and

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

ZE ISR IR AR B R B A R s 2E R ([ BB B 75
HEEADRE - BEMBNAERNERS:
AR Ee([REGENRES )R MH%ER]
EZEEUARBE £ ZE 2R R s
ERI([EREER D RERRELZESRE -
ZEVBRRILZELEANERIRR - BB HEH
FON 0 RSV BHREAARE(TARE D2
MmATEEBESNEEREITIT -

;i IR H S

WEHARN  AEEEAKEBEBEARE
280,615,000 (2017 4 = A R # 185,897,000
7T) ° R2018F12A318 » AEERBAEFE
A ARM202,954,00070(20174F « B EEF
EAAREEA 144,0007T) °

ERZEER  EENTEAEERTHA TR
M E RSB E R  EEEARENRR
RBEE RFRFEUREASATBER - BNE
AEERREE S MRS RE NG RNEEFE
e REECENIEEE I N

(a) %2018%12%315 ’ZKE@%ﬁﬁﬁébﬁﬁ

(b) AEBEERARKI2EAGERERER

S BOAREFBR TE—TREHE
BANBEEEBER - BHSRKRARR

ToEAAESRMNREEEEHEER S
TMEFEE o A E A ETHEE T & S

ERRRE - WiBiEM S M EE R
LA AER RN ARHTIBIEH - &
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Notes to Financial Statements B 753k R HisE
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

(€ On 27 March 2019 (after trading hours), the Company,
Mr. Gui, an independent individual, Risun, Mr. Huang,
Guangsha Overseas, an independent third party, and Mr. Ye,
an independent individual, entered into the Supplemental
Agreement to extend the repayment date of the other
borrowings of RMB140.0 million mentioned in note 24 to
the financial statements for an additional year from 30 April
2019 to 30 April 2020. Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated on 27 March 2019 and note 38 to the
financial statements for details.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow forecast
prepared by management which covers a period of twelve months
from the end of the Reporting Period. They are of the opinion that,
taking into account the above-mentioned plans and measures, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the Reporting Period on a going concern basis.

Should the going concern assumption for whatever reason or as a
result of changing circumstances, becomes inappropriate, necessary
accounting adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation
that assets may need to be realised at the amounts other than which
they are currently recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In addition, the Group may have to accrue or make
provisions for additional liabilities, including contingent liabilities that
may arise under such circumstances, and accordingly, may reclassify
non-current assets as current assets at realisable values, as the case
may be.

The Audit Committee of the Board has confirmed that it has
objectively and critically reviewed the measures mentioned above.
The Audit Committee of the Board and the Board have confidence in
the Group’s management and concurred with management’s view
that the Group’s business plan for the next twelve months is feasible
and achievable.

2.1 RBEE(E)

FERERE(E)
(© M2019F3A27H(RGEEE) » ARD
Al - — BB ALTHERLE Risun » B
BB R HEESINAR— BB
_L/\i%?ﬁiﬂ_ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%:‘ » LAS B 75 3R
K24 R EMERARKE 14008 8
TTEEEBHE2019F4 308 8NER
— 4 FE2020F4 5300 - AR WEAED
AN AFHEA2019F3 27BN AE
MBI FE38 o

EEEEMAEEEMRRREHREHRE
TEAABRAEENR RSN - EEE
wE I KR - EERRAREFAGERAINE
BEESABNESEMRS - WA RERERTT
HRMPBEE - Bt - EFERRIFFEREE
ERBAEERSHNGESPBHERETIEE
52 o

ﬁ?iit%&féﬂ']fﬁjm.ﬁﬁf@ﬁﬂjﬁ 5 0 A i 4
BAEE - A BERMERNSEAR - Uk
B%é%‘]ﬁ%%%’% ZE B JI AR S BT BSAROR R PTRS
RETRNESELZHMNER o 1IN - NEEIRA]
BEETEIRFEINE BB BB (REEEHE
N T AIREEERS ARG FHERE - WAMA
R SREERERBEEET D ERARBEE
(RIERME)

EXeENZEeHR - HETEMFHELBRS
LiifE  EFRBRZ e REFSUAEH
MEBERMEDL  YERERENEY  BR
AREBRAK+ —EANBEA BRI RAIE
I8 o
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Notes to Financial Statements B 753k R HizE
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.1 RBEE(E)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The Group has actively implemented, or is actively implementing,
all the improvement targets outlined above for the purposes of
increasing profits and improving the cash flow position of the
Group, in order to remove material uncertainties relating to the
going concern of the Group for the next twelve months.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the Reporting
Period. A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

TREEEE(E)
AEEERKEAERIEERE LMMARZERR
B INGEN R EAEBERERENR - B
BrEREENAR T EANFELCLERNE
AT -

meRE
REMBRRBEARA REWNE D RRREH
MR TSR o M A B AN D A B IR S AR
MERE - EAKERB2EREHRNAMEEY
MAERZRHNRRIAEZEAIZOE - I
BRENERHREHSNEN (AR TAEER
BRENATEREH RIS ETFEN)
B2 L OWMET - BNEYSEESIE -

HARBERLEERER IREEHRKREBOH
SEFBLERN  AARERHHEESEHAY
REHSNENRSERMEEREENENR -
B

(a) HEREHREMEIEREANAGNOLEE

(o) EtbAHLHMELNEN &
(0 AEBNRFZRIEERZE-

BB A BRI S ER R IR R A R AR R A RS AR
g WERAER—RNEBER - HBARME
BRAEERGETIRE B ESRAFTE  LHEEA
RAFTE  EEREFIERLZBARIE -

B G BRI s E A B SRR - B RE
RSN S EEKRBO DREERASES R
BB ARIFER g - BARERKERRRS
BRENMEEEARRIREENAE « B - W
A FXRREREBDNER S RBEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained, and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Amendments to IFRS 15 Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration
Annual Improvements Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28

2014-2016 Cycle

2.1 RBEE(E)

mEEE(E)
fisd 35 8 B 1500 SR AR Lt = TR | (R = ey Ho e — T8
KEBEMEE - MAEESEGHRTIIAES

REHR - WERREZHEONBRRIPTEEE
PEARBRARS -

fin 25 5= B L < FT J8 A R A9 4 - RIBUBRERR()
ZHBARIMEE (BIERE) RBE - (NERSE
72 % A 2 A B T R (i) P B 2 N RE B ) 2 5T B
HER REROMERENATE - ()RS
ERHREN D TE KB EREEENA
& o ST E R Efth 2 E U e FERR Y AN 52 (B FE L 6
AEMHDEEBEENREB SN (WER) - BHE
HAREEFEHERBEEXBEMRERAEE
A o

22 S BERRBRENEH

AR B B R BRI T FI3ET R
EETERE RS 2R -

BIPR B 15 s 228

%= KR B BRI IS
FE25R(BFTA)

AR E

BRIITSIMERER] B AR &R E4

FARUBRTAR) FEIRBR A AT — HFIEFF B
BB IR R R 95
EETA

BRI iR 2MTA

FI5R

BRI SIS ER KEEFARAIN N

%1558

RIS AER]  HEERA IR RS

F155(EFTA) FI5 KA EFE
I 7 80

Re T ERIEL405, R Sy E

({E5TA)

BRI IS RE 2 SRS GRBTHE

REEFHEH

2014 Z20164F B PR B 7 e 5 22 AU 561 5%

B F 2 25 KRBT ERIE 285
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FR Mz
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)
Other than as explained below regarding the impact of IFRS 9, IFRS
15 and the amendments to IFRS 15, the adoption of the above new
and revised standards has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

Further information about IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 applied by the Group is

described below:

(a)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments:
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting.

With the exception of hedge accounting, which the Group
has applied prospectively, the Group has recognised the
transition adjustments against the applicable opening balances
in of equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the comparative
information was not restated and continues to be reported
under IAS 39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of adopting
IFRS 9 on the statement of financial position, including the
effect of replacing IAS 39's incurred credit loss calculations
with IFRS 9's expected credit losses (“ECLs").

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

22 SBERRBEENEE(E)

BT X B ey BB B TS S E RIS 05 - BRREL
T s AR RIS 15 5% M BRI B 15 e 5 HE R 361557
(BRI PTERRZEIN - R a3 3T RSB RT 24
A2 EM BRI BEANBHE

RARA AN [ P E% A B B 75 3 o5 2B 1) S5 9 55 K B
MRS IEERE1SRAE— S EMBR T

(a) BIBREIIETREZERIFERMN2018F1H1H
2 % BARNEE SRR &5 28]
F39%: : HBEKFE  EReMIASEH
BEMNAME=@IE : 2BEKFE  BRE
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BREDREEEEINASEETELEKA)
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

22 S BERRBEENEE(E)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(@) (Continued) (a) (#&)
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under IAS 39 201851 A1 BIR BB & 5T R 3955
and the balances reported under IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is =T E A BRE B BAR IR B PR B S s E RIEE 9
as follows: SR2IMAAERERAT
IAS39 measurement IFRS9 measurement
BB ERE305E Re- ERABREENEIRHE
Notes Category Amount  classification ECL Amount Category
hit EA 1] ENSE RHGEEE i B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
Financial assets SREE
Trade receivables 2 SEWER (i) L&R! 26,481 - (164) 26,317 AC
Bills receivables JES (il L8R 10,625 - = 10,625 Fvock
Financial assets included in prepayments,  StATERTUE - EpEWEER
ofher receivables and other assets EEENEREE i L8R 3679 = = 3679 AC
Deposit k% (i L&R 3,000 - - 3,000 AC
Pledged bank balances BERRTER L&R 52,941 = = 52,941 AC
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEN L&R 2,710 = = 2,710 AC
119,436 - (69 11921
Other assets EfhEE
Deferred tax assets EEHAEE 9,159 = = 9,159
Total assets BELE 128,595 - (164) 128431
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade payables BAENTRE AC 252 - - 2522 AC
Financialliabiites included in other HALEN AR SE
payables and accruals HERERE AC 68,588 - - 68,588 AC
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 3t SRR EMER AC 275,815 - - 275,815 AC
Finandial liability at fair value through NBABEEERATEA
profit or loss classified as held for trading ~ E&HIERERE FVpL2 218 - - 218 FVPL
Bonds &% AC 133,856 - - 133,856 AC
Total liabilities BEEE 500,999 - = 500,999
1L&R: Loans and receivables VL8R EREEWGRIE
2AC:  Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost IAC:  IREERAENSREENSRAE
3FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss SFVPL: ROV EABRNEREE
4 FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive ARVOC : RATFEFARMEERKRENSREE
Income
Notes: Bt

(i) The Group has remeasured the carrying amount of the trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets and deposits based on the ECL

allowance.

() AEECEBEHEEERREBEENTER

2R -

SEATRRARIR - EAh UK

AR EMEENDREEARRESHRE

B-
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FR Mz
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

22 SBERRBEENEE(E)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(@) (Continued) (a) (#&)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat - (58)
(i) The Group has reclassified its bills receivable as at 1 January (i) AEBEE¥2018F1 A1 EMENEZEEE

2018 from category of loans and receivables to financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income. Other than
the reclassification, the adoption of IFRS 9 has had no significant
impact on the Group’s profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

FREYHIBRRER D REBRE MR
EWRSRAFEFENSREE - REH
DN FRANBR R EERIEIRY
REFENBER KA MEERGMEEAT
o,

TR RIREIFR & 512 B 55 3957 1O A VIR
ERME AR ERIRER M R E LR FE 5
MIEREREERBEYHE - ARE— T
BRI IR 1915 -

Impairment

The following table reconciles the aggregate opening
impairment allowances under IAS 39 to the ECL allowances
under IFRS 9. Further details are disclosed in note 19 to the
financial statements.

Impairment ECL
allowances allowances
under IAS 39 under IFRS 9

at 31 December Re- at 1 January
2017 mearsurement 2018

R2018%5

20175 1818
12A318 RBER T
REERE HELERIEIR
ZE 583955 1 WEREE
AERE BHE EERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Trade receivables Z Sl g - 164 164

Impact on reserves and retained profits

HHERRE e &

The impact of transition to IFRS 9 on reserves is as follows: BE = BB SRS AE R B oS B R E 2

T
RMB’000
AREFT
Accumulated reserves attributable to RARIHEE ANEIERAHRE
owners of the Company
Balance as at 31 December 2017 72017912 A31 BREEER
under IAS 39 B ERIEIR ML 273,505
Recognition of ECL for trade receivables HERAR IS RS B 75 3 5 4 A
under IFRS 9 FEORMTEHEEEE (164)

201851 B 1 B R BB B 15
REER B AE

Balance as at 1 January 2018

under IFRS 9 273,341

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

113



Notes to Financial Statements B 753k R HisE
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

IFRS 15 and its amendments replace IAS 11 Construction
Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it
applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. IFRS 15 establishes a five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total
revenue, information about performance obligations, changes
in contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The disclosures
are included in note 4 to the financial statements. As a result
of the application of IFRS 15, the Group has changed the
accounting policy with respect to revenue recognition in note
2.4 to the financial statements.

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the
standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of
initial application or only to contracts that are not completed
at this date. The Group has elected to apply the standard to
contracts that are not completed as at 1 January 2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of IFRS 15
was recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of accumulated losses as at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the
comparative information was not restated and continues to be
reported under IAS 18 and related interpretations.

Before the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group recognised
consideration received from customers as advances from
customers. Under IFRS 15, the amount is classified as contract
liabilities. Therefore, upon the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group
reclassified RMB41,503,000 from advances from customers
to contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018 in relation to the
consideration received from customers in advances. As at
31 December 2018, under IFRS 15, RMB129,670,000 was
reclassified from advances from customers to contract liabilities
in relation to the consideration received from customers in
advance for the sale of goods.

22 S BERRBEENEE(E)

(b)

BB B 75 3R 5 HE RSB 1558 REE AT AR
B e EEREZESA  BRest
ERF18 Mz B RERRE - B EBISN
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fR - REBEBEBEM RS ERFE 155 - K
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MERESHRERESERER - BFRET
B ERERIZE 1550 R A A E R BRI
SRR E NSRBI ITE « ZERITREIA
BERZOEMREERERTE @ BEIHK
HARE  BRETEENER - TRBHE
ZERHWEENBERBEHRNEB AR
ERHE R - BRARBEHNMBHRE
BiEE4 - N ERABIR M ISR EERE15
5 ARBERMBHKRM T2 45U
REREFTHR

REERBIERT BB PN T NN E
B R R ERIF 1558 - RIBZ AR © %
ERIA] FEFR R WIIAFE R B BT E A 4Bk
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BB IERZERIEANRE2018F 1 A1 8 &
RIERHIEH o

25 BR AR B B B A R A5 22 RI B 1 550 A0 R A+
FERRAY2018%F1 A18 Kt E18 1)
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BAEELBER e ERIF 185 IR AR
23§ -

FANEIFR B IS S5 R B 155% 2 Al - A&
B E PR ERERRE N -
BRI B HMEERFE 155 - 28D
HAAHAE - Bt - MBI #%R
HAERIF 155514 - AEEFREF KA
I ER B9 B A R #41,503,000C E & F 4
REFDER2018F1A1EHNEHNEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)
(b) (Continued)
Other than the reclassification explained above, the adoption
IFRS 15 has had no impact on the Group'’s profit or loss and
other comprehensive income or on the Group's operating,
investing and financing cash flows.

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,

22 SBERRBEENEE(E)

CRED
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that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10 and

IAS 28

IFRS 16
IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 19
Amendments to IAS 28
[FRIC 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Leases’
Insurance Contracts?

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRSTT,
IAS 12 and IAS 237

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on
the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus
is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration test
to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 753k R HizE
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 16, replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition exemptions
for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases.
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a
liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset
is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in IAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is
applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-
use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability
upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease
term and change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting
under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under
IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between operating
leases and finance leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to
make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17. Lessees can
choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach. The Group will adopt IFRS 16 from
1 January 2019. The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions
in IFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1
January 2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In addition, the
Group plans to apply the new requirements to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 and measure the
lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application. The right-of-use asset will be measured
at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised
in the statement of financial position immediately before the
date of initial application. The Group plans to use the exemptions
allowed by the standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end
within 12 months as of the date of initial application. During 2018,
the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the impact of
adoption of IFRS 16. The Group has estimated that right-of-use assets
of RMB6,986,000 and lease liabilities of RMB6,986,000 will be
recognised at 1 January 2019.
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

IFRIC 23, addresses the accounting for income taxes (current and
deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of IAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope
of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions
an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax
losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to
adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 753k R HizE
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the (a) consideration transferred, (b) the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and (c) any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the
net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FR Mz
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

24 FESHBEBMEE)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets, and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FR Mz
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

24 FESHBEBMEE)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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24 FESHBEME(E)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of
items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Useful lives
Leasehold land and buildings 34-60 years
Machinery 10 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents items of property, plant and
equipment under construction, which are stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowing funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment losses and
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The principal estimated useful life of intangible assets is as
follows:

Software 5 years
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24 FESHBEBMEE)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)" below.
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

e  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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24 FESHBEME(E)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met:

e  The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.
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24 FESHBEBMEE)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with positive net changes
in fair value presented as “Other income and gains” and negative
net changes in fair value presented as “Finance costs” in profit
or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable before 1 January 2018)" below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in “Other income
and gains” in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in “other
expenses” for other receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under IFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under IFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.
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24 FESHBEBMEE)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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24 FESHBEME(E)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance amount. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.
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31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings and
payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables
and accruals and interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of the Group's financial liabilities is as
follows:

Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income does not include any interest charged on
these financial liability.

Financial liability designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.
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24 FESHBEBMEE)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (Continued)

Loans and borrowings (including bonds)

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in “Finance costs” in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

24 FESHBEME(E)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average method. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in “Finance costs” in
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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24 FESHBEME(E)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.
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24 FESHBEME(E)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the goods.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(b) interestincome, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(¢) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to
a customer for which the Group has received a consideration (or
an amount of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods
or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when
the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.
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24 FESHBEME(E)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Subject to
shareholders’ agreement, the Company may also allot and issue
certain new shares in the Company for the purpose of providing
incentives for specific employees to remain with the Group and to
motivate them to strive for the further development and expansion
of the Group. Employees (including the chief executive) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the
date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances, further details of which are given in note 28 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in a defined central pension scheme managed by the
local municipal government of the areas in Mainland China in which
they operate. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant part of the payroll of these employees
to the central pension scheme. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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24 FESHBEME(E)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes (Continued)

In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. The Company’s
contributions have been capped to HK$1,500 per month since
1 June 2014 for each of its employees in Hong Kong and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Housing fund

Contributions to a defined contribution housing fund administered
by the Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland
China are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared. In the event that the interim dividends
are paid out of the share premium account, shareholders’ approval
at an extraordinary general meeting is needed. When these interim
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared,
they are recognised as a liability.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).
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24 FESHBEME(E)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five to
seven years, commencing from the date when the products are put
into commercial production.
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Significant Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2018 was nil (2017: RMB23,701,000). Further details are
given in note 15 to the financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not
be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT")

The Group's operating subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
PRC CIT. As a result of the fact that certain matters relating to PRC
CIT have not been confirmed by the relevant local tax authorities,
objective estimates based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations
and other related policies are required in determining the provision
for PRC CIT to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will impact the income tax expense and tax provision in
the period in which the differences realise. The carrying amount of
PRC CIT payable as at 31 December 2018 was RMB 1,943,000 (2017:
RMB2,546,000).
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Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated, or it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. The useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are disclosed in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products of
a similar nature. Management reassesses these estimates at the end
of each reporting period. The carrying amount of inventories as at
31 December 2018 was RMB214,806,000 (2017: RMB291,193,000)
and the impairment provision for inventories for the Reporting
Period was nil (2017: RMB25,213,000).

Research expenses

Research expenses are expensed in accordance with the accounting
policy for research and development costs in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. Determining the amounts to be expensed requires
management to make judgements on the research and development
progress. Research costs charged to profit or loss for the Reporting
Period amounted to RMB2,074,000 (2017: RMB1,996,000).
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Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses can be
utilised based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2018 was
RMB1,300,000 (2017: RMB9,159,000). Further details are given in
note 17 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets with definite lives are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.
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4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4. Wak&EoHER

The Group's revenue and contribution to consolidated results are AEBENREMEGREEENEREEREHERN
mainly derived from its sales of human albumin solution, antibiotics REIAMEAMBEERFHIR - UAEE - FER
and other pharmaceutical products focused on therapeutic areas and ERL A B8 1 4% 84 0 B 9 EL A6 S5 o S ELAth R AR
complementary to human plasma-based products and other fast- ERERINEEEE  BMBEEY AE —AI®RED
growing categories in Mainland China, which is regarded as a single 2 BASEAS AR SREREERSER
reportable segment in a manner consistent with the way in which NHEBRSE MR EE TN —5 o I &N
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior management EEFRANTZEIFRHEEHNPTREAM - B
for purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. In It BRAE B ARBMMEEIN  REZ5HED
addition, the principal non-current assets employed by the Group i

are located in Mainland China. Accordingly, no segment analysis is
presented other than entity-wide disclosures.

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WES AT -

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Revenue from contracts with customers U I=E- == N ol:0) G
Sales of goods HEEY 952,957 806,723
Revenue from contracts with customers KEREESHNE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information () W BRI
For the Reporting Period REIEHRE
RMB'000
AREFT
Type of goods BEYyER
Human albumin solution AMBEBFFR 548,423
Antibiotics (Axetine, Medocef and Trifamox IBL) MAERZAIR - a0 R RE) 396,413
Sales of Other goods (Taurolite, Esafosfina, HEEMEMCEER BEEE - EIFMK
Diphereline, and Tanakan) NIENER) 8,121
Total revenue from contracts with customers TEEEA S E%E 952,957
Geographical markets WEHS
All revenue from contracts with customers of the Group during REBNEZE2018F K2017F12 8318 1
each of the two years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 was MEFESEMARERL,AANKZED
attributable to customers located in Mainland China, the place KEMPRPBEAM(KRER FELETET
of domicile of the Group's principal operating entities. The ) MEF - REEMBIEREEEHDL
Group’s non-current assets are all located in Mainland China. A B A o
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4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

()

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

All revenue from contracts with customers of the Group during
each of the two years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 was
recognised when goods transferred at a point in time.

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

Wk EETHER(E)

KEFEFENNWKE(E)

()

Weas B BT (#E)

B Y 23 B9 B BT

REZE2018F 2017912 A31 8 IEREF
EEF  AEEMERBEPELMNKE
REYE R AR B SER o

TRETFTABRSHINNEHNABEELR
HFENER SR EN TR

2018
RMB’000
AR¥TR
Revenue recognised that was included in contract RS A G WA ENE BRI
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
Sale of goods (note 22) EYISHE (K15722) 37,902
Information about major customers TEEFEH

Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted
to 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below:

REZEBRFF AW (FBUEEHI10% 3]
LAB)ESAT ¢

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTFT

Customer A ZPA 120,370 91,626
Customer B =B 116,763 *

& Less than 10%

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment is generally due within 45 days to 1 year
from delivery, except for new and small customers, where
payment in advance is normally required.

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

(ii)

* LI10%
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5. Other Income and Gains

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

H At WA R ez
AMERA RSO AITIT :

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREEFIT

Bank interest income RITABUA 627 1,155

Government grants* B FE Bh * 1,611 883

Foreign exchange gains, net M 3 a5 R 9,821 -
Interest income on KB AT R E RS

an available-for-sale investment - 2,024
Net gains on disposal of property, REHEDSHE - BEMRED

plant and equipment e - 128

Others HAtb 56 21

12,115 4,211

* There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to the

government grants.

6. Finance Costs
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

* UEBWBRTEDONRE TR RIRER -

B3 AR A
BB IR ANITIT -

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTFT

Interest on bank loans and other borrowings RITE R R EAE RS 27,583 18,348
Interest on discounted bills receivable (note 19)  FEUNEZARBEIR M B (H13E19) 1,033 4,376
Interest on bonds (note 26) &HFE (A 5E26) 6,202 10,977
34,818 33,701
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

7. Loss Before Tax 7. BRBIAIEE
The Group’s loss before tax was arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBMATEE TSGR GEA) A T&IAEE
"
2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AR¥TT AREETIT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEEKA 731,932 713,190
Depreciation of items of property, YE - B K& E
plant and equipment THE#TE 12 10,363 10,660
Amortisation of intangible assets m A ESH 13 110 4,700
Amortisation of decoration cost HE RN B 169 -
Research expenses > 2,074 1,996
Impairment losses recognised on: HA TS IERRAREEE
Intangible assets mEE 13 - 27,531
Goodwill [EES 15 23,701 38,961
Trade receivables & S W GRIA 19 951 -
Financial assets included in prepayments, SEAFER IR - Hib e
other receivables and other assets FIE R E A B ER
SREE 16 526 =
Minimum lease payments under KERANIE T REEE
operating leases (NF 1,464 1,682
Auditors’ remuneration I3 GE A 2,700 2,700
Employee benefit expense EEREMNAX
(including Directors’ remuneration (BIEM FE8FTEL
as set out in note 8): EEFHH) -
Wages and salaries TEMNFH 10,640 11,641
Welfare and other benefits &R R E AR = 307 310
Equity-settled share option expense VARG HE 4 B BB IR S 28 540 1,352
Pension scheme contributions RIRE T BB
— Defined contribution fund —EREHERES 1,256 1,300
Housing fund FEAES
— Defined contribution fund —ERHERES 480 479
Total employee benefit expense EERAFAZ 2% 13,223 15,082
Foreign exchanges losses/(gains), net PE K518 (e ) /358 (3.414) 2,068
Write-down of inventories to FERRZETEE
net realisable value FE - 25,213
Write-off of inventories FEMH 117,875 =
Gains on disposal of items of property, HEDE - REMEME
plant and equipment 18 B My fe= 5 - (128)
Losses/(gains) on settlement of TEemIAGEER
derivative financial instruments (Y &) (6,407) 8,055
Fair value losses on financial liabilities BBEREATEFEN
at fair value through profit or loss SHMEEATEERE 25 - 218

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration
and Five Highest Paid Employees
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
HKSE, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EERIETRARHFMUAREBR
S#HES
RIEEBMRAES ETRA - EBDRAEHIE
383(1)(a) * (b) ~ (O R(IER AR (HEEEHN %
AR APIB2HHE - FRESRESTRA
BHMOT :

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREEFIT

Fees e 752 640

Other emoluments: HAb < -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RBREYER 2,156 2,543

Equity-settled share option expense VARG A E B AR IE R 2 - (166)
Pension scheme contributions RIS EHEIHR

— Defined contribution fund —EREHRES 37 28

2,945 3,040

(@) Independent non-executive Directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive Directors during
the year were as follows:

(a) BAFHTES
FASMELIFITESNRES T

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTFT

Mr. Chow Siu Lui BNFERE 136 160
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35k 160 160
Mr. Wang Qing LA 160 160
Mr. Lau Ying Kit BTG & 24 =
Mr. Chen David Yu FRFEAE 56 -
Mr. Philip Wong Yee Teng wmOMEE 56 -
592 480

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive Directors during the year.

FABERMN TELIFNITES M
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration 8 EERIETHRAEFMHMUREZE

and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued) EHEES(E)
(b) Executive Directors and the chief executive (b) MITEERFEITHAE
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind expense contributions Total
e Rl URELEEH Bikg
e REVEN  BRERX HE [HE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETR
2018 20185
Executive Directors: HITES:
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin —EHW LR - 2,046 - 15 2,061
— Mr. Wu Qingjiang* —RETRAx - 110 - 22 132
—Ms. Zhang Zhijie —REGIT 160 - - - 160
160 2,156 - 37 2,353
2017 20176
Executive Directors: HITES:
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin — B R - 1,774 = 16 1,790
— Mr. Hao Jinghui —-MRELE - 606 (166) = 440
- Mr. Wu Qingjiang* —REIHRAr - 163 - 7 170
- Ms. Zhang Zhijie —REHERLE 160 - - - 160
160 2,543 (166) 23 2,560
@ Mr. Wu Qingjiang resigned as a co-chief executive officer of the @ REIEER2018F 11 ASHBEARR]
Company on 8 November 2018. SR TTIRAREL ©
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or FRMBEEENEXRERETAFHFHO
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. ZHE o

2018 54 WHABELRARAT 157
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration
and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)
(c) Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
Director (2017: one Director and the Co-CEQ), details of whose
remuneration are set out above. Details of the remuneration
during the year of the remaining four (2017: three) highest
paid employees who are neither a Director nor a chief executive
of the Company as follows:

EERFIETRARHFMUAREERR

EXEE(E)

(0 ZEREFHESR
FR AEREHEERE —HES
(20174 : —REERBBTHAR)  #
HEE B RN L o HEATIA (20174 -
SR BREHFAANEFAEETHAR
B ERERMFIFELT -

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBFT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RBINEYER 1,502 908
Pension scheme contributions RIR BRI 101 72
Equity-settled share option expense LA RSO #EE 425 55 Y BE RS A 2 344 855
1,947 1,835

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

TN T N EEN GRS EESREEDN
ANENT -

2018 2017

Nil to HK$1,000,000

£%1,000,000% 7T

During the year, share options were granted to three non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employees in
respect of their services to the Group, further details of which
are included in the disclosures in note 28 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as of the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

FH - ZR2RRFIFEFRIFEETHA
BREMANAKERERNRBER TRK
1 E— SRR AM BRI E28H
BEHA - ZFERBEHNERERER
ROBRENAFEDRRE EHETE
Mt AR EREFBHRERNSBEHN Ll &
BEFIFEERIFERITHA BIE B rOF B
WEEFR -
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

9. Income tax 9.
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and BVI.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on
the Group's assessable profits derived from Hong Kong. No provision
for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had no
assessable profits derived from or earned in Hong Kong during the
year.

The provision for PRC CIT is based on the respective PRC CIT
rates applicable to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of Mainland China for the year. Except for certain
subsidiaries domiciled in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) that were
entitled to a preferential income tax rate, other PRC subsidiaries
were subject to PRC CIT at a rate of 25% during the two years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The major components of income tax expense/(credit) are as follows:

Fris®t
RENSRSREBRMRBBORAAR
FEBBASMNHSHEREBEBRRSNE
fATFRSHE -

AEEREEFBHNERHABERBBNEHR
F16.5% B - AR AKBERFALEREEL
KA RINNERGAE - BRBREERN
SRR -

F B S FTS T BB THAR R & P B Nt A B AT
SRR A ROER PR TE 5 BIE F R B A b B /S
NEIMHP R BEMEHBRIR - 1220184
K2017F12 A31 A IEMEFE - BRI Bk
WETHBEAR(FERBEAR D EEZEER
FriSTifi = oh + Efthrp EM B A R /AiR PRt
FT{SFi R L 25 % HFt o

PrSBiFs (ER) N BEKBHT

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Current tax: BNEATHIE

Income tax in Mainland for the year AR B A R FTAS
Deferred tax (note 17) EIER B (H1aE17)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FRBIEMS(HR)4

741 188
7,859 (9,159)
BEE 8,600 (8,971)

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

9. FrBHi(%E)
AR BT A A AR E B AR R BT
B RE BRI S SR E B R A H 0 BIERY

9. Income tax (Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax at
the applicable tax rates for companies within the Group to the tax

expense/(credit) at the effective tax rate is as follows: (o) REBRNT -
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREETTT
Loss before tax BT AR 18 (272,015) (194,868)
Added: disallowed expenses incurred AN AR B EEMAT]
by the Company* MR * 28,249 15,929
Loss before tax generated by Hong Kong BEERHEMBARIEERN
and PRC subsidiaries BrATRIE R (243,766) (178,939)
Tax at the respective statutory tax rates REBEAEBERERIE
— PRC subsidiaries at 25% — BB A RIR25% AT & (44,866) (34,601)
- Hong Kong subsidiary at 16.5% — BB ATIR16.5%TE (10,610) (6,597)
Lower tax rates for certain subsidiaries (note (@) & THIEBA RIMEIER R (Hit@) 20,141 16,580
Expenses not deductible for tax A 15,692 10,027
Tax effect on deductible temporary R SR A AT R B = FEAY
differences not recognised MIEE 13,854 3,782
Adjustments in respect of current tax FEFENRITHIAAE
of previous year 731 -
Income not subject to tax BARBMA - (12)
Tax losses not recognised REERTIEEE 13,658 1,850
8,600 (8,971)

Expenses incurred by the Company during each of the two years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 mainly consisted of consultancy service
fees, equity-settled share option expense, interest on bonds and other
borrowings and foreign exchange differences incurred by the Company.
These expenses are not expected to be tax deductible.

Note:

(a)

160

Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals is entitled to a preferential tax rate
of 15% according to the “Western Development Policy” until 31
December 2020.

From year 2015 to year 2017, the income tax rate of the Tibet
Autonomous Region has changed from 15% to 9%. Accordingly, Linzhi
Ziguang was entitled to the 9% preferential tax rate for the year ended
31 December 2017. Linzhi Ziguang was subject to the PRC CIT rate of
25% during the Reporting Period.

G HZE2018F 201712 A31 B IEREAFER
F o ANARIFMEANRSEEBERNQRMES
HBARKEER URESEEOBRERS - &
FURHMEROTE RERZ5E - ZEHYE
AT MBAL -

EE

(@) WRBIRIEFAFEFEEK]  WIBEYNEEEZS
15%MERFE - HE2020F12A31H -

2015F F2017F 8 - AR B RRMFTEHRE
RKEHIS%EEHI% - AL - HE20175F12
A31BLEFE MEEXBEZEI%EER
R o AREHR - ME RN BIR25% Bt RN+ =
EMEH -
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

10. Dividends

11.

At a meeting of the Board held on 29 March 2019, the Directors
resolved not to pay final dividends to Shareholders for the Reporting
Period (2017 final dividend: Nil).

Loss Per Share Attributable to Ordinary Equity
Holders of the Company

The calculation of basic loss per share for the Reporting Period is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,688,529,683 (2017: 1,615,220,000) in issue during the
year.

The calculation of the diluted loss per share amount is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company as used in the basic loss per share calculation. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
is the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic loss per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based on:

10. K&

11.

BEON2019F3 A28 BITNES S RS
N& LR B A AR EUR N AR B 2 (201749 K
HARR B - 4m) o

RRABEBREFARLGERER

HEHASREAEBDHIERA AR EBBRF
BEABGEFEEEAE  RFRBBHITLA
RS &9 h0 4 SF 159 #501,688,529,683 I% (2017 4F :
1,615,220,0000%) 51 &

BRETHRSRIREHESRENERMAER
RHARR B EBRSAE ARGEFERBEE -
AEESRERERIMRA - fTERAATEK
PR AFEEHITEBBINETHE - I
BB EEE LRI NBR T E SR
A E AR RS T R A -

SHESREARBEBRADER

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTFT
Loss: &8
Loss attributable to ordinary equity ARG E EREAREED
holders of the Company used RABEBRFFEA
in the basic loss per share calculation FE{LE1E (280,614) (185,896)
Shares: f&An
Weighted average number of ARt EEREREEL
ordinary shares in issue during the year FADETERR
used in the basic loss per share calculation DT 1,688,529,683  1,615,220,000
Effect of dilution — weighted average BB E — Tk
number of ordinary shares: i E
Share options M 2,949,292 -

1,691,478,975

1,615,220,000

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR
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12. Property, Plant and Equipment 12. 1% - BERKXE
Leasehold Construction
land and Office Motor in progress
buildings ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles (“CIp”) Total
HELH HEIR
kT BE  BAERE RE (HEIE) @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR AR®Tr AR®TR AR®TR ARET:R

31 December 2018 2018F12A31H
Cost; A
At 1 January 2018 201851 A1H 184,330 - 10,381 18,473 1,745 214,929
Additions NE - - 51 - 1,092 1,143
Transferred from CIP HEERTRR 374 1,531 - - (1,905) -
Transferred to other e

long-term assets RHEE - - - - (738) (738)
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A31H 184,704 1,531 10,432 18,473 194 215,334

Accumulated depreciation: R #E :

At 1 January 2018 720181 /1R 9,704 - 4,193 9,265 - 23,162
Provided for the year (note 7) SR & (f127) 4,452 127 2,267 3,517 - 10,363
At 31 December 2018 720185124318 14,156 127 6,460 12,782 - 33,525
Net carrying amount; BREHE -

At 1 January 2018 7201861810 174,626 - 6,188 9,208 1,745 191,767
At 31 December 2018 #20185124318 170,548 1,404 3,972 5,691 194 181,809
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FR Mz
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

12. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 12. ¥ - RERREE)

Leasehold Construction
land and Office Motor in progress
buildings equipment vehicles (“CIP") Total
HELTH TEITR
REF  BAERE AE ((ERIR]) @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARBFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
31 December 2017 2017%12A31H
Cost: B
At 1 January 2017 ®2017F1 818 92,570 4,464 17,089 3,372 117,495
Additions NE 115 5,947 2,635 90,018 98,715
Acquisition of a subsidiary YiE— B AR - 126 68 = 194
Transferred from CIP BEERETR 91,645 - - (91,645) =
Disposals/write-off HeE /M = (156) (1,319) = (1,475)
At 31 December 2017 ®2017%128318 184,330 10,381 18,473 1,745 214,929
Accumulated depreciation: 2iHifE
At 1 January 2017 M20174181R 5,507 2,072 6,204 = 13,783
Provided for the year (note 7) FRBHEH1227) 4,197 2,267 4,19 = 10,660
Disposals/write-off HE/MH = (146) (1,135) = (1,281)
At 31 December 2017 20174124318 9,704 4,193 9,265 = 23,162
Net carrying amount: RERE:
At 1 January 2017 ®201751 /18 87,063 2,392 10,885 3,372 103,712
At 31 December 2017 20174128318 174,626 6,188 9,208 1,745 191,767

As of 31 December 2018, the Group'’s buildings with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB98,528,000 (2017: RMB100,506,000),
were erected on the land where the Group is still in the process of
applying for the land use rights certificate. The Directors are of the
view that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy and
use the above-mentioned land. The Directors are also of the opinion
that the aforesaid matter will not have any significant impact on the
Group's financial position as of 31 December 2018.

As of 31 December 2017, the Group’s buildings with a net carrying
amount of RMB84,725,000 were pledged to two banks to secure
the bank loans (note 24 (a)).

The Group's land included in property, plant and equipment is
situated in Mainland China and held under medium lease terms.

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

M2018F12A31H » AEEKREFEHARE
98,528,0007T. (20174 : AR 100,506,0007T)
WEFERANEENER G T ERAREEN L
F - EERBAEEERSERBMERARER
bt EENRE  LEEHAEER
2018F 12 A3 B M BMATE B EMEKNT

= .
=

R2017F12A310 » AEBEREEFEAARE
84,725,000t IIEFE MM T MAERTT - {ERIR
TEROER(HFE24(@)) °

SEABE - BE MRENAEE AR PERA
M - IR EIEARE -
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31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

13. Intangible Assets

13. BEEE

Exclusive
distribution
Software rights Total
B BREHE st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREET T ARET T ARET T
Cost at 1 January 2018, 201851 A1 HIREA
net of accumulated amortisation BR 2ty 223 - 223
Amortisation provided during the year £ A 5% B &5
(note 7) (H1#£7) (110) - (110)
At 31 December 2018 72018%12A831H 113 - 113
At 31 December 2018: M2018%F 128318 :
Cost AN 403 - 403
Accumulated amortisation Sty (290) - (290)
Net carrying amount BREDFE 113 - 113
Cost at 1 January 2017, MR2017F1 A1 BIREA -
net of accumulated amortisation R Rty 334 32,120 32,454
Amortisation provided during the year 4= i §5 72545
(note 7) (Kt:£7) (111) (4,589) (4,700)
Impairment during the year FERRE - (27,531) (27,531)
At 31 December 2017 2017912 A31H 223 - 223
At 31 December 2017: 20179128318 :
Cost D% 403 41,298 41,701
Accumulated amortisation Sty (180) (13,767) (13,947)
Impairment NERIE] - (27,531) (27,531)
Net carrying amount BRI FE 223 - 223
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14. Payments in Advance

14. FEARE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
In respect of- BER -
Prepayments made in relation to: AT ZIHNTARFIA
Prepaid long-term technique service fee TERT REIRITARTS B 7,819 8,581
Prepaid long-term consulting service fee ARt REFE AR E - 1,346
Prepaid office decoration TR AEEE 827 -
Construction of a warehouse BHeE 30,809 30,809
39,455 40,736
15. Goodwiill 15. &
RMB’000
AREEFTT
Cost at 1 January 2017, net of accumulated impairment 201761 B1BIREA - 0Bk BEHRE 58,632
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—fEM B A Al 4,030
Impairment during the year FARE (38,961)
Net carrying amount at 31 December 2017 R20175F12 A31 BRRENFE 23,701
At 31 December 2017: 201756 12A318 -
Cost B AR 62,662
Accumulated impairment RETRE (38,961)
Net carrying amount REFE 23,701
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of accumulated impairment R2018F 1 A1 HIREKA - IR RE0RE 23,701
Impairment during the year FARE (23,701)
Net carrying amount at 31 December 2018 7K20185F 12 A31 BRIREFAE —
At 31 December 2018: #2018F12A31H -
Cost (D% 62,662
Accumulated impairment RETRE (62,662)
Net carrying amount REFE -

2018 3 EIRIARBEEZERER AR
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

15. Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is acquired through the business combination of Chengdu
Hengsheng and its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely, Linzhi Ziguang
(“Linzhi Ziguang Group”) on 31 March 2015 (the “Linzhi Ziguang
Goodwill”), the business combination of Qingdao Ruichi on 22
December 2016 (the “Qingdao Ruichi Goodwill”) and the business
combination of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals on 19 September
2017 (the “Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Goodwill”).

Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
following cash-generating units (“CGU") for impairment testing:

e Sichuan Sinco CGU (Linzhi Ziguang Goodwill and Chengdu
Sinco Pharmaceuticals Goodwill); and

o Qingdao Ruichi CGU (Qingdao Ruichi Goodwill)

Sichuan Sinco CGU

The recoverable amount of the Sichuan Sinco CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 20.5% (2017: 20.1%), which is determined
by reference to the average rates for a similar industry and the
business risk of the relevant business unit. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period were assumed to be stable.

15. BHE(E)

AEERRMERREZENBARIMNE £k
(TR ER DR20155E3 A31 B EK S 6
([HZEXEE]  F5HMMN2016F12/22
HOEBAH ([ SSHEmE]) R HBERRE
20201799 A 19 R WS4 OF ([ B BB LR A B8
BEpHE | )FEAL o

B R BRI
BEBEHFEREDRET RS ELEN
(TREEEBMDIERER :

. JIIE@ﬂ?&Eﬁ%EE%M(w FERNEER
PRERER R BB E) -

o FEEWMRSEAREU(SERMEE)

P9I/ AT % A B

PO BRI e E A B M AR E S B RAE
RESREEEIFERERFHRNYBEE
EEWBReRERARFERAEBHESETE - B
S RETRR AR X 520.5% (20174 :
20.1%) @ W2 ZEBLUTEN TR RIE
BB EBEREERT - hFHREN S

HEMNEMBAIZE °
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15. Goodwill (Continued)

Qingdao Ruichi CGU

The recoverable amount of the Qingdao Ruichi CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 21.3% (2017: 21.3%), which is determined
by reference to the average rates for a similar industry and the
business risk of the relevant business unit. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period were assumed to be stable.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the CGU is as
follows:

15. HE(E)

B Sl EL B

SERRSEAEMMAIUE SR FRAE
RESHEEBI ERERFHMNTHEE
EEMBRERERARFERAEENEETE - B
SmETRPTERARAIRE A21.3% (20174 :
213%) » WIS EEUTEN T K KA
BB EMNERRREZET - AFHREL LR

AERERERRE

DEEERTELBMOBBHREMENT :

Sichuan Sinco Qingdao Ruichi Total
|| R Sk @t
2018 2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR ARETR ARETT AR¥TR ARETR
Carrying amount of goodwill HEERE - - 116 - 23,701

The following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margin
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased
for expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external
information sources.

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

EREAETRERENSARGERSRETRA
FrIBH) B IAE 2T

BHEENX - REEEREEMNXAIEEEEN
AEENEREEFEN —FMESHFHER
xR RIRHMISERMIEN

REAR —FrRRIR R BTATLE X - RREREEN
W R BV E R

T E2RENEERIBERRIRER
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31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

16. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other

16. AARE » At BERREREMEE

Assets
2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BfaE ARBTR ARBTFT
Current portion ENED D
Prepayments in respect of: LT I8 B 8978115008
— purchase of inventories —BEEH 32,411 3,128
— import input value-added tax —HEOIERETEIET R 10,399 =
— marketing and promotion service fee — Z M ERTSE - 74,608
— consultation service fee —BHARBE 2,129 7,445
— others —HAth 72 61
Deposits b 16,154 1,818
Other receivables in respect of: LT I8 B 89 B fit Y 5KOE -
— value-added tax recoverable —AJUR O (EF 3,751 57,763
— purchase rebate —EEEH 57 1,048
— staff advances —BI#RK 282 214
— interest receivable for time deposits —REEAI=E A A LR
with original maturity of over TEHATE SR B RIS
three months - 514
— others —EAfth - 84
65,285 146,683
Impairment allowance B (@) (526) =
64,759 146,683
Non-current portion EmBE D
Deposit Be (b) 3,000 3,000
67,759 149,683
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

16. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other 16.
Assets (Continued)
Notes:

(@  The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets is as

?EF{?\RIE - Ht R E R K& E

(@) FIARNFUR - Rt EEAREMEEN SR
AEREREREEEOT

follows:
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
At beginning of year REA - -
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) B RREREE (Mi7) 526 -
At end of year RER 526 -

(b) The balance represents a deposit paid to an independent third
party, which is controlled by State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Office of Shuangliu District, in respect of the
construction of the Group’s warehouse.

Where applicable, impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by considering expected credit losses, which are
estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the
historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect
the current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate. The loss rate applied for as at 31 December 2018 was
0.0% to 100.0%.

2018 3 EIRIARBEEZERER AR

(b) HHERERAEERENN —BhERRES
AEEBERZESEHNBYE =X MR

M@ A - RESTRSHRE B HEBEEESE
BEEE#T  EEREREE2E N EEBAE
BELEIR AR IB L BT - R RS E
HE AR - DR E TSR R AR RAEIRIZATE
Al o 7220184128318 © FrE AW EIBLL R A
0.0%Z%100.0% °
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R R M5
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

17. Deferred Tax 17. ELERIE
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as follows: FERN - EEHRBEENESOT ¢
Changes in
fair value of
financial

liabilities at fair
value through  Losses available

profit or loss for offsetting Provision
classified as  against taxable for
held for trading profits impairment Total
PEREHEE
ERBREATE
HENERAE AR
APESD ERWENNER HERE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTR ARBTT ARBT
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1R1R - - - -
Deferred tax credited to profit FRFTABRMELTE
or loss during the year (note 9) (fi#9) 33 9,126 - 9,159
Deferred tax assets R®2017512A318 Rk
at 31 December 2017 2018F1 A1RH)
and 1 January 2018 ERNERE 33 9,126 - 9,159
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRAER
to profit or loss during (BERENE)MEE
the year (note 9) TIB(H£9) (33) (8,039) 213 (7,859)
At 31 December 2018 R2018512831R - 1,087 213 1,300
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FR Mz
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

17. Deferred Tax (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had accumulated tax losses
arising in Mainland China of RMB7,248,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB53,267,000) that would expire in four years for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the tax
losses arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss making as it was not
considered probable that tax profits would be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets related to the PRC subsidiaries have been provided
at the enacted corporate income tax rate of 15%.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement has been effective from 1 January 2008 and applied
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The withholding tax rate for the
Group is 10%.

As of 31 December 2018, no deferred tax liability has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the Directors, it is
not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future after their assessment based on factors which
included the dividend policy, the level of working capital required for
the Group’s operations and the expansion of the Group’s operations
in Mainland China. The aggregate amount of temporary differences as
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB6,809,000 (2017: RMB140,067,000).

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

17. EERE(E)

Wit

(a)

(b)

R20185F12A318 » AEBRPBEAHESED
Rt FRIEEE A AR7,248,0007T (2017412
A318 : AR¥53,267,0007T) @ #SAMERE
5 - AT AR SEE £ BB A A AR R R R RS
F o W AESE R IFE RSB AONT B A R E LN FIEE
BHRELCHRBEE  RRABBWBAREE
AT R e FERR B A AT LI S A TB B4R o

S rh B A A A B IRIE R IR B E C IR TR
MR E15%51ER °

REBEFREAEHRAEER SRR BEAMAKSL
RISNE R ERINRIZE E SRR EEK10%
HTEINF - sZEE B 2008F1 A 1BEAR - I
FAM2007FE12 A31BENET o P B R
BONEIIR B EFTE R A R B &R RS e - B
ARARENENTRE - ASENBHNFH XA
10% °

HZE2018% 128318 @ WEBANEERFER
K ST ) B B A R RS A AR B B R BT A Al 0 7B
MBRERELEHIBRE E2RE  ERRER
R AEEEBAENEEESKERAE@EE
AP A ERERRETTGE - ZSHEB
ARINA] RS RTKRAIGED IR B RIATF) - ALE
RERA AR B OB S B B A Rl IR B M B R M 2
B @ ANRE6,809,0007T (20174 : AR
140,067,0007T ) FERIEERI IR A (& ©

m
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIET

31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

18. Inventories

18. F&

At the end of the Reporting Period, all inventories represent

purchased pharmaceutical products.

At 31 December 2018, the Group's inventories with a carrying
amount of RMB147,516,000 (2017: RMB125,739,000) were
pledged to secure the Group’s other payables as further detailed in

note 23(b) to the financial statements.

19. Trade and Bills Receivables

RBEMR - IETEEMBEENER -

R2018F12A31H * AEBEUGFEREEBEAR
#147,516,0007T(20174F : AR% 125,739,000
TOERAREB B EIFRIBRIER - #E—2F5F
BRI =T 5E23(b) ©

19. BEZBWRERERRE

2018 2017

Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000

bz AR¥TT ARETFT

Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE (@) 23,921 26,481
Impairment NERIE] (@) (1,115) =
Trade receivables, net of impairment B S REWGIE - kR RE 22,806 26,481
Bills receivable R (b) 3,371 10,625
26,177 37,106

(a) The Group granted credit terms ranging from 45 days to 1
year to customers after the delivery of goods, except for small
and new customers who make payments in advance prior

to the delivery of goods. The Group seeks to maintain strict

control over the settlements of its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing and unsecured.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting periods, based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

(a) B/ ERFIEE SRR ERATERE
oh AEBRFEPREXNEMRISKE
—ENEES - AEEHE B ARKE N E
WHIREESKERFBIRES - XREARE
EEHIERT - WS EERREERE - &
5 WA BT B R -

RIBER BN RS RN E S RUTRK
Wk B R R AR DT T

2018 2017

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETTT

Within 3 months =EAR 20,684 26,481
3 to 12 months =&+ _{@A 2,755 -
Over 1 year —FE 482 -
23,921 26,481
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

19. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

19. ESRINFER BN ERE(E)

(@) (%&)
B S RNFTERENEIBEEESINT

2018 2017

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

At beginning of year REF) - =
Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 PR AN B B B 75 i 5 A2 )

FEIRHFE 164 =

At beginning of year (restated) RE(EE5) 164 -

Impairment losses (note 7) BIEEE (H1517) 951 -

At end of year RER 1,115 -

Impairment under IFRS 9 for the Reporting Period

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade
receivables are written off if past due for more than one month
and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2018

R BRI B 5 5 75 2R & B R 95 )
MEITNERE D RRBREBEEE
17 UEfBRBEEESE - BEXTLER
SEHRLUEERANS AR 5 E0ET
D#AANE PRI R &) ME I B #Gt
H - AR ERBRBIXIESER - ER
BMEARARBESN - BRI EARRK
RERRBRNGRE AR SNEERAT
FEH - —RME - WAMEE—@EA
A% 5 e Y R TR T LA SE B AR HUATTE)
BRI ©

TR AEERARBEETEE SR
WHBENEERBREER :

2018%12H31R

Current Past due Total
BN HA BHA st

Expected credit loss rate TEHE BB X 2.7% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) EEmaE(ARETIT) 23,439 482 23,921
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) JEHEEEBR(ARETIT) 633 482 1,115

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

19. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)
Impairment under IAS 39 for the year ended 31 December 2017

Based on the invoice date, all trade receivables of the Group
as of 31 December 2017 were aged within three months and
were neither past due nor impaired.

The Directors were of the opinion that no further provision for
impairment under IAS 39 was necessary in respect of above
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully or partially
recoverable.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC, with a carrying
amount in aggregate of RMB96,465,000 (the “Derecognised
Bills”) (2017: RMB200,920,000). All of the Derecognised
Bills had been accepted by China Merchants Bank which is a
reputable bank in the PRC and had a maturity of one to seven
months at the end of the Reporting Period. In accordance
with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the
holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse
against the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full
carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
advances on discounting. The maximum exposure to loss from
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their face amounts. In the opinion
of the Directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not significant.

During the year, the Group has recognised interest expenses of
RMB1,033,000 (2017: RMB4,376,000) (note 6) on discounted
bills receivable. No gains or losses were recognised from the
Continuing Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively.
The discounting has been made evenly throughout the year.

19. ESBRINFER BN ERE(E)

(@)

(b)

(&)

22017412831 H 1L FEIREFEE S5
BRI E 395K Bl E

BEZHZAE  AEEEZE2017F12H31
A2 E S EKFERREN=EAR
B SR E o

EERRBAREEE S ERIE39%Y
biEsEE—DRERE  REREER
BRWEBREZ(CBZFERDBAR SR
PAZSERSER Ham

R2018F 12 A31H » NEEBLIRE TEH
BEMRITARNEREZE - ZSRKEE
BREES H£ A5 ARK96,465,000 T (42 1E
mREEK]) (20174 : AR¥200,920,000
JL) o BEIRIEEREREPE AL IRITIA
RIIRITHAM,  RIREER  ZEZEHE
HEA—ZtM@A - RIE(FEARKLAM
BEZ gAY WP BEARITEL  RIEER
ZEMNFEEAHASEESRRE(FE
2H]) - FEERE AEEEEBBAI
DHK FERZREBRNER XER o
It HERIEBREIEEREE KA
RBRNEIIREE - AEBEERIERE
REBEMFES B E &R ANBLRR
MELZ SR IERRAZENAREIRE SR
EREMERS - EERE - AEBHK
IFEREROFELENAFELTERK °

FA - AEBECERERIRERNF S
Fx AR#¥1,033,0007T(20174F : AR
4,376,0007T ) (fizE6)  BEERF AR5+
HRFES NN ELEE - BFEMEE
BEA T -
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET

31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

20. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Bank 20. B2 RS ZEYURCIEFHRITE

Balances 553

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREEFIT

Cash and bank balances RE NMIRTTER 80,343 75,651
Less: Pledged bank balances* L BAEIRIRI TR (13) (52,941)

Cash and cash equivalents ReENREEEY 80,330 22,710
S The balances as at 31 December 2017 represented time deposits * R2017F 12 31 B GEKRIERIE A T BBE=

of RMB22,941,000 with original maturity of less than three
months pledged for issuance of letters of credit for the purchase
of pharmaceutical products and a one-year fixed deposit of
RMB30,000,000 with a maturity date in February 2018 pledged at Bank

of Shanghai by the Group for the bank loans of RMB28,500,000.

MARBREABABE ERMERNTHER
AR#22,941,0007T A EBEFIRITERARE
28,500,000 TR LG HRITE AT HIH £201842
Ar—FHEEFHRAR30,000,0007T °

The Group's cash and bank balances at the end of the Reporting RIEm* - NEEHES RIBETERTE—S
Period can be further analysed as follows: ST

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
Denominated in RMB AARBEHE 25,849 70,897
Denominated in US$ AETTEHE 53,490 3,303
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 937 1,451
Denominated in SGD LA DN T ETHAE 67 -
80,343 75,651

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other

currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for the period of three months
and one year, and earn interest at the respective deposit rates. The
bank balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.

2018 3 EIRIARBEEZERER AR

ARETREERAAREMER - AW - RIFP
B A Hud S EE B IR AR 51 ) K B BE - B EE AN EE
BRE)  ARETERBEREFRRIINEELH
RITHARE L BRIEMER -

RITRSIWIRIEE RRITERM X ERZEF
K S o EHERNERRA=ZEAR—F X
R BHERMEG S o RITER M ERFRTY
T A R AL ek BE B RIFRIRTT -
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

21. Trade Payables

An aging analysis of trade payables as of the end of the Reporting
Period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

21.

g2 RAGRIE
REREHR - EHRMNFUBENEZ AR
DT :

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AREETTT

Within three months =X BRI 106,241 22,522
Over three months =EANE 660 -
106,901 22,522

Trade payables of the Group are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within 90 days.

22. Contract Liabilities
The Group recognised the following revenue-related contract
liabilities, which represented the unsatisfied performance obligation
as at 31 December 2017 and 2018. The balance of contract liabilities
is expected to be recovered/settled within one year.

Movements in the contract liabilities balances during the year 2018
are as follows:

22.

AEENE ZENKARTFERBENROR

NEEE °

SHEE
AEEERA T BB EABNEHNEE  £ER
2017 N20185F 12 A3 B AREXMBHET °
BB EEHTERATR—FRKEEE -

BRBEGEHRN2018FFENEEIT

RMB’000

ARBTFT

Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 2017412 A31 HBVRREIE =

Reclassification from advance from customers REBEFERNEFHHEA 41,503

Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 201851 A1 HMEREE 41,503

Revenue recognised during the year FARERM S (37,902)
Consideration received from customers, excluding AEFPWEHNRE  TEERFEFRNERE

amounts recognised as revenue during the year B S 58 126,069

Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 12018512 A31 BRI EREE 129,670
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET

31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

23. Other payables and accruals

23. HiE A FRIE R ERTFIE

2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BitaE AR®TR ARBTFT
Payables related to: BRALATIE B BIFERTFRIE -

Payroll and welfare payable BN ITEKRAER 1,129 1,108
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 1,312 1,323
Deposits received [RE¢rsn (@) 18,596 34,931
Consulting and professional fees BN EES 17,562 30,978
Tax other than income tax FT{SBA SN TR IR 6,717 333
Interest payable RIS 14,891 94
Other payables HAh R 1~ FRIE (b) 145,318 1,262
205,525 70,029

Notes: Kt -

(@)  The balances represented refundable deposits received from the
Group's distributors according to the sales contracts in order to
guarantee their performance under the distribution agreement.

(b)  The balance as at 31 December 2018 mainly represented the payables
to an independent third party, which is principally engaged in import
agent services, for its settlement of part of purchase of human albumin
solution on behalf of the Group. Such payables were interest-bearing
and secured by inventories with a carrying amount of RMB147,516,000.

Other than the other payables mentioned above, all other payables
of the Group are non-interest-bearing and unsecured.

2018 3 EIRIARBEEZERER AR

() HHIEAREASEEHHIEREHEBEROM
REBEESOREFRRNRERZS

(b) H2018F12A3TBMEHRETBHEENT—RBE
ERFEORBREHBLE=FH50E BHE
REAEEZFID AMAZEREFRREHK
B BAENREAE  EREEEBEARE
147,516,0007CHF EVEHRIA -

B b K A R RIS
09 S5 B S AR o

AREEE A EAL R R
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

24. Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 24. T ERITREAMMER
2018 2017
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
BBRFIZ(%) HEE  ARMTR  BEAE%) 8 ARETR
Current; SN -
Bank loans FITER
—Secured and quaranteed —FEMAREER 6.1 2019 5,000 5.8-6.6 2018 88,000
- Secured —HHR - 43-57 2018 58,500
- Guaranteed —BER - 40 2018 11,213
5,000 157,713
Other borrowings HifEH
- Secured and guaranteed - BEAREER 13.2 2019 140,000 =
- Secured - HBEA - 17.7-20.7 2018 118,102
145,000 275,815
Bank and other borrowings repayable:  FEEBRITRAME :
Within one year —ER 145,000 275,815
Notes: Wit
(@)  Certain of the Group's bank loans and other borrowings are secured (@) AEEETHRITERREMMETHATEER

by:

(i) mortgages over the Group’s buildings, which had an aggregate
carrying value at the end of the Reporting Period of nil (2017:
RMB84,752,000); and

(i) floating charges over certain of the Group's inventories of nil
(2017: RMB125,739,000);

(i) the pledges of equity interests in the following subsidiaries of the
Group:

= 100% equity interests in Linzhi Ziguang;
- 40% equity interests in Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals; and

- 1,049,990,000 shares of the Company held by Risun

In addition, the Company, Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, Chengdu
Sinco Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd., Sichuan Sinco Biological
Technology Co., Ltd., Chengdu Hengsheng and Linzhi Ziguang
had jointly guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank loans and other
borrowings up to RMB145,000,000 (2017: RMB157,713,000) as at the
end of the Reporting Period.

The other borrowings from Mr. Gui, an independent individual, up to
RMB 140,000,000 (2017: nil) was guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin,
the Chairman, executive Director and CEO of the Company, as at the
end of the Reporting Period.

() AEBERBEHREDLEARZ (2017
& AR¥84,752,0007T) FIEFIEE » K&

iy AEBAEAZT(2017F : AR¥
125,739,0007T) B8 TR EVEZENHA

(iiiy  ERAREE L THIB QR RARE

—  MERXNEIRAE
— I ERREEAA0%ARE &

—  RisunFT#5 5 #91,049,990,000 % 2 2 7] A%
%

BEoh - REREHIR - ARAR] - 19)|| EE R ELE -
REPERI R BB AR ET AR ~ )| EREE
EWMRERAERAR - REMER RME KBRS
B¢ Ex% A AR 145,000,0005C (20174 -
AR#157,713,0007T) K5 T RITER R H b S
RYELLRIFE(R o

RBEHR  RE—BBULATELERSAR
#140,000,0007C(20174F : ) M EMERAAR
RAIEE PITESRITRBHEEW L EE
1R o
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

24. Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

All of the Group’s bank loans and other borrowings as at the end of
the Reporting Period are denominated in RMB.

Management has assessed that the fair values of the Group’s short-
term interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.
25. Financial Liability at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss Classified as Held for Trading

25.

24,

STESRTT

Hrat - ()

Hit &=k (48)

AEERIREPROMBRITERREAMDE R
IAARFHE -

(b)

EEECHAAKRERHE S
NFEEREREERES
HINEIE

17 R EL A& KA
TEE EEEQEZ@IE:EQE

DERBEEERQIFEFAREN
ﬁnﬂﬁﬁ

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTFT

Fair value losses on a currency forward contract B RSN EEE - 218
Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss classified as S A EEREBERIEA T EAENSRA

held for trading represented fair value losses on a currency forward
contract at fair value as at 31 December 2017.

As of 31 December 2017, the outstanding currency forward contract
of US$1,706,000 with maturity date in January 2018 was entered
into by the Group and the Bank of East Asia Limited and was
designated by the Group as financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss classified as held for trading upon initial recognition.
The fair value of the currency forward contract was estimated by an
independent professional valuer by using the discounted cash flow

BIER2017F12 A3 AR AFEAENEEER
HAEHMATERIAE -

720176128318 - AEBBERHRITERA

RAIRI B REIHAE MR A 491,706,000 7T © &
HIR A2018F1 A » YRV ERRRASEE
EANEARBEEEARERRATENFENS
BEE E¥RBAONATERBLEXMGE
EfE AR RS RERA bt -

model.
26. Bonds 26. &%

2018 2017

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

BiaE ARETT AREFTT

June 2017 Bonds 201766 AfEH (a) - 100,152
December 2017 Bonds 2017F 12 AfEH (b) - 33,704
Carrying amount of bonds at 31 December 12 A31 B&EHIREIE - 133,856

2018 3 EIRIARBEEZERER AR
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

26. Bonds (Continued)

Notes:

180

(a)

(b)

On 27 June 2017, the Company issued unlisted bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 (equivalent to RMB104,150,000)
(the “June 2017 Bonds”). The Company'’s obligations under the bonds
are unconditionally guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin, the Chairman,
executive Director and CEO of the Company, and secured by (i)
1,049,990,000 shares of the Company held by Risun; and (i) the entire
issued share capital of Risun. Pursuant to the bond supplemental deeds,
the nominal effective rate was finally amended to 15% per annum
with the interest payable quarterly and the maturity date was finally
extended to 30 April 2018. The June 2017 Bonds had been fully repaid
by the Group in April 2018.

The related interest expense of the June 2017 Bonds for the Reporting
Period amounted to RMB1,319,000 (2017: RMB8,117,000).

On 30 June 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$40,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB34,717,000). The Company’s obligations under the convertible
bonds are unconditionally guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin and
secured by (i) 1,049,990,000 shares of the Company held by Risun; and
(ii) the entire issued share capital of Risun. Pursuant to the convertible
bond supplemental deed which took effective on 18 December 2017,
all rights and obligations of the holder of the convertible bonds and the
Company in relation to the conversion rights were deleted. Meanwhile,
the maturity date was amended to 30 March 2018 and the interest rate
was amended to 15% per annum with the interest payable quarterly.
Management was of the view that the revised terms and conditions of
the convertible bonds were substantially different and the modification
was automatically required to be treated as an extinguishment. Hence,
the Group derecognised the existing liability and recognised a new
bond (the “December 2017 Bonds"”). On 27 March 2018, the maturity
date had been further extended to 30 April 2018. The December 2017
Bonds had been fully repaid by the Group in April 2018.

The related interest expense of the December 2017 Bonds for the
Reporting Period amounted to RMB4,883,000 (2017: RMB2,860,000).

26. B3 (&)

Wit

(a)

(b)

Sinco Ph

R2017F6 A27H + ARAIBITACREA
120,000,000/ 7T (FHE M AR 104,150,0007T)
HIFEETEH([2017F6 AEH]) - KAARIGE
FARENETHARBERF - PITESRITHRLE
HE W A AR HER - LA() RisunFrFE A
HIZAAE]1,049,990,000/% %15 + (i) Risun&y 2
HEBITRAMEAER - BEESFHTRZE - IR
HEBREFN RGN B15% M A B BREL A
FIE A HARERZE2018F4 308 - AEEER
2018F4 ABBUEE2017F6 AESH ©

HREHR2017F6 ABFENFSHIAARKE
1,319,00070(20174 « AR#8,117,0007T) °

R2017F6 A30H + ARRBEITASREEL
40,000,000/ 7T (FHE R AR HE34,717,0007T) 8
AARES - AR BRI B AR EFEAENE TR
FREW A EEER  WLAG) RisunFTHFE K
1,049,990,000/% AN A A7 & K2 (ii) Risun#y 2B
BEBITIRAEAEIR - RIEMR2017F 128188
ERE AR EF MR - ATRREFFEA
EARBIBRALILENERNEEEEME
FE - AEZHIBE R A201843A30R @ FFHX
HAI15%MAEBRELN - ERERA @ AlR
BRAEH GER RIS RTATHER - %8312 R
FRARM - Filt - AEERIEERRBRE
WHERHEA (2017512 A1E% ) - R201843
A278 - FIHAR#E—FSERE2018F4H30H -
AEEBR2018F4 A BEEE2017F12 A&
g;é o

WEHR2017F 12 ARFOMNEBHAZRARRE
4,883,0007t(20174 : AK#2,860,0007T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET

31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

27. Share capital 27. ®RA
Shares dn)
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBFT
Authorised: JETE
10,000,000,000 (31 December 2017: 10,000,000,000/%
10,000,000,000) ordinary shares of (20175128318 :
HK$0.0001 each 10,000,000,000%)
SR EfE0.000 15 TH)
B 822 822
Issued and fully paid: BEITRATE
1,691,890,585 (31 December 2017: 1,691,890,585/%
1,615,220,000) ordinary shares of (20174128318 :
HK$0.0001 each 1,615,220,0004%)
FRE(E0.0001 BT
gl 136 130
A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share capital is as RAREEBETRAEHBENT :

follows:

Number of Nominal value of

ordinary shares

ordinary shares

EZRREE ZRAREE

Note RMB’000

B aE AR¥T

At 1 January 2018 R201851H1H 1,615,220,000 130
Issuance of new shares BITHAR D (@) 76,670,585 6
At 31 December 2018 72018512 A31H 1,691,890,585 136

2018 3 EIRIARBEEZERER AR
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

27. Share capital (Continued)

Note:

(a)

On 12 October 2017, the Company and Crede GG Il Ltd. (the
“Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”). On 6 December 2017, the Company and the Subscriber
entered into an amended and restated subscription agreement
(the “Amended and Restated Subscription Agreement”) to amend,
restate, supersede and replace in its entirety the Subscription
Agreement. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Subscription
Agreement, the Subscriber shall subscribe for, and the Company
shall issue, the convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) with an
aggregate principal amount of up to US$150,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,170,000,000) to be issued in up to 30 tranches,
comprising the first part of the Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of up to US$50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$390,000,000) (the “First Part CB”) and the second part of the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of up to US$100,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$780,000,000). The maturity date of
the Convertible Bonds is falling 36 months after the issue date of such
tranche of the Convertible Bonds or, if that is not a business day, the
first business day thereafter. The nominal interest rate is 4% per annum
and the interest should be paid semi-annually.

On 17 January 2018, the first tranche of the First Part CB (the “First
Tranche”) in the principal amount of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$39,000,000) has been issued to the Subscriber. The
initial conversion price in respect of the First Tranche is HK$0.50869,
being 70% of the volume weighted average price of the shares of the
Company in the 20 trading days prior to 17 January 2018.

On 17 January 2018, the conversion rights of the First Tranche had
been fully exercised at a conversion price of HK$0.50869 per share by
the Subscriber. As a result, 76,670,585 conversion shares were issued
to the Subscriber.

27. BRAR(E)

Wit

(a)

K2017F10H12H » ANA A8 Crede GG Il Ltd.
(TREFDITLRBEHE((RBEHZE]) - ©
2017F 12868 * ANARIHEREH T &EFT R
Y RE R (ST REFNRE R - MS
] EY R RERENHDRERZ o RIEL
B REYRBE NS REAEREMAAR
B &% 5308 THRm A £ % A150,000,000
=7t (FE 1 491,170,000,0007 7T ) B 7] #2 j%
BHR([AIRRES] EPEERaAESEAR
50,000,000 7t (8 & 4 49390,000,0007% 7T ) A9
F—MBoARKRES([E—HHrleRESF])
K& & A % 58 /4 100,000,000 3% 70 (HEE R 4
780,000,000/ 7T ) H 5 — &b AT AR B ) © A
BIRESHEIE A AR R ES B RARLAETH
%36 A MNE A IELER @ BlALEBNE
EL%ER - EEEFRHLA% - MFBHFEFES

=% -

#2018F 1 A178 + A£%45,000,000% 7T (48
E 7 #939,000,00078 7T ) ) & #L 5 — 2B AT LA
BEHF(EIDEBRITTRES - AL HER
fB50.508697%8 7 + BIAAR]A2018F1/17H
AI201E% 5 B RRH LR EINETFIHERI70% °

R2018F 18178 + RIEH AR MD HLIRE
0.50869 T ABRHI TR H LM L BRE - At - B
A1 BE 5 3£1776,670,5850% 532D ©
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

(i)  The share options outstanding as at 1 January 2018 represented
17,850,000 share options granted by the Company on 21 September
2016 at an exercise price of HK$0.568 per share to certain eligible
participants of the Company in respect of their contributions to the
Group's development under the Share Option Scheme.

(i) The share options granted to certain eligible participants under the
Share Option Scheme were forfeited following their resignations during
the year.

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

28. Share option Scheme 28. B AETE
The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option ARRRIREEAET2I([EBREE]) - 5FEM
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards HAEBEREELEMNAS BRI EEIREER
to eligible participants who contribute to the development of K EFR o B ERTEIN S BB EE AR AT
the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are HtB AR AEEFAERRENER(IRE
employees (whether full time or part time) of the Company, its BE|NES(ER2BaFER)  BEAQR)
subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity HB AR REMREEENES(BFEBLIE
interest (the “Invested Entity”), including Directors (including WITES)MNEREEE - BRIETZEIER2016
independent non-executive Directors) and senior management of the F2RAVAEREETR AR T RMD EHEAE
Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested Entity. The Share Option W BRRIESTTEUESER] - BAIKGH201652
Scheme was approved by the Shareholders on 1 February 2016 and R1BRATERNEREY - FIEHF2HAAF]
became effective upon the listing of the shares of the Company and, 20165 °
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from 1 February 2016. Please refer to the 2016 annual report
of the Company for details.
The following share options were outstanding under the Share AR & R & AR RE AR AE ST 817 TR O BB AR A2 -
Option Scheme during the year:
Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options
INEEF T REE BREHE
Notes HKS$ per Share ‘000
gz BRRMDET T4
As of 1 January 2018 720181 A 1H (i) 0.568 17,850
Forfeited during the year FRRIK (i) 0.568 (1,000)
As of 31 December 2018 72018412 H31H 0.568 16,850
Notes: et -

()  M2018F1A1HARMARITENEREREAARE
RARAETEERSAEHAEBBEEMED
R B BIERBIRERT 8RBT EEAR0.5687
JCH201659 A 21 B R E X HA)17,850,0001D
BB AR HE o

(i)  FAN - REBREFINETRERZEERE
FRB RO I T RHE RO UK -
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIET

31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

28. Share option Scheme (Continued) 28. B AEETEI(E)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are as

follows:

31 December 2018

M2018%12 A31H %2017F12 A31 B HARTTE
EREMITEERITEROT -

20185 12H31H

Number of Exercise price
options per share Exercise period
BRERHE BRITEE 1T
‘000 HK$
T BT
6,740 0.568 From 21 September 2017 to 20 September 2022
2017%9H21H%E202249H20H
5,055 0.568 From 21 September 2018 to 20 September 2022
20189 A21H=202249H20H
5,055 0.568 From 21 September 2019 to 20 September 2022
201959 H21HE202249H20H
16,850

31 December 2017

2017%12H31H

Number of Exercise price
options per share Exercise period
BRERE BRITEE 1TEEHR
‘000 HK$
T4 BT
7,140 0.568 From 21 September 2017 to 20 September 2022
201799 A21H=202249H20H
5,355 0.568 From 21 September 2018 to 20 September 2022
2018%F9A21H=202249H20H
5,355 0.568 From 21 September 2019 to 20 September 2022
2019995218 %E202249H20H
17,850

The Company recognised a share option expense of RMB540,000
during the year (2017: RMB1,352,000).

184

FA AR EEREARER ST B ARES540,000
Jt(20174F « AR#¥51,352,0007T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FR Mz
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

28. Share option Scheme (Continued) 28. [BIRRESTEI(E)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme was estimated as of the date of grant, using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:

IRIB BRI ST 815 B AR AS H A BB AR Y 12
FETIARH B A BAEA G TR
PR BB AR R RO IR B AR 1 © TREDIFTERAHY
B2

Dividend yield (%) Nil BRE2R(%) z
Expected volatility (%) 48.75 FEHAR 18 (%) 4875
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.72 48 [ B 1 2R (%) 072

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 16,850,000 share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The exercise

TEHH/WE&B%WEE&'FETTETT\*JU_
BRUBERS

YER

FERBEMNADRDBREN LM

N

e

R2018F 12 A31H © BIEEARERTE » A A F
%ﬁw 850,00017 i R ITE RV BB AR #E o IRIFA

in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present NEIB AT EARZERE - MBBITERARITERD
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 16,850,000 BB - S E B YNEE1T 16,850,000 1R AN A Al

additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$1,685 and share premium of at least HK$9,569,115
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 16,850,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.0% of the Company’s
shares in issue as of that date.

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

AR A R ANRG AN 1,68578 7T M I i B &=
9,569,115 L (IR EET TR AT ©

RZEMBRRMERS - REBEBEEAE - X
775 16,850,00017 (H RTT{E A BBALE - 54
A

N
RAERZ A HE #ITARN#91.0% °
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Notes to Financial Statements B 753k R HisE
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

29. Reserves
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(a) Share premium account

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
constitutional documents and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium is distributable as dividend
on the condition that the Company is able to pay its debts
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business at the
time the proposed dividend is to be paid.

(b) Contributed surplus
The contributed reserve represents the aggregate nominal
amount of the paid-up capital of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
attributable to the owners of the Company.

(c) Statutory reserve
In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
respective articles of association of subsidiaries domiciled
in Mainland China, each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to allocate 10% of its profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve (the
“SSR") until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital.

As Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, Sinco Shanghai and Qingdao
Yusheng are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, allocation
to the SSR is not required. According to the Rules for the
Implementation of Foreign-funded Enterprise Law of the PRC
and articles of association of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals,
Sinco Shanghai and Qingdao Yusheng, they are required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax in accordance with PRC
GAAP to the statutory reserve fund (the “SRF") until such
reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered capital.

The SSR and the SRF are non-distributable except in the
event of liquidation and subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations. They can be used to offset
accumulated losses or capitalised as paid-up capital.

186

29. &S

AEENREEBREERAFEBEFRENE
BN BHRROEEREEHRET -

(a) BRtIEERK
ERBRMEERIFASESARERE °
RESEXMHRASBESARE  WAR
AR EER S EEHER R EELS
RRHREER - AIROEER DR AR

5 o
B

(b) BHEBH
ERBBRIEANRBED ARG R
BEXBHRAREE -

\
S

IS

(o) EERE
AR B A B BE e AL 5 B A3 B B BB
AEENEARERMAR - FTEHERR
BREBEEN10% (REFEARES
RAEE) BEEAERRFH(DEERH
) BEEZFREZINEEMELRN
50% &1E e

AP ER B - ERR (L) RE
SEBRTIHBELE  WBABRREZX
ERHREHE - RETBESINELREERA
AIPA R ) EER A B~ R (L8) &
BEEERMEMERRAA  ZEQRAR
BREAREFRADBE10%HLEF
srEREES(DEEREER])  BHE
&R ER EEMERN50% ALE o

BBRBEARZBETEERMEETR
HIFTERSN - EAERBREEIEEFBES
ARk - ER AR R B REEAR
L BBHRR -
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET

31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

29. Reserves (Continued)

(d) Share option reserve
The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits

should the related options expire or be forfeited.

29. &

(d) RBRAERE

w(E)

BREREEECRBERRITERBRE
HRFE  E—THBERPBRRME2.4
B B LARR ) R ETE Y5 TR

e ZE

BRTBERAM
BRI 1A A B R P 1T o e A

ERMEER - KN ABERBRED ki
R B ERE R o

30. Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 30. LB HRERMEE
Flows
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities REEE TS EESE
Bank
Interest Other and other
Bonds payable payables borrowings
HAr At BITR
&% EAFIE == Hitt &%
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBFT AREBFT ARBTFT
(note 26) (note 23) (note 24)
(Hizt26) (H17£23) (fizt24)
At 1 January 2018 M2018F1A1H 133,856 94 - 275,815
Changes from financing cash flows BERERER (98,586) (20,021) 144,208 (130,992)
Non-cash changes: L EE -
Foreign exchange movement INEZE (5,044) - - 17
Equity component of convertible bonds AR (& 5 6 AR AN AR X (30,226) - - -
Interest expense FBRL - 34,818 - -
At 31 December 2018 M2018%12H31AH
- 14,891 144,208 145,000
At 1 January 2017 1201761818 - - - 165,000
Changes from financing cash flows BERSTREE 139,881 (33,607) = 111,618
Non-cash changes: RS EE -
Foreign exchange movement GNEEE) (6,025) - - (803)
Interest expense FERX - 33,701 - -
At 31 December 2017 20174128318 133,856 94 - 275,815
2018 FH AREBRIEARAT 187
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R R M5
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

31. Operating Lease Arrangements
As lessee
The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms

31.

RERO R

TERAEA
AEBREGERORHBESTHONE - 9
EAMATANT —E=F - RIREHEK - 5%

=2k

ranging from one to three years. At the end of the Reporting Period, EREA I REE S E AR B R RSERER
the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non- TEAAZEINT -
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETTT
Within one year —FR 1,466 979
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZRFRN(BREERME) 752 627
2,218 1,606
32. Commitments 32. &IE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the REFRBEHRAEARREDT ¢
Reporting Period:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETFT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEMERS T
— Construction of a warehouse —EREE 83,719 84,691

33. Contingent Liabilities
At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group has no significant
contingent liabilities.

33. HAREE

RBERAR - REERBEMNERALAEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

34. Related party transactions 3. BEARXS
(a) During the year, the Group had the following material () AEERERNEEERETHNEARZ SN
transactions with related parties: T:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTFT
Guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin BB W A TR

Interest-bearing other borrowings FTEEALER 140,000 =
Bonds BEH - 133,856

Secured by Risun’s shares over the Company PARisunFTs B AR A 7

R A7 YEHE AR
Interest-bearing other borrowings TR EAER 140,000 =
Bonds &5 - 133,856
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of (b) FAEEEXEEEASFMH
the Group

2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREETTT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEREWER 2,157 2,543
Pension scheme contributions RINEETEIHR 37 23
Equity-settled share option expense LA RS 45 B ) i ke el <2 - (166)
2,194 2,400

2018 3 EIRIARBEEZERER AR
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R R M5
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

35. Financial Instruments by Category 35. M T AEA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial HEHEMERMITENRERARNREEAT :

instruments as at the end of the Reporting Period are as follows:

2018 20185
Financial assets SMEE

Financial assets

at fair value
through other Financial
comprehensive assets
income (debt at amortised
investments) cost Total
2ENE
BAFETE RE
HemEE BAGTEMN
(BEHRE) cREE &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT AR®ET T
Trade receivables B S WA - 22,806 22,806
Bills receivables U= 1% 3,371 - 3,371
Financial assets included in prepayments, SEAFEMFIE - Hib R
other receivables and other assets MEMEENCREE - 15,967 15,967
Pledged bank balances BIRIRIRTT 45 - 13 13
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY - 80,330 80,330
3,371 119,116 122,487
Financial liabilities =N
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBSERAFTEN
sRBE
RMB’000
ARET T
Trade payables & 5 ERRIE 106,901
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals &+ AE Ath f& 1~ 3038 &
R RIENERERE 197,679
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T RRIT REMER 145,000
449,580

1 90 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018



Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

35. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued)

35. €T EER (&)

2017 20174
Financial assets SREE
Loans and
receivables
B & W RIA
RMB'000
ARETTT
Trade and bills receivables E 5 W RIE R BN EE 37,106
Financial assets included in prepayments, SEAFERFIE - HibEWRGRIE R
other receivables and other assets HitWEENESMEE 3,679
Pledged bank balances BEBRITEH 52,941
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 22,710
116,436
Financial liabilities cRBeE
Financial
liabilities at
fair value through
Financial profit or loss
liabilities at  classified as held
amortised cost for trading Total
DERRFE
REHNA BEERRER
TEM RATEEM
SHAERE SRAR 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
Trade payables B EMNFR 22,522 - 22,522
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss DEABEBEEABRESE
classified as held for trading ATETENSREE - 218 218
Financial liabilities included in other STAE M ERFUER
payables and accruals EErER e RBE 68,588 - 68,588
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings TERTREMER 275,815 = 275,815
Bonds &% 133,856 - 133,856
500,781 218 500,999

2018 3 EIRIARBEEZERER AR
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FTRMIzT
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank loans,
other interest-bearing borrowings and cash and bank balances. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables, trade payables,
which arise directly from its operations.

Risk management is carried out by the finance department which
is led by the Group’s executive Directors. The Group's finance
department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units. The main risks arising
from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, foreign
currency risk, liquidity risk, and interest rate risk.

The Group's financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that
adequate resources are available to manage the above risks and to
create value for its Shareholders. The Board regularly reviews these
risks and they are summarised below:

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to
the Group’s bank deposits and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings are disclosed in note 24 to the
financial statements.

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk exposure arising
from all of its interest-bearing loans through the use of fixed rates.
In addition, the Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge
against interest rate risk.

The Group does not consider it has any significant exposure to the
risk of changes in market interest rates as the Group does not have
any long term receivables and loans which are subject to floating
interest rate.

36. IKEKMEREBERBER

AEENTESHTABRERITER  SHEEM
ERANIRE MIRTTHER - ZFeMTAXEE
EREASELENES - AEERSBEMS
BMEENAE  MEZEERELNEZEIGK
BREREENEHENFRIER -

MG ERPTEA KRB TESNRE N ETRRE
B o AEBMM P RS EEMFYIANE - A
sl MEHEHBRE - REAKE SR TANE
ZRBAEERR INERR - RBERBRK
F =@

REENN R EERRS KERE THEIR
FAEE b Eke R ABERAIEEE - EFTEH
mal iz SRR WA T

=@k

ANEEE S T BRERITFR LA ST REM
BT A R - FIE R BRTEREE
A FOE KR B R M I IRKEE24

AEEEBEREEMNEERE 2 BERA
EENREREFRRR o 1LI) - NEREWE(E
FREA IR i RS R R o

el A S B3 o 45 7 AR ST B0 S 0 £ ) R A
MBS - AR ER AR AR EA
TSHEEBER -
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FR Mz
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk
The Group’s purchase of products from the overseas suppliers
are conducted in US$. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, except for certain items of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged bank balances, other receivables, bank
borrowings, trade payables, and bonds that are denominated in
SGD, US$ and HK$.

The Group does not enter into any hedging transactions to manage
the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. Management
monitors the Group’s foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5.0% change
in RMB against US$, HK$ and SGD. The 5.0% is the rate used when
reporting currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in the foreign currency rate. The sensitivity analyses of
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of each
reporting period have been determined based on the adjustment
of translation of the monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
each reporting period for a 5.0% change in RMB against US$, HK$
and SGD, respectively, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 (due to changes in the fair value of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank balances, other receivables, bank borrowings, trade
payables and bonds denominated in US$, HK$ and SGD):

6. MEEMEREBERBE(E)

47N JeR\ P
REBUAERTREIMIERBEER - AEEX
BMOBERBBEUAREE  EETHRERR
SEEY - CHEMRITER - EMRIREUE - R
TTER - BN ESFORREFAF IR « X5T
KABTTAHE ©

REE W EET S AEAIEIH R Z A E IR EIERINE
KE o EREEERAKEIINERR - WSESR
FERZRETERINERR

TRINRARE R IFETT 70 R hns e & &
E5.0%HBKE ° 5.0% A MEZEREAES
ERINERBFTAL R - AEEEHINEERS
B gEBMNE - AREERNSRERREEH
SNERBREURE DT IRBEMBEMERR
BAENERT  RARERZET Bk
WTEEREES0%DRIARSHEARER,E
ERBEREBEHAEEEZ20185F K20175F
12 A31BIEFERBATS A A EE T (AR
FEIC B RFNE T ENRE MRS EE
Y - BEIRIRITAE SR - M EUEUE - RITHE
F o ENESFIERESOQTELEME) ¢

2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax BB FE 0 (L)
If RMB weakens against US$, HK$ and SGD MARERZET - BTk
FINEITR(E 1,623 (8,879)
If RMB strengthens against US$, HK$ and SGD MARERZET - BTk
ST TTHHE (1,623) 8,879

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIET

31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As disclosed in note 4, the Group sells its products to a small number
of customers. The Group manages this risk by requiring payment in
advance from customers and offering standardised credit terms to
certain customers for a credit period ranging from 45 days to 1 year.
As disclosed in note 19, the Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and senior management regularly
reviews the overdue balances.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December 2018
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as
at 31 December 2018. The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts for financial assets.

6. HKAKRERBERBK(E)

FERER
WMMEEARTRE - AEER/ RO FEPHERE
i ARBEEREREFPREANARAETEP
REBRENEEPRN F4SHE-—FMERZAE
B o GNP EE19RTIREE » AN SR B H 5 R I B Ay
FEM IR E Z KGR BARIES - ARREERE
EREBA A o

R2018%F 1231 H By /B f i O % F K57 B
TRENMBASEEEBREERRNEEL
ZREERAREO - RIEEAMHAARSEE DA
AESEMER - AEZENEBRER - UER
2018F 12 A3THMFE RSN - 22 S A
CREEMNRIRAE

Life time ECLs
FEMESGEERR
12-month Simplified
ECLs Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
NEAEHEE
FRE-RA E-RRB E EitrE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR ARETR ARETR AEBTR
Trade receivables* Ul e - - - 23,921 23,921
FTABRIFE -
Financial assets included in prepayments, HinRUEIE R
other receivables and other assets** HEtBENSREE 16,493 - - - 16,493
Cash and cash equivalents RERRLEEY
- Not yet past due —RAABH 80,343 - - - 80,343
96,836 - - 23,921 120,757

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

* BRAKEERMEITEAERENE S EYFCRT
5 AR DERMBEBRRME19RBENBERE
[

> fREFATENFOR - EttERHIEREMEENE
REAEVASHARBEENBETZSEREED
EERR BT HERARBZER - AIEERE
ZWREIER] - BRI ZESREENEEYD
RIRIEFRE]
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R FR Mz
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

36. HKEREREBERBEE)

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
and time deposits are held in major reputable financial institutions
located in Mainland China, which management believes are of high
credit quality. The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise trade and bills receivables, and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. The Group has
no other financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit
risk.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy customers
with no requirement for collateral. It is the Group’s policy that
except for certain customers which are granted credit terms ranging
from 45 days to 90 days, customers should make full prepayment
either in cash or bank accepted bills receivable. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and senior
management of the Company keeps reviewing and assessing the
creditworthiness of the Group's existing customers on an ongoing
basis. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is also influenced by the
individual characteristics of each customer and default risk of the
industry in which the customers operate. As the Group’s exposure to
credit risk spreads over a diversified portfolio of customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk.

In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, convertible bonds and its own funding sources.

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

EERR(E)
R20174F 12 31 H #9552 ki O
KEBBRBH RS MRS EBYWUARTEHTFR
FERRHPEALAR RIFEENE 2SS
EREREZSeRBREAGSEELER - K
SEEMeREE(RIEEZRNFEREKSE
BAREMERRIB)NEERBRRAEEFHE
4 meEBRHOAERZELEMNERRE - K
SEVEEMBNEERNEERBRNSREE -

AEEERERANBERFETRS @ TEX
T RBEAEENOEER REREEHN T
ASHEOHMETEFRIN  BEEURSE
WERITA R ZIRETREEN - AEEBOR
18 AR IR B B0 FE IR R IB A3 BRI ) - B AR
EREEERERN A AEERERFPHE
2o AEERYNEERRIZSEEFHMER
BEEEPEEMETENEORBRNTEZ - f
RAEEEENEERREBRZTILEFES -
i wEEsEAEFHEERR

BESN - RERSIR A RIS R R R T
HIEBRE BRI A EKX -

A&

JiE]

mENE £ @b

FEMADEESRE ERSRAENEHEAN
R OB EE MRS AR A ISR,
B -

AEE R B AEBE A B RTREMER
THAES A S A TORE R SRR
WAL T -
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Notes to Financial Statements B3R R M5
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 36. BIKEKEEEERKE (&)
Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) nREESRER(E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end LTAAEESREERRERARERE LR
of the Reporting Period, based on the contractual undiscounted BAZEEHIBER

payments, is as follows:

2018
Less than 3to 12
On demand 3 months months Total
RERKE PR=EA =Z+=M@A R

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TR AR®T:R

Interest-bearing bank and STESRTTREMAER
other borrowings - 9,583 141,519 151,102
Trade payables B SN FIA - 52,377 54,524 106,901
Other payables E i TR IE 1,396 177,688 18,596 197,680
1,396 239,648 214,639 455,683

2017
Less than 31012

On demand 3 months months Total
RERE LR=EA ==+={@A k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT ARBTT ARETT

Interest-bearing bank and FFRRITREMER
other loans - 209,696 71,512 281,208
Trade payables B 5 8 - 22,522 - 22,522
Other payables H A fERTRUOE 1,262 32,395 34,931 68,588
Bonds &% = 138,569 = 138,569

1,262 403,182 106,443 510,887

1 96 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018



Notes to Financial Statements B &R FR Mz
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

36. HKEREREBERBEE)

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Fair values

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and are
based on relevant market information and information about the
financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature
and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement
and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank balances, trade and bills receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals approximated to their fair values
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss classified as held for trading are estimated based on valuation
techniques. The model incorporates observable inputs of certain
foreign exchange rates and risk-free interest rates. The carrying
amounts of financial liability at fair value through profit or loss
classified as held for trading are the same as their fair values. The fair
value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss classified as held for trading measured
at fair value required observable inputs (Level 2) as of 31 December
2017 and was not applicable as of 31 December 2018.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other financial instruments
approximated to their fair values due to the short term to maturity at
the end of the Reporting Period.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise Shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to Shareholders or raise new capital from its investors. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
financial risk during the year.

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

AFE
DNFEGF DR ERRREEETSER e
BTAERHEL - ZERABIBMLL - FRT
BERRREARHESEE - FL T EREETE -
(EEGE SRS 2 LT

AEERSRACEFEY  CEIPRITES &
HEWFIRARBRRE - FEATEMTOR - HftE
Wk EMEENEREE « fTERITREMWE
A RET AR BN SR R RN SR A E
MEEEEENHERS  TEARZETAR
FEERAEIE

AR IFEESREREATENENSRIA
BRATEDNRGET AGE - ZEXNBEE TN
EE B S ) ] R 5 A BRI SRR R TR - DR
REEESRERERATEFENSREERT
EHRSHREAFE - R20175F128318 » &%
EHEAREEEEBRERZATETENTH
BENATENEEAZTENERGAZIE(EH
—#) > A2018%F 12 A31 B NEA ©

EEMEE T ANKTERE
HRmzETAREYHNDE -

BEXEE
AEEBEAEENTIZARREERASERRE
BERBRENERRROBARLLE  UXRFE
EBREERIRREE -

AEBRGERRNE S ERHLBEARBELEE
TEHRE - RERFRPREARRE  AEExE
FERRLEFAXAEREESENES - F
N BERMBERNBR - BERSBE I EERA
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 36.

BHEREERRRBEE(E)

Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group is currently funding its capital expenditure through
internal generated funds from its operations, proceeds from the new
bank and other borrowings. The Group monitors capital using a
gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by equity plus net debt. Net
debt indicates interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade
payables, other payables, tax payable and bonds, less cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank balances, excluding liabilities incurred
for working capital purposes. Equity includes equity attributable to
the owners of the parent and non-controlling interests. The gearing
ratio at the end of the Reporting Period is as follows:

EXREE(E)
REFRRSEBEEEMSANIESD - HIBRTT
REMEEPEFIARNEERA - AEEF
RafhX(aEFERERNE BEFHE) EEE
- BEFEETTRRITREMER  EHEN
PR - HEAFOE - EATIAEREFRRE M
ReZBYREERRTEA(TRERLEES
L EMMELNER) - BaBREAREEA
eI R R S IR A R - E MR BELL RN
T

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREBTFT

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings sTRRITREMERK 145,000 275,815
Trade payables B 5 ERNRIE 106,901 22,522
Other payables and accruals EL A JE AT RUOE I B R FRIA 205,525 70,029
Tax payable e IR 1,943 2,546
Bonds (EE2 - 133,856
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BRERBEEED (80,330) (22,710)
Less: Pledged bank balances B BEMRITERR (13) (52,941)
Net debt BERE 379,026 429,117
Equity G 22,723 272,730
Equity and net debt BEkBEFE 401,749 701,847
Gearing ratio BELE 94.3% 61.1%
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

37. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  37. & BB K4k R &

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the Reporting Period is as follows:

BRARARBE PROFBARAREROT

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ENBRFRRE 306 306
Payments in advance TERTEIE - 1,347
Total non-current assets JEmEEERE 306 1,653
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments TERFIR 2,106 6,415
Amounts due from subsidiaries AR NGIE ¢ 410,840 409,706
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEY 34 395
Total current assets REBEEHE 412,980 416,516
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Other payables H b FEATRE 13,249 296
Amounts due to a subsidiary JIEA~F — R Bf /BB A &) R0 - 26,503
Other borrowings HfEm 140,000 -
Bonds EH - 133,856
Total current liabilities REBEHE 153,249 160,655
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZFE 259,731 255,861
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERABES 260,037 257,514
Net assets EEFE 260,037 257,514
EQUITY =
Issued capital BTN 136 130
Reserves (note) FAEICES) 259,901 257,384
Total equity ERAR 260,037 257,514

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

37.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company 37. ZA R KR AT (E)

(Continued)

Note: B
The movements in the Company’s reserves are as follows: KARREEZEZHWOT ¢
Retained
Share Share earnings/
premium option  (Accumulated
account reserve losses) Total
REREF
R AR E BRERE (R&HEE) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
At 31 December 2016 and M2016F 128318 Kk
1 January 2017 20171818 258,887 995 12,078 271,960
Equity-settled share option arrangements VAR E B AR
(note 28) LR (H1728) - 1,352 - 1,352
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FREEREZEBEEE - - (15,928) (15,928)
At 31 December 2017 2017128318 258,887 2,347 (3,850) 257,384
At 31 December 2017 and 2017124318 K%
1 January 2018 20181 A1H 258,887 2,347 (3,850) 257,384
Equity-settled share option arrangements DARRAEE 45 5 ) B AR
(note 28) ZH(H228) - 540 - 540
Issue of convertible bonds BT8R ES 30,226 = - 30,226
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year S REE R 2 HEBARE = = (28,249) (28,249)
At 31 December 2018 720184128318 289,113 2,887 (32,099) 259,901
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Notes to Financial Statements B #3R R MIET
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

38. Events After the Reporting Period
On 27 March 2019 (after trading hours), the Company, Mr Gui,
Risun, Mr. Huang, Guangsha Overseas, and Mr. Ye entered into
the Supplemental Agreement as mentioned in note 2.1 () to the
financial statements.

Both Risun and Mr. Huang (a) have irrevocably agreed and confirmed
that the settlement of partial other borrowings does not represent
any loan or financial assistance provided to the Company; and (b)
have unconditionally waived all rights to claim against the Company
for the settlement.

39. Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board on 29 March 2019.

2018 3 EIRIARBEEZERER AR

38.

39.

BEHESEH
20193 A27H (R ZRERE) - ANAT] - it
A Risun ~ mRE  BESIMANREL AR
B TS ¥R R T2 1 (P MO R FE 1 5% ©

Risun &2 & % A 9 (a) AT B b [ B R FgsR - 18
B HM AR T ERRAR RIRERERER
Y HEER) 0 ARO)E EIEERERAQRIBR
REBEROET -

it B R ER
BB HMARTA2019F3 A28 EE =S MR
REF)EE -
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DEFINITIONS

" affiliate”
(BB AT

"AGM"
[RRBEFRE]

"Articles” or “Articles of Association”

[ARR) =kl B A =2 4nA ]

“Board”
=

“Cayman Companies Law”

[R2ESAEE]

“China” or “the PRC"
[FEE ]

“Company"” or “our Company" or
“the Company”
[ARRA]

“Director(s)”

(%]

noon noou

"Group”, “our Group”, “the Group”,

" nou

we”, "us”, or “our”

[ARSE ] [3RAPI Ikl FAIe

"HKS"
(7]

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under direct
or indirect common control with such specified person
BESHEEGIETE A TS BT S B E E A T B AE X HA
IR E M A LT

annual general meeting of the company

ARBBRBFAE

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time),
conditionally adopted on 1 February 2016
RRAPR20165F2 A1 B AR RGO EZZIZMA (K EHERT)

the board of Directors
4y

the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961), as amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
FEMHEENIE22E (1961 F E35EM) A RVE(2013FEFTM) » KL TNKRAEET
St o s A Bt 5 g2k

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report,
Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan
RE ARKEME - RNREFTBESE  RFIFRTHR R AE

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (87125 2 22472 f5 5 BR /2 7)), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 16 March
2015
BRAREEERBR AT - KR2015F3 16 A A SRS T M I HEREBR
NG

the director(s) of the Company
PA/NGIF- =

our Company and our subsidiaries and, in respect of the period before we became
the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the businesses operated by such
subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)
RRAT RFEAIRIE R FA R (SRR PR R E W E R R ZZER D R ATE B M
=) AERM B R RIS AT S GRIERME ) &0 E

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BREEEHN
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Definitions E&

"HKSE"
[ BB

“Hong Kong”
[&#]

“Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar”

[BEEFBLDRE

“Human Albumin Solution”

[AMBEREHR]

“Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences”

[P B R B 26

“Listing Rules”

[ Al
“Main Board”
[ER]
“"MPCM”

[&8 - HENRREEE]

“Mr. Huang”
=

"Octapharma”

[R5 5E43E ]

“PRC"

PR

“Prospectus”

[EE |

2018 F# EMABEEERAR AR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BRMERXHER AT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEEBRRITTHE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

ESHRESBRARAA

refers to Octapharma’s human albumin solution 20% (containing 200 grammes
of total protein per litre) and human albumin solution 25% (containing 250
grammes of total protein per litre). The term Human Albumin Solution refers to
both products or either one of them as the context requires

BRI EEMN20% AMBERIFR(BAS4EEH2007%) R25% AMH
EREFR(EAEBERD2507R) - AMAEHFSIRE TMIEEMIEF —1&
(BFx®)

the Institute of Chinese Materia Medica, China Academy of Chinese Medical
Sciences (s Bl B8 T4 205 o BB FE )
R [ AR B8 R R e AR B A SR P

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE, as amended or
supplemented from time to time

BAEBZ RS ETRA - B TARHERT ST

Main Board of the HKSE
BB R PTER

refers to marketing, promotion and channel management for the sale and
promotion of pharmaceutical products for pharmaceutical manufacturers
RESEEDHEREHERETNEN HEEMREER

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Z#£#2), our Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive
Officer and one of our controlling shareholders

WAL - BIFER  PUITESE - (TBERSGRIERRR 2 —

Octapharma AG, a corporation limited by shares incorporated in the Swiss
Confederation

Octapharma AG * s AL AR D AR A E

the People’s Republic of China
HEE A R AR E

the prospectus issued by the Company dated 29 February 2016
RARIR20165F2 B29 8 HIE BB E
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Definitions &3

“Reporting Period”
[¥R&EH]

“Risun”
[Risun ]

“RMB"
[ARE]

"SEQ"

[ % R ARG

“Share(s)"”
[ &5 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[A&ER ]

“Share Option Scheme”

[FERtERt 3]

the financial year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A31H LM RFE

Risun Investments Limited, a limited company incorporated under the laws of BVI
on 16 January 2015, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. Huang

Risun Investments Limited * 7220151 A 16 A £ B 4 R m BE & i AL AR
DA REAEREREHNMNEAR

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of China

AR hEIEEEH

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time

BREDIFESNER A REIED - B IRERT T

ordinary share(s) in the capital of the Company with nominal value of HK$0.0001
each
RNA B B AREEO0.000178 T 8 AR

holder(s) of Shares
[ESHEEZ=DN

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on 1 February
2016, the principal terms of which are summarised in “Statutory and General
Information — D. Other Information — 1 Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VII
to the Prospectus

RRATFR2016F2 A1 BB GAROHBBIES 8 - H = 2 B AR S b
BADEER—MRER —D. HMhER — 1 BARiEE]

“U.S. dollars” or “US$"”

U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

=S XL ENBRERBEEEEH

In this Annual Report, the terms “associate,”, “close associate,” “connected
person,” “connected transaction,” “controlling shareholder,
connected person,” “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have
the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the context
otherwise requires.

w o i " on

core

The English translation of the PRC entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities,
requlations in Chinese are translations of the Chinese names. To the
extent there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of the PRC
entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities, requlations and their English
translations, the Chinese names shall prevail.
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HEAXFEHF  BEXEZFFE)  [HEA]  [EEF
BEA| [FEAL] [FEXS] [FEREKE] -
[BEAL ] [HIE AR IR EBRERIAF LT
K RUBTHE T 52

FEVERE - P - BIZHERE - Rt - DERREIRXE R
FXERBE o HEERE - P Bx#E R
B VXA X E T JEXGEE B E(ASEE - B
FXEFERE -
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